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RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS

No. 1 

IQ The Inscription in Appeal Before the Court of King's Bench

The Defendant hereby inscribes this case in appeal before the Court 
of King's Bench (Appeal Side) at the City of Montreal from the final 
judgment of the Superior Court of the District of Montcalm, dated the 
first day of June, 1934, and communicated to the parties in accordance 
with Article 538 of the Code of Civil Procedure on or about the 10th day 
of June 1934 maintaining plaintiff's action against defendant for the sum 
of $293,585.84 with interest and costs; and notice is hereby given to Messrs. 
Brown, Montgomery and McMichael, attorneys for plaintiffs, that the pre-

20 sent inscription has been this day filed in the office of said Superior 
Court, and that on the 29th day of June 1934 at 11:30 o'clock in the fore­ 
noon (Standard Time) before the Prothonotary of said Superior Court at 
his office in the Court house at the Village of Mont-Laurier, the defen­ 
dant will give good and sufficient security that it will effectually prosecute 
the said appeal and satisfy the condemnation and pay all costs adjudged in 
case the said judgment should be confirmed, and that defendant will then 
and there offer as sureties Messrs. Albert and Alexander Maclaren, both 
manufacturers of the said Town of Buckingham, who will then and there 
justify as to their sufficiency if so required.

30
Mont-Laurier, June 26, 1934.

(sgd) Aylen and Aylen,
Attorneys for Defendant.

In the
Court of

No. 2 

The Inscription in the Cross-appeal Before the Court of King's Bench
In the

40 The plaintiffs hereby inscribe this case in appeal before the Court Ki 
of King's Bench (Appeal Side) at the City of Montreal from the final 
judgment of the Superior Court of the District of Montcalm, dated the inscription 
first day of June, 1934, and communicated to the parties in accordance 
with Article 538 of the Code of Civil Procedure on or about the 10th day 
of June, 1934, maintaining plaintiffs' action against defendant for the sum 
of $293,585.84 with interest and costs but only insofar as said judgment 
does not award to plaintiff interest from the date of the institution of the 
action upon the following sums awarded to plaintiffs by said judgment;
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The No' 2 
inscription
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namely the sum of $117,075.22 for increased cost of coffer dams and un- 
watering (Item No. 3) ; the sum of $81,282.60 for work under winter coii- 
ditions (Item No. 4) ; the sum of $18,079.83 for hauling cement for apron 
in bypass ciiannel (Item No. 10) ; and the sum of $5823.49 for plant re- 
moval (Item No. 12) ; and notice is hereby given to Messrs. Aylen and 
Aylen, attorneys for defendant, that the present inscription has been this 
day filed in the office of the said Superior Court and that on the 29th 
day of June 1934 at 11:30 o'clock in the forenoon (Standard Time) be- 
fore the Prothonotary of said Superior Court at his office in the Court 
House at the Village of Mont-Laurier, the plaintiffs will give good and 
sufficient security that they will effectually prosecute the said appeal 
and satisfy the condemnation and pay all costs adjudged in case the said 
judgment should be confirmed, and that said security will take the form 
of a surety bond to be given by The Guarantee Company of North America, 
a company having an office and place of business in the City and Dis­ 
trict of Montreal and being authorized by law for the purpose of giving 
such security, which said company will then and there justify as to 
its sufficiency if so required.

Montreal, June 28, 1934.

Brown, Montgomery and McMichael,
Attorneys for Plaintiffs-appellants.

20

In the 
Court ot

No. 3

The Factum of Appellant Before the Court of King's Bench
30

N 3 Appellant has appealed from the final judgment of the Superior 
Court of the District of Mont-calm, rendered by Honourable Mr. Justice 
White on Jim e 1st, 1934, maintaining respondent's action against ap- 

Ktag's Bench pellant for the sum of $293,585.84 with interest and costs. (See judgment, 
Vol. VI, pp. 1249-1259).

The action arises out of the construction of the Lievre River Storage 
Works at Cedar Rapids on the Lievre River between the Townships of 40 
Wells and Bigelow, for which respondent William I. Bishop Limited was 
the contractor. These storage wrorks were constructed between October 
1928 and June 1930, and consist of a concrete dam for the purpose of im­ 
pounding and storing the waters of the River and regulating the supply 
of water for the benefit of the power-users on the River below the same. As 
this storage dam was to be owned and operated when completed by The 
Quebec Streams Commission the construction was under the joint super­ 
vision of appellant's engineers and those of the Commission.
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Following the completion of the work respondent William I. Bishop In 'court of 
Limited registered a claim for privilege and thereafter within the delay 
of six months provided by law commenced the present action to enforce 
such privilege, claiming the sum of $412,846.75 as additional compensa- 
tion over and above the sum of $916,723.57 which it had already received. I |V

15 March 1935
The basis of the action is set forth in paragraph 6 of the declaration <Contlnued > 

where it is stated that the amount claimed represents: 
10 "Labour, material, wrork and services necessarily supplied, 

outlays made by said plaintiff and expenses to which said plaintiff 
has been put in connection with the said work as well as in connec­ 
tion with the doing of work actually required for said construction, 
and approved by defendant, but not provided for in the contract, cr 
as damage suffered by the said plaintiff for reasons attributable to 
the faulty, erroneous and deceptive information supplied and repre­ 
sentations made by defendant to said plaintiff as aforesaid." (Vol. 
1, p. 3).

2Q As respondent William I. Bishop Limited had assigned to The 
Bank of Montreal all amounts owing under the contract in question, The 
Bank of Montreal was co-plaintiff in the action and is one of the respon­ 
dents to the present appeal.

Respondents' claim is divided into a number of separate items, four­ 
teen in all, each practically constituting a separate and distinct cause of 
action. Throughout the trial these claims were referred to by number as 
well as by a distinctive title, and the amount claimed in the action with 
respect to each of such individual claims, and the amount allowed by the 
judgment are as follows: 

No.
No. 
No. 
No. 
No.
No.

40 AT
No.

No. 
No. 
No.
No.

No. 
No.
No.

Title of Claim

1   Hardpan Excavation ...........
2   Passing Logs ........... . ............... 
3   Cofferdams & Unwatering .... 
4   Cofferdam Lower End By-pass ...... 
5   Additional Cost of Rock Excavation 
6   Handling & Trimming Excavated 

Rock ........................................................
7   Excavating Frozen Material in river

bed ............................................................ 
8   Work under Winter Conditions ...... 
9   Overcharge on Logs ............................ 

10   Cement for Apron in By-pass Channel 
11   Shortage in payment for Class 1 

Concrete ..................................................
12   Plant Removal ..................................... 
13   Standby & Overhead Expense .......... 
14   Interest on Deferred payments ........

Amount claimed 

by the action

$ 21,601.45
4,103.72 

148,857.15 
5,563.50 

35,100.74

1,990.82

2,530.32 
96,832.45 

7,220.19 
2,239.46

31,549.15
5,823.49 

49,147.41 
286.90

Amount allowed 

by the judgment

$ 13,919.45
2,995.42 

117,075.22

35,100.74

2,530.32 
81,282.62 

1,429.60 
1,879.83

31,549.15
5,823.49

TOTAL ..................................... .... $412,846.75 $293,585.84



In 'court of The trial was a lengthy one occupying five weeks. One hundred and 
gjxty-five exhibits were fyled by both sides and lengthy written arguments 
were produced citing many authorities. The judgment, rendered after a 
delibere of more than a year, is very brief, comprising, in all only ten

iun?s0Bencii pages, including the expose of the facts, and no additional notes were 
1 (5cotnttai1ed) 5 handed down. One case cited by appellant is distinguished, but no autho­ 

rities are cited by the learned Trial Judge in support of his conclusions 
and many of the submissions of the appellant seem to have received no 
consideration whatsoever. 10

Appellant proposes to deal First with the contract itself. Secondly 
with the law applicable to such contracts generally and Thirdly to take up 
and discuss in detail each of the fourteen separate items of respondents' 
claim.

THE CONTEACT.

The contract based on unit prices is of the same general type as that 
recently considered by this Court and by the Supreme Court of Canada in 20 
the case of Nova Scotia Construction Company vs Quebec Streams Com­ 
mission hereinafter referred to. (See Contract and Specifications Vol. 
VI, pp. 1085-1133).

The work which respondent Bishop undertook to do is described as 
being :  

"The complete construction of the Cedar Rapids Storage 
Dam as shown and indicated on the drawings referred to above and 
such supplementary plans and details as may be issued by the en- 30 
gineer from time to time." (Vol. VI, p. 1087).

Said respondent promised and agreed ;

"To furnish all materials, tools and appliances, labour and 
work of every description required for the complete construction of 
said dam, excepting only certain materials and equipment which 
are to be supplied by the owner and which are specifically enume­
rated hereinafter." (Vol. VI, p. 1085).

40
The division of authority between appellant and the Quebec Streams 

Commission as regards the control and supervision of the work is provided 
for in the contract in the following terms :  

"It is further agreed that the construction of the dam shall 
be carried out and completed under the Engineering supervision 
and to the satisfaction of the Chief Engineer of the Quebec Streams
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Commission, and a Resident Engineer to be appointed by him who In "court of
shall be his representative on the work and have and exercise the Kln*jLBencl1
authority granted the Engineer in this contract and specifications in
all matters pertaining to and affecting the proper construction of
the dam, and its safety and durability. K°ng's°Bench

15 March 19 35 
(Continued)

"It is further understood and agreed, however, that the 
jO Owner shall appoint an Engineer who shall represent him during 

the execution of the work and shall make all measurements and 
computations of the quantities and costs of work performed by the 
contractor for the purpose of determining the amount of compensa­ 
tion to be paid to the contractor, and who shall sign and issue all 
orders for extra work, and prepare and issue all statements or cer­ 
tificates on which monthly and final payments to the contractor are 
to be based, as authorized and provided for by the terms of this 
contract.

20 "And it is understood and agreed that wherever the term 
Engineer or Resident Engineer is used in the following sections of 
this contract and specifications, it shall mean the Chief Engineer of 
the Quebec Streams Commission or his representative the Resident 
Engineer, excepting in those sections of this contract entitled: 

Extra Work (the first two paragraphs only) and Time of 
Completion, and Manner and time of making monthly payments,

in which sections or portions thereof mentioned, the term 
30 Engineer shall mean, exclusively, the Engineer appointed by the 

Owner, as provided above." (Vol. VI, pp. 1086-1087).

It is apparent from these provisions of the contract that the autho­ 
rity of the Owner's engineer was extremely limited, as all matters relating 
to the proper construction of the dam, its safety and durability, were sub­ 
ject to the approval of the Quebec Streams Commission's Engineer, a Gov­ 
ernment representative, who was not under the control or direction of ap­ 
pellant.

40 The consideration to be paid to the contractor for his work and 
services, subject to the provisions hereinafter referred to, was the sum of 
$609,110.00 referred to as the "Principal Sum". (Vol. VI, p. 1097). The 
contract further provided that the "Principal Sum of money to be paid 
to the contractor as specified herein is based on an estimate that the quan­ 
tities of excavation, concrete masonrv, forms, reinforcing steel, and other 
classes of work required to completely construct the dam, and which have 
been calculated from the dimensions and depths to the bottom of the dam 
that are shown or indicated on the drawings referred to herein,'' will be as 
shown in the Schedule which then follows. (Vol. VI, pp. 1089, 1090).



__ Q __

In thecourt of It is then provided that: 
King's Bench

TheFactum "And said principal sum, plus the sums to be paid as pro- 
BefowthT* vided for herein for any authorized extra work which shall have 
fin?B0Bench^ been performed by the contractor shall be the limit of the liability 

of the Owner hereunder provided that the quantities of the various 
classes of work required to construct the dam shall prove to be the 
same as those given in the Schedule of quantities hereinbefore con- JQ 
tained.

"If, however, the quantities of any of the various classes of 
work required to build the dam shall be different from the corres­ 
ponding quantities hereinabove given, due to changes of design or 
depth of foundations from those used for calculating said quantities, 
there shall be added to or deducted from said principal sum accord­ 
ing to whether said quantities are increased or diminished, sums 
computed according to the following table and the net sum produced 
by these additions and deductions plus the value of any extra work 20 
performed by the contractor and computed in the manner hereinbe­ 
fore provided shall become the total amount to be paid by the Owner 
to the Contractor for all of the work performed by him under the 
terms of this contract." (Vol. VI, p. 1097).

Then follows a list of unit prices covering the different classes of 
work. (Vol. VI, pp. 1097-1098).

The obligation to pay additional compensation by reason of in­ 
creased quantities as set forth in the Contract (pp. 1090 and 1097) is, how- 30 
ever, limited by the following provision, namely: 

'' But it is expressly understood and agreed, however, that:

"(a). The quantities given in the foregoing table do not include 
any additional excavation which the Contractor may choose or be 
required to do for by-passing or handling the flow of the river 
during the construction of the dam; nor any materials and labour 
used for the construction of coffer dams; nor any other work or 
materials extraneous to the permanent structure of the dam itself 40 
which are required for the construction of the dam.

"(b). All of said additional excavation and extraneous work and 
materials are to be performed and furnished by the Contractor as 
a part of the work for which the said principal sum is to be the 
compensation." (Vol. VI p. 1090).

As regards "EXTRA WORK",, the contract provides that: 
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"It is understood and agreed by both parties hereto that In 'court of 
nothing shall be construed as extra work which is necessary for the King^_Bencl1 
proper completion of the work in accordance with the manifest in- Theractum 
tent of tlie drawings and specifications and that no claim for addi- Be£??tXSnt 
tional compensation for any work done under this contract shall be KinlVlench 
considered or allowed except as hereinafter provided unless such 1fco5timied) 5 
claim is made before the performance of the work in question. The 

^0 Engineer will issue a written order for the execution of legitimate 
extra work and no payments for extra work shall be made in the ab­ 
sence of such orders from the Engineer." (Vol. VI, p. 1091).

For such extra work as the Contractor shall perform by virtue of 
the written authorizations of the Engineer, the owner was required to pay 
(a) actual cost of labour and materials, plus (b) 37% of said labour and 
material costs to cover use of small tools, plant maintenance, overhead and 
superintendence, insurance etc, plus (c) rental for heavy tools and machi­ 
nery at rates specified. Vol. VI, p. 1092).

20
Changes in the design and dimensions of the dam are provided for 

by the following clause: 

"It is agreed between all parties hereto that the Owner shall 
have the right to make such changes in the design and dimensions of 
the dam as the Engineer may deem necessary or advisable and that 
changes shall not invalidate this contract. If such changes shall be 
made and they increase or decrease the quantities of the various 
classes of work required for the construction of the dam, the prin- 

30 cipal sum of money to be paid to the Contractor hereinafter spe­ 
cified, shall be correspondingly increased or decreased by amounts 
which shall be calculated and determined in the manner hereinafter 
provided." (Vol. VI, p. 1091).

Progress payments monthly during the progress of the work are 
provided for and the final payment is to be made within sixtv-three days 
from the date of completion as certified to by the Engineer. For the pur­ 
pose of establishing the amounts of the monthly payments, the contract 
provides that the Engineer shall be bound to consider that each branch of 

40 the work bears a certain definite relation to the total of the principal 
sum, in accordance with the table given. (Vol. VI, 1099).

All the work is required to be performed in a thorough and work­ 
manlike manner and in accordance with the terms of the Specifications 
which are attached to the contract (p.1086). These Specifications are divi­ 
ded into three sections, the first comprising General Conditions; (Vol. 
VI, pp. 1101-1105); the second dealing with Materials (pp. 1106-1111) ; and 
the third with the Contractor's Methods and Workmanship (pp. 1112-
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In the
Court of 

King's Bench

No. 3 
The Factual 
of Appellant 
Before the 
Court of 
King's Bench 
15 March 1935 
(Continued)

1133). Those portions of the Specifications which are relevant to the dif­ 
ferent claims involved in this appeal will be referred to in dealing with 
the various claims in detail.

The Engineer for the Owner who prepared the plans and specifica­ 
tions was Hardy S. Ferguson of New York City. D. W. O'Shea was the 
Resident Engineer on the work representing Mr. Ferguson and the owner. 
The Chief Egineer for the Quebec Streams Commissions was Olivier Le- -, Q 
febvre, and his representative on the work as Resident Engineer was L. 
A. DuBreuil.

As the quantities of the various classes of work in many cases ex­ 
ceeded the contract estimates, the amounts that became payable to the 
Contractor under the provisions of the contract were considerably more 
than the principal sum. The latter as already stated was $609,110.00 
whereas respondents have received as the price of this work the sum of 
$916,723.57. (Vol. I, p. 3).

20
Reference has already been made to the alternative basis of res­ 

pondents' action, the amount sued for being claimed either as the value 
of work done but not provided for in the contract or alternatively, as dam­ 
ages due by reason of erroneous and deceptive information alleged to 
have been supplied to the Contractor. (Vol. I, p. 3).

It must be noted at once that the conclusions contain no prayer for 
resiliation of the contract on the ground of fraud or for any other reason, 
and appellant respectfully submits that as there is a valid subsisting con­ 
tract which respondents have not repudiated and could not repudiate, no 30 
justification can possibly be found for maintaining respondents' action on 
the basis of a quantum meruit, and that the alternative claim by way of 
damages is equally unsound and could only be invoked in the exceptional 
case of fraud, which the evidence fails completely to substantiate.

The contract not being attacked, it stands as a whole and is indi­ 
visible. If respondents are to be paid any of the various items included in 
their demand, they must prove that they are payable under the terms of 
the contract, or that the amounts in question are due as damages for some 
breach, positive or negative, of some obligation or undertaking of appel- 40 
lant.

THE LAW GOVERNING GENERALLY BUILDING CONTRACTS
OF THIS NATURE.

Before proceeding to examine in detail the various items of res­ 
pondents' claim, appellant proposes to discuss the law governing generally 
building contracts of the nature of the contract in question in this case,



20

30

particularly as regards the claims advanced by respondents for additional 
compensation on the ground that the plans and specifications were in- 
accurate, erroneous and deceptive, and that the actual undertaking was 
one of different character and of much greater magnitude and expense 
than anticipated.

In dealing with claims of this nature our Courts have commonly 
referred to English authorities, and for a brief and concise statement of 
this law appellant refers to the following citations from Halsbury, Laws 
of England (2nd Edition), Vol. Ill, viz: 

No. 334:   "Neither the building owner or employer, nor the person 
who has taken out the quantities, impliedly warrants the cor­ 
rectness of the bills of quantities. If supplied to the builder in 
the ordinary course they do not amount to anything more than 
a representation of a belief by the sender that they are accu­ 
rate."

No. 324:   "If the building owner actually guarantees the accuracy 
of the bills of quantities, he is responsible to the builder for 
the consequences of any inaccuracy therein ; but in the ordinary 
course of business the building owner or his architect merely 
forwards the bills of quantities to the builder or contractor 
for the purpose of a tender. In these circumstances, should the 
quantities be inaccurate, the employer will be under no liability 
to a contractor who has tendered, though the inaccuracy in the 
bills of quantities may have induced the contractor to tender at 
an inadequate price to construct a complete work for a lump 
sum. And it makes no difference whether the bills of quantities 
are prepared by the architect or by an independent quantity

In "court of

surveyor "

No. 333 :

40

15 March 1935 
(Continued)

"If the building owner or employer has made fraudulent 
representations as to the facts which have deceived the person 
tendering and caused him to make a disadvantageous 'ten­ 

der, the builder or contractor who has had his tender accepted, 
on discovering the fraud, may rescind the contract, and, if ne- 
cessary, bring an action for the purpose. But if he continues to 
act upon the contract after he has discovered the fraud, he will 
be held to have abandoned his right to have it rescinded. In such 
circumstances in an action for work and labour done he cannot 
recover more than the contract price.

"But, although the right to have the contract rescinded 
may have been lost, the builder may still have a right of action 
of tort for deceit against the building owner in addition to his 
right to recover the price.
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In the
Court of 

King's Bench
No. 3

The Factum 
of Appellant 
Before the 
Court of 
King's Bench 
15 March 1935 
(Continued)

"It makes no difference whether the building owner or 
employer has made the representations himself, or whether 
they were made with his knowledge or privity by an agent."

No. 638:  "An architect or engineer does not warrant to the builder 
or contractor the practicability of the plans, drawings and spe­ 
cifications prepared by him, or of the temporary means of 
construction indicated in the specifications. It is the duty of 
the contractor to investigate these matters for himself, and any 
usage for him to rely on the drawings or specifications is bad. 
If he does not inquire into the matter he runs the risk of not 
being able to carry out the work, and must take the conse­ 
quences."

In the same sense Hudson on Building Contracts, 5th Edition, states 
at page 41: 

"There is no implied warranty to the builder of the correct­ 
ness of estimates and calculations made by the architect under his 
employment by the building Owner. The architect does no more than 
state them to be his bona-fide calculations and it is for the contrac­ 
tor to check them or not at his risk."

It must be borne in mind when considering the above authorities 
that the contracts there referred to are fixed price contracts. The rule of 
law excluding any implied warranty even in contracts of that nature would 
obviously apply with much greater force to a contract such as that now in 
question, inasmuch as the quantities therein mentioned are only estimates 
for the purpose of arriving at a principal sum, with provision for such 
principal sum being increased or decreased according as these estimates 
should prove too low or too high.

Reference has already been made to the case of the Nova Scotia 
Construction Company vs Quebec Streams Commission. That case resem­ 
bles the present one much more closely than any other that has been before 
our Courts, and the law as set out in that case is, it is submitted, clearly 
applicable to the present one.

The claim of the Nova Scotia Construction Company for additional 
compensation under a contract substantially of the same nature as that 
involved in this case came first before Honourable Mr. Justice Sevigny 
in the Superior Court at Quebec. His judgment is not reported, but appel­ 
lant quotes as follows from the Superior Court judgment as printed in the 
Appeal Case, viz: 

40
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"It goes without saying that a project of this kind required Intcoeurtof 
great precautions to be taken in order to ensure permanency and King^lBencl1 
avoid such catastrophies as have happened elsewhere due to ini- meraitum 
proper foundations and to defects. Before undertaking work of this Bfefore> t1h1nt 
kind, it is customary to make an examination of the premises, and 
formations of the soil; but such examination does not permit the 
person who lets the project to say with certainty that the contractor 

10 will meet with a safe and solid foundation at such a depth, that he 
will not discover any fault which may increase the difficulties of 
this work, that he will not find any obstacle resulting from under­ 
ground waters. There are surprises of this nature not only in the 
construction of dams, but in many other structures which are to 
repose upon foundations absolutely safe in the ground.

"On account of the character of such projects, the unit price 
contract is generally adopted because such a contract protects the 
proprietor and the contractor as well from unforeseen risks." (Vol. 

20 I, p. 46)

"The plans disclosed indications which might lead one to 
consider that the conditions to be encountered would be about as des­ 
cribed. But who could affirm that before having seen them 1? The 
Commission had not seen what was underground. To contend 
that it should have had that information goes to say that it 
would have made all the excavations and then said to the contrac­ 
tor for such works; my plans indicate the foundations precisely. 
The statute did not oblige it to take such precautions. Neither it 

30 nor the corporations which construct dams proceed in that manner. 
Plaintiff knew that. If it were unaware that conditions different to 
those indicated upon the plans might be met with, it could have 
easily learned that such was more the rule than the exception in pro­ 
jects of this kind, as experienced engineers in similar works testi­ 
fied at the trial." (Vol. I, p. 48).

The nature of the judgment of this Court (also unrenorted) will 
be apparent from the following extracts from the Notes of Chief Justice 
Lafontaine, as printed in the Case for the Supreme Court:  

40
"L'appelante commence par mettre de cote par sa seule 

volonte, le contrat intervenu entre les parties et fonde son action 
sur deux chefs d'action: 

1. "Le cout reel des travaux".... ..........

2. "Des dommages................ que 1'appelante aurait subis dans 1'execu­ 
tion de son contrat par suite d'omissions et d'inexactitudes dans les



  14

In the
Court of 

King's Bench
No. 3 

The Factnm 
of Appellant 
Before the 
Court of 
King's Bencb 
15 March 1935 
(Continued)

quantites mentionnees aux plans et devis qui aurait induit I'appe­ 
lante en erreur et ont ete la cause que le prix du contrat serait 
beaucoup trop bas. Aucun de ces deux chefs d'action ne peut etre 
admis. (Vol. I, p. 59).

"II serait vraiment etrange qu'un entrepreneur malheureux 
qui a demande un prix que I'evenement a demontre etre insuffisant, 
pourrait mettre de cote un contrat malencontreux et reclamer le 
prix de ses travaux en vertu d'un pretendu quasi-contrat de quan- 
tum-meruit ou d'enrichissement injuste qui ne peuvent avoir au-' 
cune application dans 1'espece." (Vol. I, p. 62).

"La condition essentielle d'une reclamation en dommages 
est la seule faute qui peut etre contractuelle ou delictuelle. Comme 
il s'agit ici de pretendues defectuosites dans les plans et devis, il 
faudrait pour qu'il y ait eu faute delictuelle supposer le dol ou la 
fraude de la part de la Commission, de ses officiers ou de ses em­ 
ployes. Or, rien de tel n'est alllegue." (Vol. I, p. 63).

"La faute contractuelle qui rendant passible de dommages- 
interets est le manquement d'une partie dans 1'execution d'un con­ 
trat. Dans un contrat d'entreprise, le debiteur c'est 1'entrepreneur 
(I'appelante) tenu a 1'execution des travaux et qui peut y man- 
quer de bien des manieres. Quart au maitre (1'intimee) sauf quel- 
ques droits accessoires de surveillance et de controle, son obligation 
est uniquement de payer le prix convenu. Aussi, ce n'est pas de cela 
dont I'appelante se plaint comme cause de dommages.

"Suivant I'appelante, les omissions et inexactitudes dans les 
plan et devis auraient vicie la formation du contrat, par une erreur 
de consentement. S'il en eta it ainsi, 1'entrepreneur aurait eu une 
action en resiliation du contrat, a laquelle il n'a pas juge a propos 
de recourir. Au contraire, I'appelante a laisse le contrat s'executer, 
le considerant ainsi absolument en existence et par une arriere-pen­ 
see, elle reclame de 1'intimee des dommages consistant dans la dif­ 
ference entre les prix unitaires qui ont ete convenus et le cout reel 
du contrat (Vol. I, pp. 63-64).

Mr. Justice Bond in the course of his notes says: 

"The conditions to be encountered could not be ascertained 
with certainty. In many places rivers and channels had to be un- 
watered before the nature of the bed could be definitely ascertain­ 
ed. The contract required the foundations to be carried to solid rock, 
and the elevations to be found on the various plans could not be 
relied upon as being conclusive in this respect." (Vol. I, pp. 84- 
85).

20

30

40
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}0 "Can a quantum meruit be recovered in this case? The con­ 
tract would first have to be set aside either by mutual consent of 
the parties or by a judgment." (p. 222).

"In the present case, the appellant asked for an extension of 
time, as provided in the contract, to complete the works, which was 
granted ; but never at any time did elect to have the contract can­ 
celled for the error alleged in the declaration, and the action itself 
does not pray for such cancellation by the Court. On the contrary, 
appellant elected to treat the contract as subsisting, claiming that it 

20 executed it in its entirety and cpnnot and does not now ask to avoid 
it. Art. 1000 C.C. Error, fraud and violence or fear are not causes 
of absolute nullity in contracts. They only give a right of action, 
or exception, to annul or rescind them" (pp. 222-223).

"What I have said disposes, in my opinion, of any attempt 
to recover for the alleged tort, under 1053 of the Code, because the 
information that the appellant says it relied upon was, in its view, 
grossly inaccurate and misleading. GRANT v. THE QUEEN (20 
Can. S. C. R. 297), under circumstances more favourable to the pe- 

30 titioner, was decided in favour of the Crown. It should have con­ 
sulted an experienced engineer to prepare a well considered ten­ 
der and understood that the honest belief and hope of the Respon­ 
dent 's Engineer did not amount to a warranty as to plans and 
quantities; forsooth, it could have found that out by reading, with 
enough attention to understand them, the specifications and stand­ 
ard form of contract placed at its disposal." (p. 224).

"We agree with the arguments and conclusions contained in 
the very able and complete judgment of the learned trial judge and 

40 the clear cut exposition of the law of contract of the Province of 
Quebec of the ex-Chief Justice Lafontaine and we concur when he 
says: "un principe primordial doit doininer tout le litige. C'est 
eelui de la securite des contrats qne les tribunaux ont pour mission 
de maintenir, et non pas de refaire pour venir en aide a un contrac- 
tant malheureux. " (p. 225).

It may be convenient to deal here with the considerations mention­ 
ed in the judgment on the question of the meaning and effect of the con-
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The trial Judge first makes three points :  

1. That this is not a contract "a forfait" to which Article 1690 ±Q 
C.C. applies ;

2. That the specifications form part of the contract, and

3. That the specifications contain a clause which is quoted in 
part and which appears at Vol. VI, p. 1106, line 20.

From these three points and other clauses of the contract, he infers 
that neither party was fully ^aware of the magnitude of the undertaking 
or of the difficulties to be encountered, but that the intention of the par- 20 
ties was that the contractor would complete the work and the owner would 
pay for it.

Leaving aside for the moment the other clauses of the contract, ap­ 
pellant fails to understand how either of the three considerations specially 
mentioned by the Trial Judge in any way lend support to those conclu­ 
sions.

Appellant does not rely on Article 1690 C.C. It relies on the terms 
of the contract. 30

Appellant admits that the specifications form part of the contract 
and relies on them.

The clause incompletely quoted alone requires to be discussed.

It is to be found in the second section of the specifications dealing 
with materials.

It reads as follows :   40

"It is the intention of these specifications to secure tho­ 
roughly first-class construction in both material and labour for 
each of the classes included herein without working an undue hard­ 
ship on the Contractor. The omission of any clause necessary to 
obtain the fulfilment of the intention and purposes of the specifi­ 
cations shall not preclude the Engineer from requiring any such 
omitted necessary requirements. Any work condemned by the En­ 
gineer due to imperfect workmanship or materials shall be replac­ 
ed by the Contractor at his own expense." (Vol. VI, p. 1106)
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All that it says, if the middle phrase which has no bearing on this 
question is omitted, is that the requirement that material and workman- 
ship be first class shall not be enforced so as to work undue hardship on 
the contractor but that any work condemned by the Engineer due to im- 
perfect workmanship or materials must be replaced by the contractor.

This, in the first place, deals only with the quality of the work and 
materials and nothing in this case turns on that.

It clearly makes the Engineer the final judge on these questions, as 
is quite natural. The "undue hardship" qualification of the "first class 
construction" rule is merely for his guidance.

Other clauses throughout the specifications and the contract clearly 
show that in these matters he is the final judge.

(See particularly pp. 1086, 1095, 1096, 1100, 1102 and 1104).

There is no appeal to the Court from his decision. That question is 
even excluded from the arbitration clause, p. 1096.

The Engineer is not an employee of the owner. He is the Govern­ 
ment Engineer.

The clause has therefore no bearing on the case and specially in no 
way supports the suggestion that the T3arties were not fully aware of what 
the work would be but intended that it should be all done and paid for.

As to the other clauses referred to generally by the Trial Judge, a> 
they are not mentioned, it is difficult to deal with them.

However, the extracts from the contract quoted in this f actum show 
conclusively that whether the parties were or were not aware of the magni­ 
tude or the difficulties of the work, it was understood that the work would 
be fully performed and that it would be paid for, but that it would be 
paid for as and only as in the contract provided, namely :

1. A lump sum ;

2. Unit prices for increased or decreased quantities ;

3. Cost and a percentage for extra work performed by virtue of a 
written authorization of the Engineer.

If the paragraph of the judgment, at line 12, page 1250, is comple­ 
ted by adding the words "as provided in the contract" the "Considerant" 
is undisputable, but the action should have been dismissed.

In 'court of King^_Bench

15 March 1935 
(Continued)
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Factum such a proposition.
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Before the
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15 March 1935 T IT ii-nu j.  (continued) cause he caused damages by his fault.

If the words remain as they arc*, they are meaningless. 10

The whole question is: On what basis should the work be paid for "? 
The contract basis or another basis'?

Part of the arbitration clause is next relied on. From it a first in­ 
ference is drawn to the effect that each party had the right to believe that 
the other one was intending to carry out the agreement as made.

That is admitted, and whether either party intended or not is im­ 
material, either party was bound to do so. 20

The other inference is that this clause tends to destroy the argu­ 
ment that respondent should have ceased work and sued to set aside the 
contract.

Appellant fails to understand that inference.

In view of the arbitration clause and the state of our law, either 
party could ask for arbitration on the matters mentioned in the arbitration 
clause and the other party had the choice to agree to arbitration or to insist 30 
on going before the Courts.

That the arbitration clause is not enforceable in our law, is, it is 
submitted, a well settled proposition.

The point need not, however, be discussed because there is no at­ 
tempt here to enforce the arbitration clause.

The question also whether or not the differences now submitted to 
the Court fell under the arbitration clause is, for the same reasons, of no 40 
importance now.

It is, however, submitted that, whether the matter was before the 
Court or before arbitration, neither of them could change or add to the 
contract.

They could only construe it and apply it to the law as it is and the 
facts as found.
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The argument of appellant to which the trial judge refers here was In 'court of 
that if the owner or the Engineer should call upon the contractor to do 
some work which the latter thought he was not bound to do under the con- 
tract and would not give him an extra order or a special contract, his only 
remedy was to refuse to do that work.

15 March 1935 
(Continued)

If he did it, when warned that he was called upon to do it for the 
10 contract price, he cannot find a basis legal or contractual to claim any­ 

thing but the contract price.

He holds no agreement save for the contract price and he cannot 
claim damages as "volenti non fit injuria."

A discussion about arbitration between the contractor and the Re­ 
sident Engineer in respect of a particular claim and from which nothing 
came, is also referred to.

20 Appellant fails to see how such an abortive discussion with someone 
without authority who mentioned the possibility of the protests of the con­ 
tractor against his decision being referred to arbitration can have any 
bearing on the case, particularly on this question of the right of the con­ 
tractor to do the work he claimed he was not bound to do, when ordered 
to do it as part of the contract, and afterwards claim on a quantum meruit.

The general propositions of appellant may be summarized as fol­ 
lows : 

30 It entered into a contract according to which a certain work had 
to be performed by the contractor to the satisfaction of the Government 
Engineer for a certain consideration.

There never was any other contract whatever.

Appellant is, therefore, under no contractual obligation whatever 
except for what it has thus promised to pay, and, except in respect of 
one claim (No. 11), it is not denied that it has fully discharged that obli­ 
gation. 

40
It can otherwise owe money to respondent only if it or its duly au­ 

thorized representative has committed a fault which has caused damage 
to respondent.

If respondent during the course of the work came to the conclusion 
that, for any reason whatever, the work that it was asked to perform or 
that it had to perform to complete the construction was not what it had 
agreed to do for the consideration mentioned, as if the Engineer did not 
give an extra order or the owner give a special contract, it could do nothing 
but refuse to proceed.



— 20 —

In 'court of

Bfeforethent

The learned Trial Judge distinguished the Nova Scotia case (pp. 
J253-1254) on the ground that the contract in that case contained a special 
clause to the effect that the contractor relied solely on his own knowledge 
of the character and topography of the country etc, and not on any in- 
formation given or supplied him by the owner. It is quite true that the 
contract in the Nova Scotia case did contain such a clause and that it is not 
found in the present case. Appellant submits, however, that the clause in 
question is only a statement of the general law, as appears from the au- IQ 
thorities cited above, and really added nothing to the contract. It is quite 
common in drafting a contract to insert ex abundante cautela clauses sta­ 
ting in part the general law, to avoid any doubt as to what such law is. The 
fact that the parties to the present contract did not follow such a course 
should not be construed as meaning that they intended to waive by impli­ 
cation the law governing such contracts. Moreover, a careful reading of 
the judgment of this Court in the Nova Scotia case, and the judgment of 
the Supreme Court confirming the same, will show that the presence of 
the clause in question was merely an additional reason for arriving at the 
judgments which were rendered, and that these judgments would have 20 
been the same regardless of this clause.

CLAIM 1 — HARDPAN EXCAVATION.

Amount claimed $21,601.45 — Amount allowed $13,919.45

References

Declaration — pars. 7 to 11 — Vol. I — pp. 3-4. 
Particulars — par. (b) — Vol. 1 — p. 20. 
Plea — par. 6 — Vol. I — pp. 23-24. 
Answer — par. 5 — Vol. I — p. 38. 
Contract — (Vol. VI — pp. 1090, 1097, 1098). 
Specifications — Section III — Vol. VI pp. 1112-1113. 
Correspondence — (in order of date)

P21 — Vol. VI, p. 1068 40

oU

P28 — 
P3 _

P29 — 
P30 _

p. 1069

p. 1080

p. 1081

p. 1083

p . 1084

Judgment — Vol. VI, pp. 1251-1252
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This claim relates to the excavation of a by-pass for the purpose of In 'co^ 
diverting the flow of the river from the main channel during the progress King_lBenc 
of the work. The contract plan B-2571 (Exhibit P-2, Volume of Plans) «»?«j™ 
indicated the proposed location of this by-pass across a point of land on Befo?ethen 
the north or east side of the Kiver. This point can readily be seen on the 
photograph Exhibit D-13 (Volume of Photographs) which shows a der- 
rick with steam-engine at work on the by-pass.

10
As the dam when completed would extend onto the north shore of

the river beyond the point where the by-pass was to be excavated, it fol­ 
lows that part of this by-pass would be within the line of dam. This portion 
of the excavation would, therefore, have been necessary even if some other 
method of handling the flow of the river had been adopted. The remainder 
of the excavation in the by-pass, ou+side the line of dam, was required only 
for the purpose of the by-pass. The photograph Exhibit D-14 (Volume of 
Photographs) shows the by-pass with the water flowing through the open­ 
ings in the dam which had not yet been closed.

20
The Specifications, Section III, provided as follows:—

"Should it be considered advisable to excavate a channel as 
indicated on Drawing No. B/2571 to by-pass the flow of the river 
during the time construction work is in progress in the main chan­ 
nel of the river, thus reducing the amount of cofferdam work re­ 
quired, the contractor shall perform all such excavation and other 
work directly involved at his own expense and cost, except for that 
part of the excavation which would be required for the dam if the 

30 channel was not excavated." (Vol. VI, pp. 1112-1113).

The provisions of the contract itself as already stated provided that 
the contract estimates did not include any additional excavation which 
the contractor might choose or be requirer1. to do for by-passing or hand­ 
ling the flow of the river during the construction of the dam, all of which 
was to be performed and furnished bv the contractor as a part of the work 
for which the principal sum was to be the compensation.

The contract contained estimates of both the earth and ledge excn-
40 vation in the different sections of the work (Vol. VI, p. 1089) and unit

prices were also specified to be used in case these contract estimates proved
to be either above or below the actual quantities (Vol. VI, pp. 1097-1098).

Respondents allege that a portion of the excavation in the by-pass 
within the line of dam, for which they were paid at the rate provided for 
earth excavation ($1.23 per cu. yd.) was not earth but "hardpan", which 
they say is in no way similar to earth excavation and is invariably reco­ 
gnized as in a class by itself. For this they claim two-thirds of the rock
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price namely $2.90 per cu. yd., an arbitrary figure not found in the list of 
unit prices. They alleged further that the excavation in the by-pass out­ 
side the line of dam was also in part hardpan and additional compensa­ 
tion for this excavation was claimed in the Superior Court. By the judg­ 
ment of that Court, however, respondents were allowed additional com­ 
pensation only for the so-called "hardpan" excavation within the line of 
dam, and the claim for similar compensation for such excavation else­ 
where in the by-pass was disallowed and is not in issue on the present ap- ]_Q 
peal.

The judgment states that only two classes of excavation are pro­ 
vided for by the contract, earth and rock; that in fact a considerable 
quantity of hard-pan had to be excavated, which cost more than earth 
excavation; that if respondents were obliged to meet this extra expense 
on account of something unforeseen, an undue hardship would be im­ 
posed on them. This is a reference to the clause in Section II of the Spe­ 
cifications already mentioned, which relates altogether to the quality of 
materials and labour to be employed and seems to have no application 20 
whatsoever to the cost or nature of the excavation that might be encoun­ 
tered.

The judgment finds that "hardpan" excavation in that portion 
of the by-pass within the line of dam amounted to 8,335 cu. yds., for which 
respondents were allowed $2.90 per cu. yd. instead of the $1.23 which they 
had already received. This additional allowance of $1.67 per cu. yd. 
amounted to $13,919.45, the sum awarded respondents under this item.

Previous to the signing of the contract, while the Bishop Company 30 
were considering their tender, D. W. O 'Shea, afterwards Resident Engi­ 
neer for appellant, accompanied Mr. Bishop and one of his engineers 
McEwen on a visit to the site. (Vol. I, pp. 56-57; 171-172; Vol. Ill, pp. 
499-500). They saw there the location of five test pits that had been dug 
in the proposed by-pass area, and which are indicated by red circles on 
the Plan B/2444 (Exhibit P-2). On this occasion Mr. 6'Shea informed 
these parties in answer to their inquiries that the test-pits had disclosed an 
overlying burden of loam and sand to a varying depth of five to eight 
feet, and then gravel and occasional boulders right down to the depth of 
the pits. (Vol. Ill, p. 499). Respondents have suggested that Mr. O'Shea 40 
deliberately misrepresented on this occasion the character of the excava­ 
tion that was met with in these test-pits. Any such suggestion was, how­ 
ever, completely disproved by the evidence of Messrs. Bergeron and La- 
rocque, both of whom actually worked at the digging of the test-pits in 
the by-pass. These witnesses corroborated Mr. O'Shea in every particular 
as to the nature of the excavation actually met with in these test-pits. 
(Vol. IV, pp. 731-733; 737-739). Further corroboration is given by Mr. 
Kenny (Vol. V, pp. 918-919).
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Moreover, the Trial Judge has found that in fact there was no mis- In 'court of 
representation and that appellant's Engineer disclosed to respondent exac- Ktos^_Bencl1 
tly what the test-pits indicated. (Vol. VI, p. 1252 3rd paragraph).-1 v J. o -L / of Appellant 

Before the
It is submitted that, having fairly disclosed to respondent Bishop, 

in answer to inquiries by him, the nature of the excavation as shown by 1 (5co5ti!nu1ed) 5 
the test-pits, appellant was under no further obligation. If the general 

~LQ character of the excavation in the by-pass in any way differed from what 
these tests-pits showed, the risk was on the contractor. If he thought a suf­ 
ficient number of test-pits had not been dug, or that they had not been 
carried deep enough, he was at liberty to make further explorations him­ 
self. The plan shows the depth of each pit.

Under the terms of the contract respondent Bishop was entitled to 
additional compensation, at the unit prices specified, only in case the es­ 
timated quantity of either earth or rock excavation exceeded the contract 
estimates, due to changes of design or depth of foundation. (Vol. VI, p. 

20 1097). Respondents have in fact been paid on this basis, but now seek to 
obtain further compensation apart from and beyond the contract, on the 
ground that part of the excavation, although not rock, was more difficult 
to handle than they expected. This is an attempt to be paid on a basis of 
quantum meruit for carrying out a necessary part of the work, which res­ 
pondent Bishop by the contract had undertaken to do for a certain price.

Unless respondents can show that the material in question was im­ 
properly classified as earth when it should have been classified as rock, the 
only possible way of bringing this claim under the contract would be as an 

30 extra. In order to claim for any work as an extra, however, a written order 
of the engineer was necessary and no such written order was ever ob­ 
tained.

Unless the contract is rescinded for some cause for which contracts 
may be avoided under our Civil Code (which is not asked for) respondents 
cannot claim on any other basis than the contract. The contract provid­ 
ed for the construction of the dam for the principal sum alone, plus au­ 
thorized extras, with the proviso that if the quantity of earth excavation 
or the quantity of rock excavation exceeded the estimates for either of the 

40 reasons mentioned, additional compensation at the unit prices specified 
would be allowed. Whenever either of these classes of excavation ran over 
the estimates respondents received extra compensation in accordance with 
the contract. It is submitted respectfully that no further amount can be 
allowed. What respondents are really asking is that the Court should add 
a new clause to the contract providing a rate of $2.90 per cu. yd. for 
hardpan excavation.

Respondents' claim in this connection is based upon the allegation 
contained in paragraph 9 of the declaration that hardpan excavation "is in-
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In 'court of variably recognized as in a class by itself". It is suggested that the evidence
King^Benci ^^ no£ j us^jfy ally $uc}i assertion. On the contrary we have heard the

TheFactnm greatest possible difference of opinion as to what really constitutes hard-
Bfeft.ret££nt pan. No one suggested that it is rock — for one it is earth that requires

picking — for another it is earth that requires blasting — for another it 
1fcIo£ttanea) B is something very hard like a macadamized road, etc. (Vol. I, p. 141; 

Vol. II, pp. 223, 388 ; Vol. Ill, pp. 426, 724-725, 865-866 ; Vol. V, pp. 908, 
1020-1021, 1026, 1031, 1035). JQ

One thing at least clearly appears, namely, that hardpan is not rock. 
It is defined in the Imperial Dictionary, Blackie (1908) Vol. II p. 465 as 
"the hard stratum of earth that lies below the soil." Webster, (Edition 
1911) p. 982 defines it as "any earth not popularly recognized as rock 
through which it is hard to dig or to make excavation of any sort". The 
word in its common acceptance would appear from these definitions to 
constitute "EARTH" and therefore under the contract should be paid 
for at the earth price.

20
Respondents seek consolation by suggesting that Mr. Ferguson pro­ 

mised arbitration. In the first place Mr Ferguson had no authority to 
make any such promise and in the second place he did not do so — all he 
did was to transmit Bishop's demand, to appellant (Exhibit P30, Vol. VI, 
p. 1084). This can have no possible bearing upon the outcome of the pre­ 
sent litigation.

This excavation was carried out during the winter of 1928-29, the 
contractor using for this purpose equipment known as an " orange-peel buc­ 
ket". The evidence establishes that the soil in the by-pass was naturally wet 30 
(as witness the fact that the test-pits when being dug filled with water 
after a depth of about 8 feet Vol. II pp. 422-423; Vol. IV, pp. 732, 739), 
and when frozen would naturally be all the harder for this reason. The 
orange-peel, digging from the top, was always working in frozen mate­ 
rial. Mr. Chadwick, who has had a very wide experience in construction 
work, has stated that in his opinion an orange-peel would not handle fro­ 
zen material without dynamite (Vol. IV, p. 849). Mr. Boyd has testified 
to the same effect (Vol. IV, p. 770). Mention of this is made, as one 
of respondent's complaints is that they had to dynamite this material.

40
It was not to be expected that the whole of this excavation, which 

ran to a very considerable quantity, would be of the same sort. At one spot, 
where Professor Mailhot, a witness for respondents, was taken, a small 
quantity of very hard material was undoubtedly met with. Mr. Macintosh 
estimates the quantity of this at 50 cu. yds. (Vol. Ill, pp. 624-625). It is 
significant that Professor Mailhot was only taken to this one spot. (Vol. I, 
p. 143).
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The Trial Judge has accepted as correct respondents' estimate as Intcoeurtof 
to the amount of this so-called "hardpan" excavation within the line of Kins^_Bench 
dam. According to this estimate, which is hased on the evidence of Mr. TneFactum 
Reiffenstein, the quantity of this material was 8,335 cubic yards. It may 
be pointed out, however, that Reiffenstein himself was forced to admit on 
cross-examination that his calculations were "arbitrary and not accurate." 
(Vol. II, p. 395).

Respondents have contended that the presence in the contract of an 
arbitration clause lends siipport in some way to the claim they now ad­ 
vance. It is apparently suggested that the arbitrators in their discretion 
had power to compel appellant to pay more than the contract specified and 
that because no arbitration was held, the Court now has the same power. 
It is respectfully submitted that this contention is quite unfoimded. The 
question as to whether respondents ire or are not entitled to an increased 
allowance in respect of the so-called hardpan excavation is not solved or 
made easier of solution by reason of the fact that the contract contained 

20 & clause whereby the parties agreed to submit certain disputes to arbitra­ 
tion. We will deal with this matter of arbitration later on in this Factum.

Respondents in the Superior Coi:rt, cited three cases interpreting 
Article 1690 of the Civil Code. (Quinlan vs Redmond, 39 S. C. 145; Ber- 
iiier vs Les Debardeurs etc. 50 S. C. 337; and Legault vs Lallemand, 4 R. J. 
245). Appellant believes that Article 1690 has no bearing upon the present 
contract, in view of the precise provisions in the contract dealing with ex­ 
tra work and payment therefor. Mr. Justice Bond in his Notes of Judgment 
in Appeal in the Nova Scotia case states that a contract of this nature 

30 with a series of unit prices is not a contract a for fait to which that Article 
applies. With this view appellant is quite in agreement.

Respondents also referred to the case of Wilson vs City of Hull, 48 
S. C. 238. The City of Hull case was also mentioned and discussed in the 
Xova Scotia case, and it was held not to lie applicable. See Notes of Lafon- 
taine C. J. The facts in the Hull case were quite different, as appears 
from the following quotation from the judgment of Archibald C. J.:—

"There can be no question in this case that when the plain- 
40 tiff contracted he contracted in respect to earth excavation. There 

is also no question that the defendant knew that the excavation was 
in rock for a large part. The proof, I think, sufficiently establishes 
that, as the plans were made, any contractor would judge that they 
indicated earth excavation. In any event, there is no question that 
the contractor did consider that the excavation was earth. Neither 
can there be any question that the defendant knew that the con­ 
tractor was contracting in respect to earth excavation. The esti­ 
mate of the defendant for the work was greatly in excess of the
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In 'courtof plaintiff's contract. The defendant knew that the plaintiff valued
King^Bencn r()ck excavation at $3. and at $3 for rock excavation the price of

Therartum plaintiff's tender would have been greatly exceeded." (p. 240).
of Appellant 
Before the
K°n?s°Bencii Respondents in their written argument produced in the Court below 
1 (5coInticnu1ed) B rested their claim fairly and squarely on the contract. The action must 

therefore, be treated as one ex contractu. This being so, under the rule of 
law laid down by the Supreme Court in the Nova Scotia case, (1933) S. C. 10 
R. 220, respondents are not entitled to payment on any other basis than 
that provided for in the contract.

The only reason given by the learned Trial Judge for condemning 
appellant in connection with this hardpan claim is the "undue hardship" 
clause in the specifications, which has already been dealt with. It may, 
therefore, be fairly assumed that but for the presence of this clause the 
claim in respect of hardpan would have been rejected. The learned Trial 
Judge, however, apparently believed that this clause was sufficient autho­ 
rity for either an arbitrator or the Court to order payment of moneys that 20 
were not due under the terms of the contract.

The authorities already cited in this Factum dispose effectually, it 
is submitted, of any suggestion that the amount sued for could be award­ 
ed ex delicto, in the absence of fraud on the part of appellant, which the 
judgment of the Superior Court, in disposing of this claim, expressly ne­ 
gatives, (p. 1252).

CLAIM 2 — HANDLING OP APPELLANT'S LOGS.
30 

Amount claimed $4,103.72 — Amount allowed $2,995.42

References

Declaration — pars. 12-14 — Vol. I pp. 4-5. 
Plea — par. 7 — Vol. I pp. 24-25. 
Specifications — Section I Vol. VI, p. 1103. 
Correspondence — (in order of date)

P4 _ Vol. VI p. 1133.
D2 — " " p. 1136. 40
P5 — " " p. 1137.
P31 — " " p. 1139.
P32 — " " p. 1140.
P33 — " "p. 1141.
P34 — " "p. 1141.
P35 — " "p. 1142.
P36 — " "p. 1144.

Judgment — Vol. VI pp. 1252-1253.
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As provision had to be made for the passing of logs coming down In 'oo 
the Lievre River during the summer of 1929 while the work was in pro- Klng_ 
gress, the specifications contained the following provision : —

Before the
"He (the contractor) shall so construct the cofferdams and 

arrange and manage the construction of the works as a whole that ^continued) 
logs of the owner, or of others, may be driven by the site of the dam 

^0 during the driving season of 1929, and shall provide such opportu­ 
nities for the passing of logs as the construction work may render 
necessary." (Vol. VI, p. 1103).

The item of respondents' claim now under consideration is based 
on the following complaints : —

(a). That appellant neglected and refused to carry out the driving 
of logs past the site of the works, and

20 (b). That appellant failed to place the necessary booms to accom­ 
plish the drive. (Declaration par. 13, vol. I, pp. 4-5).

Respondents for these reasons claimed the cost of a boom supplied 
by respondent Bishop and alleged expense of handling logs at certain times, 
plus 37% of such outlay to cover overhead and profit.

By the judgment the actual outlay claimed by respondents, viz, 
$2,995.42 was allowed. The additional 37 % claimed for profit and over­ 
head etc was rejected.

30
Respondent Bishop in this connection assumed two obligations :

(1). To so construct the cofferdams and arrange and manage the 
construction of the works as a whole that logs of the owner, or 
of others might be driven by the site of the dam during the 
driving season of 1929, and

(2). To provide such opportunities for the passing of the logs as
the construction work might render necessary. 

40
It is to be noted that appellant assumed no contractual obligations 

whatsoever towards respondent in respect of driving logs.

It is submitted that the first of the two obligations of respondent 
above referred to compelled it either to leave an opening in the works of 
sufficient width for the logs to pass, or else to excavate a by-pass sufficient 
for that purpose, and that the second of these two obligations can only 
mean that respondent obligated itself to provide whatever booms or other 
equipment were necessary to guide the logs into the opening in the dam 
or by-pass as the case might be.
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In ''court of The evidence shows that when the first of the cofferdam cribs (No.
King-sBencH

pendent itself constructed a boom out of logs taken from the river and 
stretched it from the north shore of the river to the outer point of this first

Kin?s°Bencn crib, for the purpose of preventing the logs from piling against the crib. 
This would be an indication that respondent at that time expected itself 
to provide whatever protection the works required, as no request was made 
to appellant to do so. This boom so placed by respondent did not properly 
fulfill the object for which it was intended. It was not heavy enough also •*• 
it was too short, and it was placed too much across the current. The re­ 
sult was that the logs got under it. Mr. Coyle, appellant's Superintendent 
on the river, warned the Bishop Company's employees of this when the 
boom was first placed. (Vol. Ill, pp. 625-626; Vol. IV, pp. 839-840).

Respondent did not provide booms of any kind to keep the logs away 
from cribs 2 and 3 and never requested appellant to do so, nor to hold 
back the logs while these two cribs were being placed. (Vol. Ill, pp. 626- 
627; Vol. IV, pp. 833, 840-842). These three cribs (Nos 1, 2 and 3) were 2Q 
all on the north side of the river, and the logs were then passing down the 
channel on the south side where crib No. 4 was placed later (see Plan P-37) . 
No logs had been run through the by-ioass as yet. As no boom was provided 
to protect cribs 2 and 3 some logs naturally piled up against them. Surely 
if respondent was inconvenienced in any way on this account it had no 
one but itself to blame.

Mr. T. F. Kenny, an official of the appellant Company, corrobo­ 
rated by Mr. Coyle and Mr. O 'Shea, has testified that on July 25th, 1929, 
he told Mr. Lindskog, Respondent's Superintendent that appellant would qn 
co-operate with him by lending booms when requested, or by holding back 
the logs when requested. (Vol. Ill, p. 529; Vol. IV, p. 845 ; Vol. V, pp. 922- 
923). Shortly after this, on or about August 2nd, appellant was requested 
to hold back the logs while Crib No. 4 was being placed. (Vol. IV, p. 
841). This was the only request of that nature that was made. To carry out 
this reqtiest, appellant at its own expense stretched a boom across the river 
half a mile above the dam and held back the logs until respondent sent 
word to let the logs come. (Vol. Ill, p. 628; Vol. IV, p. 841). During the 
time that the logs were held up apnellant loaned respondent a boom at 
respondent's request, which was stretched across the river immediately ^Q 
above the dam to divert the logs into the by-pass. (Vol. IV, pp. 841-842).

Obviously a proper boom would have kept the logs back and pre­ 
vented them from interfering with the cofferdam work. This assertion can­ 
not be questioned, because the diversion of logs to the by-pass was carried 
out without difficulty by means of a boom, as already explained. There­ 
fore, in view of the great stress laid by respondents on interference from 
logs, the question of who was really responsible for placing the boom be-
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comes one of great importance. As already stated, appellant under the con- In 'court of 
tract assumed no express obligation in this respect. If any such obligation King_iBench 
existed, it must be assumed, and it is respectfully submitted that there is TheFakum 
nothing in the contract to justify any such assumption. However, even if Before thent 
the obligation did rest on appellant to provide this boom, which is not ad- KingVLnch 
initted, surely appellant could not have been expected to do this without 1 (5contimied)S 
being asked. When respondent's work reached the stage where it required 

10 protection, surely respondent should have so notified appellant. Instead of 
that, what does respondent do ? When the first crib was completed about 
June 15th, 1929, respondent proceeded to put it in position without any 
notice to appellant and without any request that the logs be held back. 
Moreover, as already explained, respondent itself made up a boom out of 
logs taken from the river and located it with a view of protecting this 
crib. If, as it turned out, this boom was too light and did not properly fulfill 
the function for which it was intended, surely no blame can be attributed 
to appellant.

The report of respondent's Superintendent Lindskog, dated June 
2® 17th, copy of which was forwarded to appellant by letter of June 20th 

(Exhibit P-4, Vol. VI, pp. 1133-1134) states that he (Lindskog) "is afraid 
of what will happen when the river is turned into the by-pass" and he 
suggested that a feeding-gap should be installed at the lower end of La" 
des Sables, about five miles above the work. There is no suggestion in 
this report, or in respondent's letter to appellant enclosing same, that ap­ 
pellant was expected to provide booms in the river to protect the coffer­ 
dam cribs and to direct the logs down that part of the channel that was still 
free and unobstructed. On the contrary, respondent was proceeding at 

„„ this time to do this work itself, without reference to appellant. Respon­ 
dents' vouchers under Claim 2 contain an item in June 1929 for material, 
amounting to $90.86. (Vol. VI, p. 1177). Reference to Mr Griffiths' evi­ 
dence shows that this expenditure, all or practically all of which was for 
booms, was all previous to the 15th of June. (Vol. Ill, pp. 477-479).

Respondents' witness Clarke. who appears to have had considerable 
experience in hydro-electric construction work, when asked whether he 
had had any experience with logs becoming enmeshed in the faces of cof­ 
ferdam cribs, replied:—

,^ "No, I never had. We have worked on a good many rivers where 
there were a great many logs, but there was always some arrange­ 
ment made to keep them back when we were driving the coffers, 
or to take them around in some other way." (Vol. V, p. 1033).

If it was a dangerous and unusual practice to attempt to build a coffer­ 
dam while logs were passing, then respondent should have diverted the logs 
to the by-pass before the cofferdam work was commenced in the river, or 
else arranged with appellant to hold back the logs earlier than it did.

The logs did in fact jam in the by-pass on August 21st, as Lindskog 
had anticipated. This jam did not, however, inconvenience respondent in 
the prosecution of the work, as there was no work in progress in the by-
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Inr*courtpf __ pass at that time. (Vol. II, p. 305). Moreover, this jam was broken up by 
appellant's men under Coyle's direction, except that the Bishop Company 
loaned the services of a powder man for half a day, as appellant did not 
wish to take the responsibility of dynamiting so close to respondent's 
work. (Vol. IV, pp. 843-844).

15 March 19 35
(continued) Appellant respectfully submits that the Water-Course Act invoked 

by respondents before the Superior Court (especially S. 44 providing that 
a person driving logs is responsible for the damage he may cause) has no 10 
application to the present circumstances, where a Company such as ap­ 
pellant brings in a contractor to do certain work and provides by the con­ 
tract for the passing of logs during the period of construction.

The decision of the learned Trial Judge to allow this claim has been 
influenced apparently by the two letters from appellant to respondent, 
P32 and P34 (Vol. VI, pp. 1140-1141), the judgment stating that the po­ 
sition taken by appellant in these two letters is untenable. By these letters 
appellant notified respondent that respondent would be held liable for 
any additional expense incurred by appellant in driving its logs during the 20 
season of 1929. No such claim was ever formulated by appellant and even 
if the contentions of appellant as contained in these two letters are based 
on a misunderstanding of the effect of the provisions of the specifica­ 
tions above quoted, it is hard to see what effect this would have on 
the claim now under consideration in view of the circumstances above set 
forth.

CLAIM 3 — INCREASED COST OF COFFERDAMS & UN- 
WATERING.

Amount claimed $148,857.15 — Amount allowed $117,025.22. 30
References

Declaration — pars. 15-20 — Vol. I, pp. 5-7 
Particulars — pars, (d) & (e) — "' "pp. 20-21. 
Plea — par. 8 — " "pp. 25-27. 
Answer — pars. 12-19 — " " p. 39. 
Contract — — " VI, p. 1090. 
Specifications — Section III Vol. VI, pp. 1112-1113. 
Correspondence — (in order of date)

P41 — Vol. VI — p. 1145. 40
P6 — " " — p. 1146.
P7 — " " — p. 1147.
P42 _ « " — p. 1150.
D3 _ « » _ p . 1151.
P44 _ « « _ p. H54.
P43 _ « « _ p. 1155.
P45 _ « « _ p . H58.
P46 _ " " — p . 1159.
P47 _ « « _ p. H60.
P48 — " " _ p . 1174. 

Judgment — Vol. VI. pp. 1253-1255.
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This is the most important of the various claims advanced by res- In 'court of 
pendents and is based upon the allegation that whereas the contract plans KuigHBench 
and certain information alleged to have been communicated to respondent TheFaitum 
Bishop showed the river bottom at the location of the cofferdams as bare Before ulent 
ledge rock, there was in fact an overburden several feet in depth compos- 
ed of boulders, gravel and other similar material, which caused the un- 
watering operations to be much more expensive than anticipated, and that 

10 this work was made still more difficult and expensive by the large num­ 
bers of logs coming down the river.

To this appellant pleaded that the contract plans indicated merely 
the elevations at which it was expected to find ledge rock at certain points 
on the river bottom, in accordance with the best information which appel­ 
lant had been able to obtain by means of soundings, and that when the river 
channel was unwatered such elevations proved to be substantially correct; 
that the trouble and difficulty encountered by respondent in unwatering 
the site was due to the manner in which the cofferdams were constructed; 

20 and that appellant at all times brought down its logs in a reasonable and 
proper manner so as to inconveniencerespondent to the least possible ex­ 
tent.

Appellant had already pleaded generally that any information fur­ 
nished respondent apart from that contained in the contract, plans and 
specifications was supplied in answer to inquiries by respondent and was 
the best information that the appellant had respecting the matters in ques­ 
tion ; that such information had been obtained by soundings, as was well 
known to respondent, and was at best only an indication in a general way 

30 of the conditions that might exist; that same was given in good faith and 
without intent to deceive, but that respondent was not entitled to rely upon 
any information so given as constituting any representation or warranty, 
and that it rested with respondent to determine or assume the character 
and nature of the work.

Respondents allege that the actual cost of the cofferdams and un­ 
watering operations was $197,907.35, on which credit is given appellant 
for $49,050.20 stated to have been received on account. (Vol. I, p. 7). As 
a matter of fact these so-called payments on account were merely pro- 

40 gress payments based upon the assumption required by the contract to be 
made that cofferdam work and excavation of by-pass channel outside the 
line of dam represented 10.7% of the principal sum. (Vol. VI, p. 1099). 
Respondents have proceeded throughout on the assumption that the prin­ 
cipal sum is divisible between the different branches of the work in the 
proportions stated in the contract for calculating monthly progress pay­ 
ments, and that respondents are entitled to claim on a quantum meruit 
basis for each separate branch of the work upon which they claim to have 
suffered a loss. The appellant has al\vavs contested the legality of this 
basis (See Plea — par. 25, Vol. I, pp. 36-37).
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In the
Co -_ __ 

King's Bench

No. 3

court of The judgment of the Superior Court allows respondents $117,075.22.
ing's Bench rm • ' , n , -> i r- n ^ TI 11 -• , • ,-i

Iliis represents the actual cost of the work as alleged by respondents, with 
an Edition °f 15 % f°r overhead instead of 37% as claimed, after deduct- 
ing the payment for which credit is given. (Declaration, par. 19, Vol. I, p. 
7; Judgment, Vol. VI, p. 1255). With regard to the 15% allowed for over- 
head, the judgment states:—

"This, however, cannot be considered work done under the -.Q 
contract, but damages. This being the case, plaintiff is not entitled 
to the 37% profit provided by the contract, but it is admitted at the 
argument that in this event an allowance of 15% for overhead would 
be fair." (Vol. VI, p. 1255).

Appellant submits with respect that the learned Trial Judge is in 
error in stating that appellant conceded 15% for overhead. This is not 
correct. Appellant made no such admission.

The only indication as to the nature of the river bottom is to be on 
found on the Plan B/2444 (Exhibit P-2, Volume of Plans). This plan pur­ 
ports to show the elevation of ledge rock at certain points on the bed of 
the river indicated on the plan by an elevation followed by the letter 
U L". In addition to this alleged representation on the contract plan, res­ 
pondent in its action also relied upon certain information alleged to have 
been communicated verbally to respondent, namely:—

"That the bottom of the river upon which the works were to 
be constructed was unobstructed ledge rock; that the character of 
the bed of the river being ledge would present no difficulties in un- C>Q 
watering or placing of cofferdams." (Vol. I, p. 20).

However, no evidence was offered by respondents in support of these al­ 
leged verbal representations.

In order to unwater the site two cofferdams were necessary, one 
above and one below the location of the dam. During the time the site was 
unwatered the flow of the river was diverted into the by-pass. Construc­ 
tion work on the upstream cofferdam was begun in March 1929, with 
the south abutment crib. The position of the abutment cribs, one on each 49 
bank, and of the five other cribs on the bed of the river is shown on the 
Plan P-37. Work was started during the same month on the north abutment 
crib and both these cribs were filled with rock from the excavation work 
then in progress.

The first crib to be placed in the bed of the river (No. 1 on Exhi­ 
bit P-37) was built upstream, brought down by cables, and lowered into 
position next to the north abutment crib on June 14th. As logs were coming
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down the river at this time, respondent constructed a log boom for the Intcoeurtof 
purpose of keeping the logs away from this crib. This boom did not func- KingBench 
tion properly, however, for the reasons already explained, and logs got 
underneath and lodged against the crib. (Vol. Ill, p. 626). Crib No. 2 was 
also built upstream and was lowered into position on July 16th. This crib Iin|' a0Bencn 
was not in line with the abutments, it was "upstream quite a bit". (Vol. 
III, p. 632). No. 3 Crib was placed on July 22nd, and it lodged in a dis- 

10 torted shape as some of the tackle broke. (Vol. Ill, p. 633). The contrac­ 
tor made no provision to keep logs away from these cribs, and consequen­ 
tly some of them, as might be expected, lodged against the cribs already 
in position, while others went down the channel near the south shore when 
Crib No. 4 was afterwards placed. At this time the water had not yet been 
diverted to the by-pass.

On July 31st respondent's Superintendent Lindskog requested that 
the logs be held back, as he intended to place Crib No. 4, which would 
completely block the river channel. This request was promptly acted on by 

20 appellant and no logs were allowed to come down the river until August 
21st. During this period respondent borrowed from Coyle, appellant's Ri­ 
ver Superintendent, a boom which was placed across the river upstream 
of the cofferdam to deflect the logs into the by-pass.

On August 2nd Crib No. 4 was lowered into position, thus blocking 
the channel from one shore to the other. Following the placing of these 
cribs, sheeting consisting of wooden planks intended to form the face of 
the cofferdam, was placed in position, but without the aid of a diver, al­ 
though the difficulty that was met with in placing this sheeting and the 

30 position which it assumed would indicate obstructions on the bed of the 
river. This planking gradually assumed a slanting position, so that as it 
approached from each shore a decided "V" shape occurred (Vol. Ill, p. 
636).

Following the placing of the sheeting, toe-filling was dumped into 
the river above the same. This consisted largely of broken rock. (Vol. Ill, 
p. 637). On or about September 13th the toe-filling was considered com­ 
plete and pumping was begun, but it was soon evident that a consider­ 
able leakage existed in the vicinity of Cribs 1 and 3 and the north abut- 

40 meiit crib. In the latter part of September a diver was sent down for the 
first time.

For history of cofferdam operations see Macintosh, Vol. Ill, pp. 
625-643; Coyle, Vol. IV, pp. 839-842, also Lindskog, Vol. II, pp. 225-246 
and Steele, Vol. II, pp. 323-328.

On September 26th Mr. Bishop wired to Mr. Ferguson in New York 
asking him to come up as soon as possible (Exhibit P41, Vol. VI, p. 1145). 
Mr. Ferguson came up and on October 2nd met Mr. Bishop on the work.
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Intcoeurtot Following this interview, Mr. Bishop prepared a memorandum (Exhibit 
King-Bench P7, Vol. VI, p. 1147) which he sent to Mr. Ferguson. This memorandum 

concluded with a list of the "instructions" which, according to Bishop, Fer- 
guson had given. Upon receipt of this memorandum, Mr. Perguson re-

r plied by letter (Exhibit 1)3, Vol. VI, p. 1151), taking exception to this me- 
1(6c^nticnu1ed) 5 moraiidum and denying that any instructions or orders had been given by 

him. Mr. Ferguson stated that at Bishop's request, he had merely made 
suggestions as to what in his opinion should be done to overcome the diffi- in 
culty. (Vol. IV, pp. 690-691). It must be borne in mind that the coffer­ 
dams and unwatering were solely the contractor's responsibility. The con­ 
tract plans did not indicate any required location for the cofferdams and 
the contractor was free to place them where he liked. Ferguson as En­ 
gineer had no authority to give orders or directions to the contractor as 
to these cofferdams.

During the month of October the contractor constructed another 
crib, not originally intended, shown on P37 as No. 5. Later steel sheet piling 
was placed on the north side of the river where the leakage was worst and 20 
by the end of November the unwatering was completed, although the leak­ 
age was never altogether overcome.

Respondent seeks to trace the cause of its unwatering difficulties 
buck to the alleged errors on the Plan B2444. The suggestion is that before 
entering into the contract a material fact known, or which should have 
been known to Mr. Ferguson, appellant's engineer (viz: — the presence of 
some overburden on the river bed above ledge rock) was not shown on this 
Plan. It appears from the evidence of Mr. Stratton, who made the pre­ 
liminary investigation of conditions for Mr. Ferguson, that although this 30 
plan did not disclose any overburden on the river bed at this place, some 
overburden nevertheless existed, when he made his soundings in 1927. Mr. 
Stratton explained that he was sent there to find the elevation of ledge 
rock and that he did so to the best of his ability, sometimes forcing his 
sounding rod through one or two feet of material overlying the rock. (Vol. 
III. pp. 587-590). It is submitted, however, that respondent has failed en­ 
tirely to establish that the leakage which developed in the cofferdams can 
be attributed to this fact.

The only information disclosed by the Plan B-2444 (Exhibit P-2) 40 
which could possibly have had any bearing on the cofferdam was the ele­ 
vation of ledge rock on a line across the river approximately along the 
base of the cribs of the upper cofferdam. (Evidence of Bishop, Vol. I, pp. 
127-129). These elevations, six in number, were given at points twenty feet 
apart on this one line, marked "Sta. 4 ... K". There was nothing on the 
plan to indicate that any borings had been taken, and, therefore, any per­ 
son familiar with plans would know that they had been obtained by soun­ 
dings. (Evidence of Lefebvre, Vol. V, p. 911). It seems clear from the evi-
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deuce of those witnesses who have had experience in building cofferdams In 'court of 
that this meagre information was by no means sufficient to properly con- 
struct a cofferdam. (Vol. IV, pp. 672-673 ; 762-768 ; 850-855, Vol. V pp. 909-

Respondent 's declaration in this connection can only be interpreted 
as an allegation that respondent Bishop, having been furnished with infor- 

10 mation sufficient to build the cofferdam went ahead and built it on the 
strength of this information which later proved to be incorrect. During 
the course of the respondents' evidence in chief, this stand was modified 
to the extent that it appeared respondents' Engineer Reiffenstein had 
himself taken soundings ten feet apart along four lines across the river 
(Vol. II. pp. 397-398) and Linskog the Superintendent states that the cribs 
were built from the information obtained by Reiffenstein. (Vol. II, p. 
226).

Afterwards respondents' carpenter-foreman L'Heureux, who was 
20 actually in charge of the building and placing of the cofferdam cribs, took 

soundings himself over the whole area every foot or two. (Vol. V, p. 991). 
There can be no doubt, therefore, that respondents' employees explored 
the river bottom at the place where they decided to put their cofferdam 
much more carefully than appellant had pretended to. L'Heureux states 
that he found ledge over the whole area (Vol. V, p. 997) and Strat- 
ton can hardly be blamed for finding ledge every twenty feet, when L'Heu­ 
reux found it every foot or two. Either respondent did not at the time rely 
on Stratton's work at all, as he now says he did, or else the soundings 
taken by his own officials confirmed the results of Stratton's work. 

30
The appellant produced a considerable amount of evidence to show 

how a cofferdam should be built and what information it is necessary to 
obtain before commencing it. (Vol. Ill, pp. 514-517 ; A7ol. IV, pp. 672-73 ; 
762-768; 850-855; Vol. V, pp. 909-910). Briefly stated this evidence es­ 
tablishes that careful soundings are necessary of the bed of the river two 
or three feet apart and cribs are then built to conform to the river bot­ 
tom. These cribs are placed in position and filled with rock to keep them 
from floating away. Then in front of these cribs and between them, sheet­ 
ing is placed, the bottom of each piece being also shaped to fit the river 

40 bottom. This sheeting is placed in position with the aid of a diver, who ve­ 
rifies that each piece fits properly in its correct place. Then toe-fill, usually 
sand and gravel (Vol. IV, p. 857), is dumped in front of the sheeting to 
assist in making the cofferdam water-tight.

Attention is directed particularly to the evidence of Olivier Le- 
febvre, whose answer when asked if the indications on the Plan B-2444 
were sufficient for the construction of a cofferdam, is as follows : —

of Appellant 
Before the 
Court of 
King's Bench
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In 'court of "Ces renseignements sont indicateurs d'une facou general e 
Kmg^Bench je cg ^ Qj mi ^ g >aftendi'e quant a la hauteur du lit de la ri-

No. 3 . % •*• . . A 11^1-TheFactum viere, mais je ne pense pas que persomie ne s aventure a construire 
|eft»Stib5nt un batardeau destine a s'ajuster au lit de la riviere en se limitant

aux renseignements fournis sur la ligne de sondage en question."
15Marchl935 /^-r n TT (\C\C\\ 03- 
(Continued) (Vol. V, p. 909).

This evidence, however, became very much less important after res- JQ 
pendent's witness L'Heureux gave his evidence in rebuttal. (Vol. V, pp. 
978-1003, especially pp. 979-980; 982; 988; 990-991 and 997-998). This man 
was carpenter-foreman for respondent Bishop and was in direct charge 
of the building and placing of the cofferdam cribs and also the sheeting. 
He has testified that although he was furnished with the results of Mr. 
Reiffenstein's soundings, he went ahead on his own responsibility, and him­ 
self took careful soundings 2 or 3 feet apart over the whole area occupied 
by the cribs "to find out exactly how the bottom was" (Vol. V, p. 980, 1. 
1), and states that he found ledge ror?k. This is the only direct evidence 
as to what the nature of the river bed under the cofferdam was in 1929. It 20 
was not possible to tell where ledge rock actually was at the location of the 
upper cofferdam, even after the umvatering. (Evidence of Bishop, Vol. 
I, p. 129).

What now is the importance of the Plan B-2444 ? Respondents can 
hardly claim to have been deceived by something that they never relied 
upon or paid any attention to. L'Heureux, who built and placed the cribs 
and the sheeting, was given the results of Reiffenstein's soundings, but 
there is nothing to show that he ever heard of the Plan B-2444.

It is not for appellant to account for the leakage which developed 30 
in the cofferdam. The burden of proof is on respondents to establish what 
the cause of the leakage was and that this cause was attributable to appel­ 
lant. Respondents have failed entirely to do this. The Court can do no 
more than guess as the real cause or causes. It is quite impossible on the 
evidence to assign a definite cause or reason. A number of possible explan­ 
ations suggest themselves, any one of which might well have been suffi­ 
cient to have caused the trouble, viz : —

(a) The sheeting was placed without a diver being employed.
(Vol. II, p. 236). 40

(b) The sheeting though apparently resting on ledge was batter­ 
ed down by the use of a ram or wood log hammer. (Vol. V, 
pp. 984-985 and 997).

(c) The proximity of the rock spoil bank 011 the north shore, 
which may have permited the water to penetrate direct to 
the sheeting. (Vol. Ill, pp. 630-631; 643).
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(d) The manner in which the sheeting met in the middle (V 
Shape). (Vol. IV, p. 857).

(e) The fact that No. 2 Crib occupied the place where No. 3 was 
intended to be. (Vol. II, p. 287: Vol. V, pp. 992-993).v ' ' ' 7 r-J. x

Another point to be borne in mind is that the Plan B-2444 con- 
10 tained no information as to the nature of the river bed at the location 

where the sheeting and toe-filling were placed. The contour lines shown 
on the plan were merely sketched in between the soundings and do not 
represent the results of any actual survey. (Vol. Ill, p. 590). If the al­ 
leged overburden played any part in the leakage, it would seem likely that 
it must have been the overburden that was below the toe-fill and the sheet­ 
ing, as the water was supposed to be stopped there.

Respondents attempted to show that Crib No. 3 was pushed down 
the river from its intended position by the logs. This story was clearly 

20 refuted by the evidence of Macintosh and Bergeron, confirmed to some 
extent by Dubreuil. (Vol. Ill, pp. 633-634; Vol. IV, pp. 740-742; Vol. V, 
p. 893). Whether or not the material upon which the cribs actually rested 
was or was not leaky is really of no importance, in view of the fact that 
the cribs held. The cribs themselves were not intended to be water-tight. 
Whether or not there was any overburden under the cribs is really not 
important.

When we come to the areas where the overburden might be of some 
significance — under the sheet-piling or under the toe-fill — we find there 

30 is no representation on our plan as to what was there. It is not enough for 
respondent to prove that there was an overburden, he must prove that it was 
a leaky overburden, that we deceived him as to this fact, that this overbur­ 
den was at some place where it might cause leakage, as for instance, un­ 
der the sheeting or under the toe-fill, and that there was no other cause 
for the leakage. On all these matters which are vital, not only to this claim, 
but to many of the other claims involved in this action, respondent's evi­ 
dence falls far short of making the proof required.

Respondent in the Court below when dealing with this claim devoted 
40 itself largely to an onslaught on Messrs. Ferguson and Stratton, which it 

is submitted is most unjust and entirely unwarranted by the evi­ 
dence. Respondents would have the Court believe that as far back as 
1927 when the first preliminary surveys were made, Mr. Ferguson had 
already evolved a sinister plan to deceive the contractor who would ul­ 
timately carry out this work and induce him to tender at an unreasonably 
low price. This suggestion seems to us utterly fantastic and we are con­ 
fident that the Court will disregard it entirely.

Int|0eurtof

The Factum

i5Marclil935 
(Continued)
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It cannot be disputed that the Plan B-2444 did not disclose the over- 
j)urjeil) whatever it was, that Mr. Stratton found in making his investiga­ 
tion in 1927. In view of this, it is suggested that the really important points 
to be decided under this claim are whether or not respondent was entitled 
to assume, as it claims to have done, that the river bottom was bare ledge 

continued) rock ; whether respondent was in fact misled, as it claims, by any insuf­ 
ficiency of the plan in this; respect and, if so, what part, if any, of the delay 
and expense in the completion of the cofferdam can be attributed to this JQ 
cause. The evidence of 1'Heureux has, it is submitted, destroyed in a few 
words all the elaborate attempts of respondents to trace the cause of their 
troubles to the fact that the plan in question showed no overburden at 
the location of the dam.

Another complaint of respondents to which they attribute in part 
the delay in unwatering the site is that appellant's logs coming down the 
river during June, July and August, 1930, impeded the progress of the 
work. It is alleged that these logs jammed against the main cofferdam se­ 
riously displacing portions of it, increasing the difficulty and volume of 20 
the work and making it impossible to place the necessary sheeting in the 
usual way. (Declaration par. 18, Vol. I, p. 6). This question has been 
dealt with fully in this factum under Claim 2, to which appellant now 
refers.

It will be remembered that only one request was made to appellant 
to hold back its logs. This was on or about August 2nd, and it was prompt­
ly complied with. (A7ol. IV, p. 841). The suggestion that had been made 
by respondents' Superintendent on or about June 20th (Vol. VI, pp. 1133 
and 1134) was that Appellant should construct a "feeding-gap" some 
miles above the dam. This would have involved an alteration in appellant's 
customary method of driving logs throughout the whole course of the work 
and particularly while the by-pass was open. This request was clearly un­ 
justified and in any event referred to contemplated difficulties in the by- 
r>ass, and had no direct connection with the damage allegedly caused by 
the logs in the latter part of July.

Moreover, even if appellant was in any way responsible for the mis- 
TDlacing of the cribs or for logs being entangled in the cribs, the contractor 
knew of the trouble at the time and he should not have proceeded with 
the work until any possible danger from this cause had been removed. Res­ 
pondent contends that logs remained under or around the cribs and later 
caused the leakage, although this has been disproved by its own witness 
1'Heureux, who was in charge of the building and placing of the cribs, and 
who stated that all the logs which stuck in the cribs were removed. (Vol. 
V. p. 997).

According to the learned Trial Judge 
expense are due to two things : —

30

40

all the delay, trouble and
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" (a) The fact that instead of ledge at the line on the ground where Intcoeurtof 
the dam was to be built, there was pervious overburden. King-aBend

No. 3 
The Factum

"(b) The damage caused by the defendant's logs." (Vol. VI, p. &*Sfi£*
IOP;P;\ Court of 
1/00). King's Bench

15 March 1935 
(Continued)

It is respectfully submitted that whatever the contract plan may 
jo have shown at the line of dam and whatever inference the contractor may 

have been entitled to draw from such plan as to the nature of the river 
bottom where the dam was to be constructed, is of no importance in deal­ 
ing with this claim. The nature of the river bottom where the dam was ac­ 
tually constructed could bear only on Claim 7, Excavating Frozen Material 
in river bed.

Respondents' own witnesses are unable to state definitely the de­ 
gree of responsibility which they attribute to the logs and to the overbur­ 
den respectively, although both Bishop himself and his Superintendent 

20 Lindskog believe the logs constituted the greatest impediment. (Vol. I, p. 
151; Vol. II, pp. 236, 306-307). It is respectfully submitted that should 
appellant be exculpated as regards either one of these grounds of com­ 
plaint, the claim of respondents in respect of unwatering must fail, as 
there would then be no means of ascertaining the proportion of the dam­ 
age resulting from the other ground.

In the judgment criticism is directed at Mr. Stratton in connection 
with the soundings which he took. It is stated that he selected the line of 
dam and that respondent was entitled to assume that the river bottom 

30 was ledge, as shown on the plan, (Vol. VI, pp. 1254-1255). It should be 
pointed out, however, that Mr. Stratton's soundings where the dam was 
ultimately located are of no importance in dealing with this claim, which 
lias to do with the cofferdams further upstream and not the dam itself.

The only line of soundings taken by Stratton which might be of 
importance in dealing with this claim is the line upstream from the dam 
itself, crossing the river approximately where the lower sides of the coffer­ 
dam cribs afterwards rested. (Vol. I, pp. 127-128). There is no evidence as 
to what overburden, if any, there actually proved to be along this line. 

40 (Vol. I, p. 129). Assuming that there was in fact some overburden there, 
what difference would it have made if respondent had been told of its 
presence? It was not important as regards the cribs which were after­ 
wards placed along this line. The cribs were not intended to be water­ 
tight .The water was not stopped by the cribs and therefore as long as 
they held (as they did) the overburden under them was of no importance.

Reference is also made in the judgment in dealing with this claim 
to a clause in the contract providing that any core-drilling or grouting
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Intcoeurtof of seams in the ledge beneath the dam would be considered as extra work.
(Y°L VI ' p - 1?54^' The Jud&'ment states that this clause plainly showed 
that both parties considered that the substance beneath the dam was ledge.
Surely no such construction can possibly be placed upon this clause, which 
can only mean that the foundation was to be carried to ledge, as clearly in- 
dicated elsewhere in the specifications. Moreover, it is respectfully sub­ 
mitted that the ledge beneath the dam has nothing whatever to do with 
the merits of the present claim relating as it does, to cofferdams, which the JQ 
contractor was free to place at any position he thought most desirable.

Eespondents in the Court below, relied on the case of Dumont and 
Fraser, 19 D.L. R. 104. The Privy Council, which affirmed the judgment 
of the Supreme Court of Canada but on different grounds, decided mere­ 
ly that a certain person was an employee of certain lumbering companies 
and not an independent contractor, and the action against one of these 
companies was maintained. In the Lower Courts an important question 
had been discussed, namely, whether "persons using water-courses for the 
transmission of timber are liable for damage done to the property of ri- 20 
parian owners without proof of negligence," to use the words of the Privy 
Council. The respondent Bishop not being a riparian proprietor, however, 
this case is of no assistance in establishing his contention that appellant 
drove its logs in an improper manner.

Xor does the case of MacLaren vs Electric Reduction Company de­ 
cided by the Supreme Court and reported in 1926 (D. L. R.) Vol. IV, 
p. 593, also cited by respondents, seem to have any relevancy to the pre­ 
sent case. The claim of the appellant Company in that appeal was that 
respondent's dam had the effect of slowing up the current and thereby 30 
rendered the driving of appellant 's logs more difficult and expensive. This 
contention was rejected on the ground that the slowing up of the current 
was a necessary consequence of the construction and operation of respon­ 
dents' dam, and because appellant having itself sold the waterpower in 
question to respondent, could not complain of the unavoidable consequences 
of the development thereafter made by respondent.

Respondents also relied on the decision of the House of Lords in 
the case of Pearson vs City of Dublin, 1907 A. C. p. 51. This case was 
fully discussed in the Nova Scotia case both by Sevigny J. in the Superior 40 
Court and in appeal by Lafontaine C. J. and Bond J. The facts of the Du­ 
blin case are quite different from those of the present case, as well as 
from the Nova Scotia case. The principle of law enunciated by the House 
of Lords which is, no doubt, applicable in Quebec as elsewhere, is as fol­ 
lows : —

"A clause in a contract by which the employer disclaims res­ 
ponsibility for the accuracy of the statements and information with
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which he supplies the contractor and as to which the contractor is In 'court of
to satisfy himself, does not confer exemption on the employer for Km«^_Bencb
statements fraudulently or recklessly made by the employer or his me rectum
agent.... the contract truly construed contemplated honesty on both Befor?thent
sides and protected only against honest mistakes." King*s°Bench

15 March 1935 
(Continued)

CLAIM 4 — COFFERDAM AT LOWER END OF BY-PASS.
10

Amount claimed — $5,563.50

This claim has been disallowed and is no longer in issue. 

CLAIM 5 — ADDITIONAL COST OF ROCK EXCAVATION.

Amount claimed $35,100.74 — Amount allowed $35,100.74.

References 
20

Declaration — pars. 22-26 — Vol. I, pp. 8-9 
Plea, — par. 10 — Vol. I, pp. 28-29 
Contract — Vol. VI, pp. 1089-1091

— Vol. VI, pp. 1097-1098
Specifications — Section III — Vol. VI, pp. 1113-1114 
Correspondence (in order of date) 

P8 _ Vol. VI — p. 1135 
P9 — Vol. VI — p. 1143

30 Judgment — Vol. VI, pp. 1255-1256

Respondents allege in support of this item that whereas the con­ 
tract estimate for rock excavation was 8060 cu. yds., the actual quantity 
was 21,564 cu. yds. an increase of 167.5% ; that respondent Bishop was re­ 
quired by the engineer to remove the greater part of this excess quantity 
of rock in thin layers, a method of procedure entirely different from and 
more costly than the ordinary and usual methods of rock excavation. The 
total cost of the rock excavation, allowing for overhead and profit of 37%, 
is stated to be $122,417.39. upon whi^h amount respondent gives credit for 

40 $87,316.65, leaving a balance^ of $35,100.74.

The judgment disposes of this important claim with one short pa­ 
ragraph reading as follows:—

"The next item is for additional rock excavation, according 
to plaintiff's proof this extra work was done and Ferguson at p. 
363 expected that it would have to be done. This with the 37% 
profits amounts to $122,417.39 on account of which has been paid 
$87,316.65, leaving a balance of $35,100.74 for which the plaintiff is 
entitled to judgment." (Vol. VI, pp. 1255-1256).
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n coeurtof It was contemplated by the contract that the quantities of rock ex- 
ng_s_Benc eava^on an(j other classes of work might exceed the contract estimates, 

and the contract provided for the additional compensation which respon- 
dent was to receive in said event. Respondent has received the full amount 
payable under the contract in this connection and it is respectfully submit- 
ted that no possible basis exists on which a further allowance can be 
granted.

lu building contracts of this nature it is usual to provide for the -*•" 
contractor's compensation by means of unit prices, because though it is 
possible to determine in advance the result to be achieved, that is to say, 
the elevation to which the crest of the work must be carried, the design 
it should have and the kind of foundation upon which the structure is to 
be erected, it is not possible to ascertain in advance the depth to which it 
is necessary to go for a safe foundation, and therefore it is not possible to 
determine in advance the volume of work required to achieve the intend­ 
ed result. It can easily be realized what a great increase there may be in 
the volume of the work by having to excavate to a greater depth. The ~~ 
volume of the work increases the deeper it is necessary to go down to se­ 
cure a solid foundation, and as all such work requires a foundation of 
sound rock, free from all cracks, seams or other objectionable features, 
it is not possible to determine the actual volume of the work until the ex­ 
cavation has been completed.

The complaint of respondents now under consideration is that the 
quantities were larger than those mentioned in the contract. That is a thing 
which was provided for, if not as an unavoidable happening, at least as 
a possible one, and it was expressly agreed that if it did happen the addi- on 
tional quantities would be paid for at the unit prices mentioned in the con­ 
tract. (Vol. VI, pp. 1089-1091; 1097-1098). How then can respondent get 
around the terms of the contract, if the contract is still in force "?

A claim of exactly the same nature by the contractor in the Nova 
Scotia case was disallowed by this Court and by the Supreme Court of 
Canada. Chief Justice Lafontaine in his Notes of Judgment in that case, 
as printed for the Supreme Court, (Vol. I, p. 61) says: —

"Le plus grand reproche fait par Pappelante est relatif aux ^Q 
quantites indiquees aux plan et devis dans les excavations et les 
travaux en beton, qui ont ete plus considerables que celles mention- 
nees dans la cedule, Pappelante, a certains endroits, ayant ete obli­ 
gee de creuser a des profondeurs plus considerables que celles 
indiquees aux plans. Or, pour tons ceux qui ont quelque experience 
dans des travaux semblables, I 'elevation a la base ne pent etre indi- 
quee d'une maniere certaine parce qu'il peut arriver qu'en creusant 
le lit d'une riviere 1'on rencontre des formations geologiques neces-
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sitant des excavations considerables. L 'entrepreneur d'ailleurs, en In "court of 
etait averti non seulement par la nature du contrat a executer, mais KtasHBencl1 
par cette clause du contrat que les fondations des barrages devaient Theractum 
etre appuyees sur le roc solide, la clause 21 disant : — Befo?e tSS"*

"In preparing the foundation for the concrete structure the 
"bed rock is to be excavated so as to remove all disintegrated rock 

10 "and to reach the sound bed rock free from cracks, seams or other 
"objectionable features."

"C'est la, d'ailleurs, une regie elementaire en matiere de barrages 
et digues, afin d 'assurer la solidite des travaux et prevenir les de­ 
teriorations qui pourraient se faire a la longue par la force de 
penetration de 1'eau."

The contract in the present case contains a clause very similar to 
that quoted in the above citation. (See Vol. VI, p. 1114).

20
Bernier J. in his Notes in the Nova Scotia case states : —

"L'un des grands sujets de plainte de la demanderesse con- 
siste en ce que les quantites out etc trouvees plus considerables que 
celles prevues dans les cedules. Cependant, il va de soi, que cela etait 
necessairement prevu comme pouvant arriver; si cela arrivait, il 
semble que tout le benefice en serait pour la demanderesse, si les 
prix nientionnes dans sa soumission etaicnt suffisants pour ne pas 
travailler a perte." (Vol. I, p. 70). 

30
The learned Trial Judge in this case appears to have been under the 

impression that this additional excavation was extra work for which res­ 
pondent has not been paid. The judgment states that "this extra work 
was done" and then goes on to state that respondent is entitled to judg­ 
ment for the amount awarded. Further, the judgment allows respondents 
for this item not only their actual outlay as claimed, but also an additional 
37% for overhead, etc, as provided in the contract for extra work. There 
is no attempt to distinguish the judgment in the Nova Scotia case which 
was cited by appellant in the Court below 

40
Reference is made in the judgment to the evidence of Mr. Ferguson 

at page 363 of the depositions, now to be found at page 716 of Vol. IV, 
where it is said: —

"A...... I knew very well we could not determine the bottom of the
excavation and the masonry at every point, and the contract was 
expressly framed, or drafted, or there was provision in the contract

Court of 
King' s Bench
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for such conditions that wherever there was excess excavation or 
masonry above certain specified amounts it was to be paid for at 
certain prices"..

"Q. — But, you say the contract was expressly framed, or drafted, 
with the definite idea in view that if excavation was to go deeper 
there would be provision to pay for it "? 
A.— Yes." 10

This obviously means merely that the unit prices were to be followed if 
the excavation ran over the contract estimate, but it is quoted in support 
of the decision of the Trial Judge to allow a much greater amount.

A further complaint is made by respondents as to the manner in 
which this excavation was required to be done. They say that instead of 
being allowed to blast out rock to a depth of six to ten feet or more at a 
time, they were compelled by the engineer to remove same in layers of 
two or three feet, (See Vol. I, pp. 113, 158, 185; Vol. II, p. 254). In this 20 
connection the Specifications provide : —

"The method of handling the excavation may be of any ap­ 
proved means, but care must be taken that the depth excavated 
shall.be no lower than necessarv to conform as clearly as possible to 
the lines shown on the drawings and provide satisfactory foun­ 
dations." (Vol. VI, p. 1113)

"In preparing foundations for the concrete structures all 
loose ledge must be removed and the excavation carried to a suffi- 30 
cient depth to provide a safe foundation and remove all open seams 
or joints which might at some time permit leakage or act as sliding 
planes.

All this work shall be done as directed by and to the satisfaction of 
the Engineer." (Vol. VI, p. 1114).

The work was to be done unde ; the supervision and to the satisfac­ 
tion of the Chief Engineer of the Quebec Streams Commission, Mr. Oli- 
vier Lefebvre (Vol. VI, p. 1086). Mr. Lefebvre was examined as a witness 40 
and stated that the method of rock excavation ordered by him was a pro­ 
per and usual one, and the method adopted by him in other contracts car­ 
ried out for the Commission. (Vol. V. pp. 910-911). He states that even 
if he had known in advance the exact depth to which the rock excavation 
had to be carried, he would nevertheless have had the work done in exactly 
the same way.

Respondent, having agreed to do the work as Mr. Lefebvre should 
direct, could not refuse to carry out the directions received on the ground
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that the requirements of the engineer were unreasonable, even if such had In 'court ot 
been the case. See Halsbury (2nd Edition) Vol. Ill, No. 415:— King-sBenc

No. 3 
The Factum

"The contractor must obey all reasonable directions or in­ 
structions given to him by the architect or engineer, and if he has 
expressly contracted to carry out the work in accordance with such 
directions and instructions, he must obey them even if they are un- 

10 reasonable, as there is no warranty or implied contract on the part 
of the employer that the architect or engineer will only give such 
directions are are reasonable"

It is respectfully submitted that this effectually disposes of respondent's 
claim in this connection.

CLAIM 6 — HANDLING & TRIMMING EXCAVATED ROCK.

Amount claimed — $1,990.82 
20

This item wTas disallowed by the judgment and is no longer in issue.

CLAIM 7 — EXCAVATING FROZEN MATERIAL IN RIVER BED.

Amount claimed — $2,530.32 — Amount allowed $2,530.32. 

References.

declaration — pars. 28-30 — Vol. I, p. 10.
30 Plea — par. 12 — " "pp. 29-30

Judgment — Vol. VI, p. 1256

This claim is based on the allegation that the whole of the river 
bottom at the dam site is shown on the contract plans as being ledge rock; 
that as a matter of fact an overburden of boulders, stones, gravel, sand and 
other material was found overlying the rock which had to be taken out in 
winter in a frozen condition and that this was as difficult and as expen­ 
sive to handle as rock.

40 Respondent received payment for this work at the earth price, $1.23, 
whereas the rock price was $4.35. The difference between the earth price 
and the rock price, viz: $3.12 per cu. yd. is now claimed for 811 cu. yds. 
of material, amounting to $2,530.32.

The learned Trial Judge allowed this item and as a reason for so 
doing invokes the clause in the Specifications already referred to which 
provided that the intention was to secure thoroughly first class construc­ 
tion in both material and labour without working an undue hardship on



In the
Court of 

King's Bench

No. 3
The Factum 
of Appellant 
Before the 
Court of 
King's Bench 
15 March 1935 
(Continued)

the contractor. The Court states that it was an undue hardship on the 
contractor to allow him only the earth price, as this material was frozen.

Respondents in the Court below argued that this was not work 
which had been contracted for at all (inasmuch as the plans showed no 
earth excavation in the river bed) and that, therefore, respondents were 
entitled to be paid for this work on a basis of quantum meruit. Appel­ 
lant respectfully submits that this work was included within the work con- JQ 
tracted to be done by respondent and that the clause respecting first-class 
workmanship and materials has no bearing whatsoever on this item of 
respondents' claim.

Under the contract respondent was to do all work of every kind ne­ 
cessary for the complete construction of the dam (Vol. VI, p. 1085), and 
this for the principal sum plus authorized extras and additional amounts 
in the events mentioned, including inter alia if the quantities of earth or 
ledge excavation exceeded the estimates. This material was not ledge; there­ 
fore either respondent was obliged to do this work as part of the principal 20 
sum, or if he is entitled to any extra allowance, it is the only other allowance 
mentioned, namely, $1.23 per cu. yd. for excess earth excavation, which he 
has received. This was in accordance with the contract, which is the law 
of the parties. This excavation may have been somewhat difficult because 
the material to be excavated was frozen, but it is submitted that no legal 
basis exists for increasing the contract price on this account.

CLAIM 8 — WORK UNDER WINTER CONDITIONS.

Amount claimed $96,832.45 —Amount allowed $81,282.62. 30 
Declaration — pars. 31-32 — Vol. I, pp. 10-11. 
Plea — par. 13 — " " pp. 30-31. 
Judgment — Vol. VI p. 1256.

The basis of this claim is that on account of the increased quanti­ 
ties of work required to be done beyond what was shown by the contract 
estimates, and because of the delay in unwatering the site due, as is al­ 
leged, to wrong information regarding the nature of the river bottom, res­ 
pondent was forced to do nearly 15,000 cu. yds. of concrete and to erect 
nearly 500 tons of structural steel work under winter conditions instead of 40 
under what respondent call the "normal working season conditions con­ 
templated by the contract."

According to respondents' figures the actual additional cost of this 
work by reason of being carried out in winter was $70,680.62. This amount 
is claimed, plus 37% for overhead and profit. The judgment allows the 
additional cost as calculated by respondent, plus 15% additional instead
of 37%.
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The construction of the dam in question was commenced on Octo- In 'court of 
ber 1st, 1928 and was required to be completed by March 31st, 1930. The Kta*l!_Bencl1 
work was, therefore to be spread over a period of eighteen months, with meFactum 
winter conditions prevailing ordinarily for about two-thirds of that pe- Bfefo??thtnt 
riod. Respondent, therefore, must have expected that a large amount of Kin|*s°Bencii 
this work would require to be done in winter, but nevertheless under the 1fo?Sfisnn1ed) 5 
contract the unit prices for excess quantities of concrete and structural 

10 steel work were not in any way made dependent upon the weather that 
would be encountered.

Claims of this nature have frequently been made by contractors in 
other law-suits. In Vinet vs Canadian Light & Power Company (54 S. C. 
134), a claim by a contractor for additional compensation based upon the 
allegation that, in consequence of the increased quantity of work, he was 
obliged to do in winter what was contemplated would be done in summer 
\vas dismissed by the Court of Review.

20 In Fraster Brace Company vs Canadian Light & Power Company 
(49 S. C. 145), one of the claims of plaintiff (the contractor) was for 
additional compensation for work done in winter. This claim was dismis­ 
sed. See Charbonneau J. at p. 151 as follows:—

" Supposing the plaintiffs were of opinion that those delays 
were attributable to the company defendant, their only recourse 
was to refuse to do the work for the same unit price, stop their men 
and if the company did not agree to a new scale of prices, give up 
the job altogether and claim damages.' ' 

30
Halsbury's Laws of England — (2nd Edition) Volume 3, No. 399 

says :—

"The occurrence of bad weather or storms is also no excuse 
for non-performance of the contract, as the variableness of the cli­ 
mate is a circumstance which must have been in the contemplation 
of the parties when the contract was made."

See in the same sense Hudson on Building Contracts (5th Edition) 
40 p . 228.

The winter work for which additional compensation is claimed un­ 
der this item is stated to be due (1) to increased quantities of work and 
(2) to delays in unwatering. The present claim is, therefore, an accessory 
one and under no circumstances can it be allowed unless the appellant 
should be held responsible for the delays on which it is based. However, 
even if the conclusion should be reached that the delays complained of, or 
some of them, should be attributed to appellant, it does not follow that this 
accessory claim, which is so remote, should be maintained. (C.C. 1074).
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Intconrtof

of Appellant 
Before the 
Court of 
King's Bencb

The point might also be made at this place that the victim of a 
f colltract is not entitled in addition to his actual loss to an addi- 

tion of either 37% as claimed by respondent or 15% as allowed by the

CLAIM 9 — OVERCHARGE ON LOGS.

Amount claimed $7,220.19 — Amount allowed $1,429.60

This claim is not based on the construction contract, but on an 
alleged verbal agreement for the sale of lumber by appellant to respondent 
Bishop. The judgment of the Superior Court has maintained this claim 
in part, and as it bears no relation to the other claims now at issue, and 
is based upon matters of fact, appellant now states that it acquiesces in 
the judgment as regards this item.

CLAIM 10 — CEMENT FOR APRON IN BY-PASS CHANNEL

Amount claimed $2,239.46 — Amount allowed $1,879.83.

10

20

References.

Declaration 
Plea. — 
Judgment

par. 35 
par. 15

Vol. I, p. 12
Vol. I, pp. 31-32
Vol. VI, p. 1256

The Engineer, under the authority conferred on him by the con­ 
tract to make changes in the design and dimensions of the work during 30 
its progress, decided to place a "concrete apron" in the by-pass channel. 
Respondents claim that they were obliged to bring in about fifty-five ad­ 
ditional tons of cement for this work in the spring of the year 1930, which 
cost more than if the work had been ordered earlier when the winter roads 
were in use.

Respondents estimate the additional cost as being $1,634.64, which 
amount was claimed with 37% extra for overhead and profit. The judg­ 
ment allowed the additional cost as calculated by respondent, with 15% ad­ 
ditional instead of 37%.

Appellant submits that this claim cannot be upheld under any pro­ 
vision of the contract between the parties. The placing of this concrete 
apron in the by-pass, for a short distance downstream constituted a slight 
change in design which the Engineer as above stated was entitled to make 
under the contract.

"It is agreed between all parties hereto that the Owner shall 
have the right to make such changes in the design and dimensions

40
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of the dam as the Engineer may deem necessary or advisable, and Intconrtof 
that changes shall not invalidate this contract. If such changes 
shall be made and they increase or decrease the quantities of the 
various classes of work required for the construction of the dam, Sere?? «£"* 
the principal sum of money to be paid to the Contractor hereinafter 
specified, shall be correspondingly increased or decreased by amounts 
which shall be calculated and determined in the manner hereinafter 

10 provided." (Vol. VI, p. 1091.)

This work involved a small increase in the amount of rock excava­ 
tion and in the amount of concrete, for both of which respondent was 
paid at the unit prices provided in the contract for excess quantities.

This work was ordered on or about March 13th, 1930 and was com­ 
pleted on or about March 22nd. (Vol. Ill, pp. 542, 644) Mr. Macintosh states 
that up to the first of April the winter roads were Sitill in use. (Vol. Ill, 
p. 644). Whether they were or not, it is submitted that the authority of the 

20 Engineer to order this work to be done was not limited in any way by the 
season of the year. Mr. Bishop's views as set forth in his deposition (Vol. I, 
pp. 160-162) would, if accepted, reduce the matter to an absurdity.

CLAIM 11 — SHORTAGE IN PAYMENT FOR CLASS 1 CON­ 
CRETE.

Amount claimed $31,549.15 — Amount allowed $31,549.15.

References. 
30

Declaration — pars. 36-38 — Vol. I, pp. 13-14. 
Plea — par. 16 — " " pp. 32-34. 
Contract — — Vol. VI, p. 1097.

— " " p. 1098, (j) & (k). 
Specifications — Section III Vol. VI, p. 1110. 
Correspondence — (in order of date) 

D30 — Vol. VI, p. 1224 
P10 — " "p. 1225.

Judgment — Vol. VI, pp. 1256-1257. 
40

The Specifications provide (Vol. VI, p. 1110) as follows:—

"All walls having no reinforcing steel and which are more 
than 5 feet thick, and also all heavy foundations, may contain up to 
30% of sound stones not less than one cubic foot in size. ..."

This claim involves merely the calculation of the payments to which 
respondent became entitled on account of concrete work. The trouble arises 
because the engineer ordered a substitution of concrete without plums
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(stones) for concrete with plums. The reason for so doing so is imma- 
ferial. Respondents cannot be paid on the basis they claim unless the sub- 
stitutioii of one class of concrete for another is to be considered as involv- 
ing "a change in design or depth of foundation." (Vol. VI, p. 1097). In 
the Superior Court, respondents contended that the design of the dam was 
changed when one kind of material was substituted for another. This, it 
is submitted, is an impossible contention. The dam in either case is built 
of concrete, the shape is the same, and, therefore, the design is the same. ^Q 
The only difference is that imbedded in the concrete and hidden from 
view are fewer boulders or stones than there might have been. The letter 
Exhibit D30 explains the manner in which the amount paid respondent 
was calculated. (Vol. VI, p. 1224).

Prom the unit prices contained in the contract, Vol. VI, p. 1098, 
items (j) and (k), it will be seen that when the quantity of Class I con­ 
crete without plums was increased due to a change of design or depth of 
foundation, respondent was to receive $18.92 per cu. yd. and where the 
quantity of concrete with plums was increased for either one of the same 20 
reasons, respondent was to receive $17.16 per cu. yd. Therefore, the in­ 
creased cost of the first class over the second is the difference between 
these two amounts, namely $1.76 per cu. yd. and this is the amount that 
respondent received by way of additional compensation where concrete 
of one class was substituted for concrete of another class.

The judgment itself states that respondents are entitled to be paid 
the difference provided by the contract between the two classes of con­ 
crete. This difference is what respondents have in fact actually received, 
but the judgment nevertheless condemns appellant as if no substitution 30 
had been made. If respondents were paid in the manner they claim, they 
would be receiving excess payments for more excess work than was ac­ 
tually done.

CLAIM 12 — PLANT REMOVAL.

Amount claimed $5,823.49 — Amount allowed $5,823.49

References.

Declaration 
Particulars 
Plea 
Judgment

par. 39 
par. (i) 
par. 17

— Vol. I, p. 14.
— Vol. I, p. 22.
— Vol. I, p. 34.
— Vol. VI, p. 1257.

40

This claim also is an accessory one, and is based upon delays alleg­ 
ed to have been caused respondent Bishop by reason of the fact that the 
quantities of certain classes of work proved to be in excess of the contract 
estimates, and also because of the delay in unwatering the site. Respon-
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dents claim that respondent Bishop was delayed approximately three In "court of 
months in the prosecution of the work for these reasons which are attri- Kin«^i:Bench 
buted to appellant, with the result that he was unable to move out the me^itum 
heavy plant and equipment on the winter roads of January and February Befti™*tS5nt'

By the terms of the contract the removal of plant is expressly in- 
10 eluded in the principal sum. (Vol. VI, p. 1099). No mention is made of the 

season of the year when this plant was expected to be removed and it may 
be fairly presumed, therefore, that no particular season of the year was in 
the contemplation of the parties at the time the contract was entered into. 
At the most respondent could not at such an early date have conceived 
more than a hope of being able to get his machinery out some months be­ 
fore the contract was to be completed. It is, therefore, submitted that dam­ 
ages under this head are much too remote and do not come within Article 
1074 of the Civil Code, even if the responsibility for the delays rests on 
appellant, which is denied. 

20
CLAIM 13 — STANDBY AND OVERHEAD EXPENSE.

Amount claimed $49,147.41.

This claim was disallowed by the judgment and is no longer in issue. 

CLAIM 14 — INTEREST ON FINAL PAYMENTS.

Amount claimed $286.90 
30

This claim was disallowed by the judgment and is no longer in issue.

RE : ARBITRATION CLAUSE IN THE CONTRACT

Reference*.

Declaration — pars. 44-52 — Vol. I, pp. 16-17. 
Plea — par. 21 — Vol. I, pp. 35-36.

40 The allegations of respondents in this connection are contained ivi 
paragraphs 44 to 52 of the declaration. It is respectfully submitted that 
they are irrelevant to the matters in dispute and can have no possible 
bearing on the outcome of the present action. Yet they appear to have 
influenced the learned Trial Judge to no little extent, as the following pas­ 
sage from the judgment would indicate: —

"While there is apparently no way of enforcing this clause 
it does give each party the right to believe that the other is intend­ 
ing to carry out the agreement as made and this must tend to destroy

Court of 
King's Bench 
15 March 1935 

(Continued)
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the argument of the defence, that the Plaintiff should have ceased 
work and brought an action to set aside the contract...." (Vol. VI,

-< c\ FT f\ \ 
P. 1200 ) .

The contract provided for the submission to arbitration of certain 
disputes that might arise between the parties. (Vol. VI, p. 1096). As res­ 
pondents were obliged to concede, however, and as the judgment finds, the 
law of this Province does not sanction a specific performance of this obli- JQ 
gation by either party thereto.

The facts are that on April 8th, 1929, respondent Bishop stated by 
letter Exhibit P-29 (Vol. VI, p. 1083) that it demanded an arbitration in 
connection with hardpan excavation. This demand was made to Mr. Fer- 
guson, who advised respondent that its letter had been forwarded to ap­ 
pellant (Exhibit P30 — Vol. VI, p. 1084). Nothing more was heard of the 
matter until December 9th, 1929, when respondents' solicitors submitted 
informally to appellant's solicitors a draft agreement for arbitration (Ex­ 
hibit Pll Vol. VI, pp. 1161-1173). Some correspondence ensued during the 20 
months of January and February, 1930, between the solicitors of the par­ 
ties, without any result, but respondent did not take any definite step in 
the matter until November 6th, 1930 when a notarial protest was served 
upon appellant (Exhibit P18, Vol. VI, pp. 1233-1234). This was some five 
months after the termination of the work and less than a month before the 
institution of the present action on December 4th, 1930. Some months be­ 
fore this protest was served, respondent had registered a claim for privi­ 
lege as a contractor (Exhibit P-19, Vol. VI, pp. 1227-1230) and the delay 
of six months within which action was necessary to enforce this privilege 
had almost expired. (C.C. 2013f). 30

Under the circumstances, it is not surprising that appellant prefer­ 
red to allow events to follow their natural course and have the matter sub­ 
mitted to the courts, as appellant under the law was entitled to do, and as 
respondents themselves were obviously intending to do.

COST OP THE WORK.

The judgment of the Superior Court accepted without question the 
evidence offered by respondents as to the actual cost of certain portions of 40 
the work, without any reference to the objections of appellant as to the 
sufficiency of this proof. Appellant submitted in the Court below, and 
now respectfully submits to this Court, that the proof made by respon­ 
dents through the witness Griffiths in this respect is not satisfactory. 
(See Vol. Ill, pp. 442-497).

Mr. Griffiths was employed as an auditor. He was stationed at High 
Falls where another contract was being carried out simultaneously and he
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went to Cedars only from time to time. (Vol. Ill, p. 442). He has not In 'court of 
and does not pretend to have any personal first hand knowledge of the facts KJn*[iBencl1 
which are sought to be proved through him. The lengthy summary pro- 
duced by him (Exhibit P-116, Vol. VI, pp. 1177-1210) is made up from rt- 
cords, the correctness of which he cannot personally swear to.

The distribution of the labour costs, which is the most important 
10 item, could only be proved by the time-keeper, who summarized daily the 

reports handed him by the various foremen, and who prepared a summary 
for each bi-weekly period. (Vol. Ill, pp. 443-444). The charge for mate­ 
rial could only be established properly by the evidence of the store-keeper, 
whose duty it was, apparently, to verify the particular branch of the work 
for which the material handed out by him was intended. (Vol. Ill, pp. 
445-446). No explanation has been given as to why these two parties were 
not called. If they were available, it was clearly respondents' duty to call 
them in order to make the best possible proof. If they were not available, 
then secondary evidence such as that made by Griffiths might be admitted, 

20 but only if the Court was satisfied that the best evidence could not be ob­ 
tained.

The cross-examination of Griffiths as regards the account produced 
by him (Exhibit P-116) might have been carried on endlessly, but it soon 
became apparent that no useful purpose could be served by such cross- 
examination, inasmuch as whenever any apparent inconsistency was called 
to his attention he was unable, as \vas only to be expected, to cast any light 
upon it.

30 In its action respondents credit appellant with certain payments as 
having been received on account of the various branches of the work. (See 
pars. 7, 19, 25, 30 and 37 of the declaration, Vol. I). This would create 
the impression that the contract was a severable one, and that a fixed 
proportion of the consideration could be assigned to each branch of the 
work. It is quite clear from the provision of the contract respecting pay­ 
ment (Vol. VI, pp. 1098-1100) that no such assumption is justifiable. The 
advances made to respondent from month to month as the work progressed, 
were payments on account of the contract as a whole and cannot be de­ 
finitely assigned to any particular branch or branches of the work. For

40 the purpose of establishing the amounts of these monthly payments, and 
for no other purpose, "the Engineer shall consider that the value of the 
various parts of the work required for the construction of the dam," shall 
be those set forth in the table given. (Vol. VI, p. 1099).

The system adopted by respondents of assigning credits to the dif­ 
ferent branches of the work on the basis of the monthly estimates, is very 
helpful to them in connection with their demand to be recouped for al­ 
leged losses on certain parts of the work, while wholly disregarding other



— 54 —

In 'court of parts, but it is based on an assumption which respondents under the con-
are no£ entitie(i ^o make. It is neither alleged nor proved whether

on the lob as a whole, respondents made a profit or sustained a loss.
of Appellant c 
Before the

Respondents very optimistically assume that normally everything 
1(5cI0:nti:nu1ea) 5 would have turned out exactly in accordance with the plan which had been 

drawn up at the commencement of the work, and that their profits would 
have been just what had been counted upon. If such optimism were justi- IQ 
fied, contracting would not be the risky occupation that it is. In order to 
maintain respondents' action the Court would have to assume that res­ 
pondents were entitled to the actual cost of any or all of the items of the 
work, plus an allowance for profit and overhead, and this in the absence 
of any allegation or proof as to whether on the contract as a whole they 
had made a profit or suffered a loss. Even if respondents had been pro­ 
ceeding with this work under the most favourable possible circumstances, 
even if there had been no logs at all brought down the river, even if there 
had been no overburden anywhere on the river bed, it is certainly quite 
possible that the job might have cost vastly more than respondents antici- 20 
pated, without appellant being in any way liable for the consequences.

CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons appellant respectfully asks that the pre­
sent apeal be allowed, with costs against respondents, and that the judg­
ment in favour of respondents in the Superior Court be reduced to the
sum of $1,429.60 (on account of Claim No. 9), with appropriate costs for
an action of that amount.

30 
Montreal, March 15th 1935.

Aylen & Aylen, 
Attorneys for Appellant. 

Ainie Geoffrion, K.C., 
Counsel.

No. 4
In the
Ktag"?B°ench The Factums of Respondents and Cross-appellants Before the Court of King's Bench 40

No. 4

lie Factual ^^ ̂ ^ an action to recover $412,846.75. It was maintained in the 
Superior Court for the District of Montcalm, White J., for $293,585.84. 
Both parties have appealed; the Defendant against the condemnation; and 
the Plaintiffs because the judgment awarded interest on $206,061.16 only 
from the date of the judgment, 10th June, 1934, instead of as claimed 
from the date of the action, 9th December, 1930, a difference of three and 
one half years or 17V2% equal to $36,060.70.
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The action was for work performed by the Plaintiff, William I. Intc0eurtof 
Bishop, Limited, for the Defendant in the years 1928, 1929 and 1930 in **' 
the construction of a storage dam known as the Cedar Rapids Storage me F»0ctums 
Dam, on the Lievre River in the County of Labelle. Respondents

and Cross- 
Appellants

The plans for this work had been prepared by an American Engi- 
neer, Hardy S. Ferguson of New York, and it was carried out under the 

10 joint supervision of a resident Engineer appointed by and representing (Contlnued) 
Mr. Perguson and Engineers of the Quebec Streams Commission to whom 
the reservoir was to be turned over to operate when completed.

The Bishop Company tendered in writing for this work in July, 
1928, and its tender was accepted on the 15th November, 1928. Operations 
were commenced immediately, but it was not until the 23rd May, 1929, 
that the formal contract was signed Dy the parties, the delay being due to 
some difficulty in securing the Government's formal approval of the 
plans. The form of the document had, however, been agreed upon at the 

20 outset and when it was signed, there was inserted the following clause : 
"This contract shall avail and be binding on the parties hereto as if signed 
on November 15th, 1928." (Vol. 6, page 1100, lines 46 and 47).

It is the Plaintiff's case that the work to be done proved to be sub­ 
stantially different from that shown by the original plans and specifica­ 
tions but that under the express and implied terms of the contract, a) 
the Bishop Company was required to complete the job, and b), is entitled 
to be compensated for having done so. The Supei-ior Court found in favor 
of Plaintiffs and we submit its judgment is supported by the documentary 

30 and the oral evidence.

1. THE CONTRACT.

This contract is printed in A7olume 6, pages 1085 to 1133 inclusively. 
Under it William I. Bishop, Limited, undertook "to build for the owners 
a dam to be known as Cedar Rapids Storage Dam across the Lievre Ri­ 
ver at a line established on the ground, the location of which is indi­ 
cated on a map attached hereto and forming part hereof." (Page 1085,
Lines 31-37). 

40
It is submitted that under this contract the contractor was required 

"to furnish all materials, tools and appliances, labour and work of every 
description required for the complete construction of said dam" (P. 1085, 
LL. 41-44).

It was "agreed that the construction of the dam shall be carried 
out and completed" (P. 1086, LL. 19-20).
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(Continued)

The work to be performed "consists of the complete construction 
of the Cedar Rapids Storage Dam" (P. 1087, LL. 26-27).

(P. 1106, LL. 20-30) "It is the intention of these specifications to 
secure thoroughly first-class construction in both material and labour for 
each of the classes included herein without working an undue hardship on 
the Contractor. The omission of any clause necessary to obtain the fulfill­ 
ment of the intention and purpose of the specifications shall not preclude 
the Engineer from requiring any such omitted necessary requirements..."

(P. 1133, LL. 11-13) "... said specifications and any and all parts 
thereof shall be binding on both parties the same as if contained in the 
body of said contract...................... ..."

These obligations of the contractor were undertaken "in considera­ 
tion of the sums of money to be paid by the Owner as provided herein.'' 
(P. 1085, LL. 29-30)

(P. 1089, LL. 30-40) "... .the principal sum of money to be paid to 
the Contractor as specified herein, is based on an estimate that the quan­ 
tities of excavation, concrete masonry, forms reinforcing steel, and other 
classes of work required to completely construct the dam and which have 
been calculated from the dimensions and depths to the bottom of the dam 
that are shown or indicated on the drawings referred to herein will be as 
follows ..."

(P. 1090, LL. 23-30) "It is further agreed that should the quan­ 
tities of excavation, concrete and other classes of work which are listed in 
the above schedule for the satisfactory completion of the structure be dif­ 
ferent from those contained in the said schedule, additions or deductions 
from the principal sum of money herein named shall be made in the man­ 
ner hereinafter provided."

(P. 1091, LL. 40-47) "....No claim for additional compensation for 
any work done under this contract shall be considered or allowed except as 
hereinafter provided unless such claim is made before the performance of 
the work in question ........."

(P. 1092. LL. 1-30) " For such extra work as the contractor shall 
perform by virtue of the written authorization of the Engineer, the Owner 
shall pay to the Contractor, in addition to the principal sum herein spe­ 
cified, sums of money equal to............

(a) the actual cost of the labour and material;

(b) 37% of said labour, and material costs ............ to be consider­ 
ed the cost of the Contractor of small tools, plant maintenance,

20

30

40



Respondents

— 57 —

overhead, superintendence, insurance and other indirect costs In court of 
of performing said extra work, and shall include the profit to Klng_lBeno 
be received by the Contractor therefor; ...

(c) amounts which shall be compensation for the use of heavy 
tools and machinery at the per diem rate set out ....................

J r King's Bench
6 May 1935

10 (P- 1096. LL. 32-34) ".should any dispute arise as to the interpre- <Continued> 
tatioii of the terms of this contract as to cost of changes and extra work 
performed, or in regard to any other matter regarding the execution or 
final settlement of this contract, it shall be refererd to a Board of three 
arbitrators ........... and its decision shall be final and binding on both
parties."

(P. 1097. LL. 3-15) " .The sum of Six Hundred and Nine Thou- 
sand and One Hundred Dollars ($609,100.00) referred to elsewhere herein 
as the principal sum..... .... plus the sums to be paid as provided herein

20 for any authorized extra work .......... shall be the limit of the liability of
the Owner hereunder provided that the quantities of the various classes 
of tvork required to construct the dam shall prove to he the same as those 
given in the schedule o<f quantities hereinbefore contained."

It is submitted that this last clause places a limitation on the liabi­ 
lity of the Owner only if the quantities of the various classes of work 
turn out to be the same as those given in the schedule.

It is further submitted that the Owner undertook by the contract to 
30 pay as compensation for the work to be performed :

1. — The principal sum of money based on an estimate of the 
quantities of work to be done as expressed at page 1089.

2. — Such additions, if any, as might be brought about by increases 
in the quantities of excavation, concrete and other classes of 
work listed in the schedule as provided for at page 1090.

3. — The cost of such extra work as might be ordered in writing 
40 by the Engineer as provided for on page 1082.

4. — Such additional sums as might be allowed by a Board of ar­ 
bitration set up under the clause written at page 1096, the only 
restriction in that respect being that no claim for additional 
compensation might be allowed unless svich claim was made 
before the performance of the work in question, as set out at 
page 1091.
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n coeurtof — The Nature of this Contract. —
King" s Bench

The Fa°ctums It is not a contract a forfait.
Respondents

(Quinlan and Redmond, 39 S. C. 145)
before the ^ ' ' 
Court of

° HELD:lo "A convenant in a contract for the erection of a building
for a stated price, that the architect may order alterations in the }0 
course of the work, entailing a proportionate increase or diminu­ 
tion in the price, takes the contract out of the operation of Art. 
1690 C. C. and renders the restriction therein, as to recourse for 
extra work, inapplicable. ' '

(Bernier et al, vs Les Debardeurs Syndiques du Port de Montreal, 
50 S.C. 337)

"L 'article 1690 C. civ., relativcment aux changements dans 
les plans et devis et aux travaux additionnels ne s 'applique pas 20 
lorsqu'il est specific dans le marche entre 1 'entrepreneur et le pro­ 
prietaire que ce dernier aura le droit de f aire des changements et 
que le prix du contrat ?era augments ou diminue en consequence. 
Dans ce cas, les regies ordinaires de la preuve s'appliqueiit ..."

and (Legault vs Lallemand, 4 R. de J. 245)

" JUGE : lo. Que 1'art, 1690 C. Civil n'est rigoureusement 
applicable qu'aux conventions reunie,sant tous les caracteres d'un 
forfait pur et simple, mais ne saurait etre etendu au cas ou les par- 30 
tie?,, tout en stipulant le forfait, y ont ajoute des clauses et con­ 
ditions qui le modifient.

Qu'ainsi lorsque, dans la convention, le proprietaire s'est re­ 
serve le droit de faire, au cours des travaux, les changements et aug­ 
mentations qu'il jugerait convenables, et a meme fixe le prix des tra­ 
vaux supplementaires, par analogie avec ceux du marche, 1 'entre­ 
preneur qui a execute de tels travaux sans autorisation par ecrit est 
admis a etablir 1 'existence du consentement du proprietaire d'apres 
les regies ordinaires de la preuve testimoniale ; en aorte que s'il y 40 
a un commencement de preuve par ecrit, le tribunal peut completer 
ce commencement de preuve par la preuve testimoniale et par des 
presomptions graves, precises et concordantes.

Que ces presumptions peuvent etre puises notamment dans 
le fait que les travaux executes en dehors du devis ont etc commandes 
par le proprietaire, f aits a sa connaissance et surveilles par son ar- 
chitecte ; ' '
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and (Beaudry-Lacantinerie Louage II, No. 4005 and No. 4006)

Bearing in mind that this contract is somewhat unique in docu- TH 
ment of its genre in that it does not, as do most contracts for such con- Respondents 
struction, carry a clause imposing upon the contractor the responsibility Appellants
n • ! • n i ,. -, , -. -,. ,1 .-i • beforethefor securing his own foundation data and relieving the owner or his en- court o^ 
gineers from responsibility for the information as to foundations contain- 

10 e(i i'n the contract plans, it is submitted that the Plaintiff Company became 
party to a contract under which:—

a) It was entitled to rely, as it did rely, upon the absolute accura­ 
cy and correctness of the information supplied in the plans.

l>) It was entitled to rely, as it did rely, that when disputes as to 
the respective rights and obligations of the parties arose, the undertaking 
to arbitrate such disputes would be carried out in good faith.

20 c) It was entitled to rely, as it did rely, upon such a construction of 
the contract as would not entail undue hardship upon the contractor in 
the conduct of the work.

The Trial Judge found in this connection as follows:— (VOL. o', 
page 1250).

"THAT neither of the parties were fully aware of the ma­ 
gnitude of the undertaking or of the difficulties which would be 
encountered in its carrying out, but that the intention of the parties 
was, that no matter how difficult the work might prove to be the 
contractor was to complete the work and the owner was to pay for 
it.

(d) "It is further provided on pag-e 14: 'Should any dis- 
"pute arise as to the interpretation of the terms of this contract as 
"to the cost of changes and extra work performed or in regard to 
"any other matter regarding the execution or final settlement of 
"this contract, it shall be referred to a board of three arbitrators 
"and its decision shall be final and binding on both parties.' "

"WHILE there is apparently no way of enforcing this clause 
it does give each party the right to believe that the other is intend­ 
ing to carry out the agreement as made, and this must tend to des­ 
troy the argument of the defence, that the Plaintiffs should have 
ceased work and brought an action to set aside the contract, not only 
is this clause in the agreement, but when the question of hard-pan 

came up for discussion between Bishop and O'Shea arbitration 
was discussed as the method ofsettlement, although nothing definite 
was decided at that time."

30

40



— 60 —

In the
Court of 

Kins' a Bench
No. 4

The Factums 
of
Eespondcuts 
and Cross- 
Appellants 
before the 
Court of 
King' a Bench 
6 May 1935 

(Continued)

PLAINTIFFS' CLAIM. 

1.—HARDPAN.

THE first item of Plaintiffs'claim is for excavating hardpan.

This? claim arises for work done in the by-pass or water diversion 
channel, where it is submitted the evidence of the Plaintiffs' witnesses 
abundantly proves that a material, commercially known as "hardpan", of 
greater consistency and of far greater difficulty to excavate existed in 
quantities totalling 12,935 cubic yards, of which 4600 cubic yards were 
found in the by-pass channel elsewhere than on the actual site of the dam 
and 8335 cubic yards on the actual site of the dam. (Declaration para­ 
graphs 7, 8 and 9, Vol. 1, pp. 3 and 4). (Evidence, Bishop, Vol. I, p. 70, 
et seq; Mailhot, p. 139, et aeq; McEwen, p. 175 et seq; and p. 202 et seq; 
Lindskog, Vol. 2, p. 223 et seq; Reiffenstein, p. 361, et seq, and at page 388 
et seq; Acres, Vol. 3. p. 425 et seq.) 20

The evidence of these witnesses is confirmed by the evidence of O'- 
Shea, Defendant's witness, Vol. 3 at p. 504, where extract^ from his diary 
show that this difficult material was encountered, and at pages 508 and 
509, where he refers to the use of dynamite. Mclntosh on cross-examina­ 
tion at page 662 admits that the Orange Peel Bucket was broken by 
"banging on the hard stuff". Further than tliLs, perusal of the correspon­ 
dence and memoranda relating to the Plaintiff's complaints, we confi­ 
dently submit, establishes beyond question the fact that neither Mr. 
Ferguson nor his subordinate questioned the existence of the hardpan; we 30 
refer particularly to the following exhibits, all in Vol. 6 ; P. 21 at page 1068 ; 
P 28 at page 1069 ; P.3 at page 1080 and D.I at page 1081, and the Court's 
attention is directed to the fact that when Mr. Ferguson (D-l) takes his 
final position he does not attempt to negative the existence of the hard- 
pan.

The existence of the material conceded, the evidence as to the value 
of its excavation being uncontradicted, the question of interpretation of 
the contract as bearing upon Plaintiffs' right to recover should be ex­ 
plored. 40

In the Superior Court it was necessary to consider the matter in 
two aspects,, (1) hardpan excavated on the actual site of the dam, and 
(2) hardpan excavated in the by-pass channel elsewhere than on the actual 
site of dam.

In the first instance the contractor's right to be compensated 
would seem to be unquestioned. The site of the dam in the by-pass chan-
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nel includes the "stoney gate spill-ways" section 3 a& described in the con- Intcoeurtof
tract (Page 1088). Page 1089 of the contract discloses that the excavation Kin^*cnc
in this section was to consist of earth and ledge only. -me Fa°ctums

As previously indicated there is no clause in the contract 
which obliges the contractor to make investigations for his own ac- 
count, and it is, therefore, we submit, elementary and fundamental that the

JQ contractor is entitled to rely upon the representations made to him in con­ 
tract, plans and specifications. The contractor knew by examination of the 
Plan B2444 that the Owner's engineers had investigated the locus of the 
by-pass and of that point in it which the dam crosses. The test pits shown 
on the plan and the evidence of O'Shea, the defendant's engineer, make 
this statement incontrovertible. In addition we have the evidence of both 
Bishop and McEwen that before their tender was submitted on the work 
O'Shea informed them that the material in the by-pass consisted of first, 
five feet of sand and loam and, next, gravelly material with occasional 
boulders. The contract itself, page 1089, shows that where the dam crosses

20 the by-pass there would be no other excavation than earth and ledge. Cer­ 
tainly, therefore, it was represented to Bishop affirmatively that no hard - 
Dan would 'exist in this section. That being so, failing some principle of 
law, which would compel the contractor to an election as between the per­ 
formance of the contract with no compensation for this unexpected mate­ 
rial, or for dissolution of the contract and damages, the contractor would 
be entitled to compensation. It will be submitted, no doubt, by the Defen­ 
dant that under the decision of the Supreme Court in the case of Nova 
Scotia Construction vs Quebec Streams Commission the contractor should 
have optated for the dissolution of his contract and that not having sought

30 its cancellation in this action his recovery is barred. Such an argument, 
however, overlooks certain essential differences between the contract now 
under consideration and that with whir-h the Supreme Court had to deal. 
Such an argument also overlooks the situation created by the conduct of 
the parties in this case.

At the risk of repetition the Court's attention in called to the fact 
that as early as November 21st, 1928, Mr. Bishop intimated to the defen­ 
dant's engineer the presence of this material in the cut, and put forward 
his claim to extra remuneration in respect of that item. The evidence of 

40 O'Shea indicates that on February 22nd, 1929, the existence of the hard- 
pan having developed into something far more serious than either Mr. 
Bishop or Mr. Ferguson had hoped it would, Mr. Bishop advised Mr. 
O'Shea at breakfast on the morning of the 21st February that if he (O'­ 
Shea) were still of the opinion that only two classes of excavation could be 
considered on the job he (Bishop) would stop all excavation on the by-pass 
channel on Saturday and ask for arbitration, and that, later in the morn­ 
ing, Mr. Bishop said that although he would not stop the excavation he 
would still ask for an arbitration, in reply to which Mr. O'Shea told 
Bishop that if he (Bishop) wrote to O'Shea on the subject he (O'Shea) 
would procure the attention of Ferguson in the following week.

of 
Respondents
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Going back for a moment to the situation as it existed in Novem­ 
ber, 1928, we observe from Mr. Ferguson's correspondence that he intimated 
that Bishop should continue with the possibility in view that the hardpan 
would be negligible in quantity, and this notwithstanding the fact that 
Mr. Bishop had plainly indicated his intention to demand extra remunera­ 
tion for the excavation of this material.

The situation then is, that, relying upon the covenant of the owners ^Q 
to arbitrate, the contractor elected, as we submit he might in law properly 
do, to continue the contract and trust to arbitration to compensate him, it 
being duly noted that he had given notice of his intention to ask for arbi­ 
tration of this matter.

It is common ground that the owners refused to arbitrate and we 
submit that it does not now lie in the mouth of the owners, having induced 
the contractor with the bait of the arbitration clause to continue, to set up 
a claim that the contractor was bound to ask for cancellation, or, in other 
words, that having performed in the face of the misrepresentation he is 20 
now prevented from asking the Court to take the place of the arbitrators 
to whom the owners agreed to submit such matters of difference.

Further in support of this contention, we submit that remuneration 
for excavation of this material is not excluded by the contract, which dealt 
only with earth and with rock, witnesses of both parties being in accord 
that hardpan is essentially a classification by itself, unless the contract 
otherwise provides. It is quite plain that where the contract has failed to 
provide for quantities they are to be provided for, to decide that the con­ 
tractor must, more particularly perhaps in so far as that portion of the 30 
work on the actual site of the dam is concerned, bear the expense occasion­ 
ed to him by the Defendant's erroneous representations of the material to 
lie encountered, would be an absolute negation of that clause in the speci­ 
fications which is found in section number 2, and reads "it is the intention 
of these specifications to secure thoroughly first class construction in both 
material and labor for each of the classes included herein without work­ 
ing an undue hardship on the contractor."

The amount of material excavated in that portion of the dam across 
the by-pass channel is 8335 cubic yards, for which the Plaintiffs received 40 
the earth price of $1.23 or $10,252.05. It i?t the contention of the Plaintiffs 
that for this excavation they should have been paid a sum of $2.90 per cu­ 
bic yard, or $23,971.50, leaving an amount due to the Plaintiffs, and which 
we submit they are undoubtedly entitled to recover, of $13,919.45.

In further support of our claim on this score we rely upon the de­ 
cision of the Court of Review in the case of Wilson et al and the City of 
Hull, 48 S.C. page 238.—
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1. Dans les soumissions que font les entrepreneurs de creusage ^ court of 
et de posage de eanaux d'egouts, ils sont justifiables de pren- King^.Bencl1 
dre pour acquis qu'ils ne trouverout pas de roc ou de pierre TheFactums 
a extraire lorsque le plan et les devis de 1'ingenieur ne 1'indi- Respondents

, and Cross-quent pas. Appellants
^ ^ before tlie

Court of

2. Lorsque 1 'entrepreneur dans ce cas, mentionne un prix pour la Sfa
, ^ , j. u 1 '1 ' 1 -1 (Continued)10 terre et un autre beaucoup plus eleve pour le roc, mais se ba- 
sant sur le fait qi;e le plan et les devis ne mentionnaient au- 
cune pierre dans le sol, contract e pour une sonime globale 
representant des travaux de terre exilement, il a le droit de 
se faire payer le prix mentionne pour le roc, s'il en rencontre 
en quantite considerable dans 1 'execution des travaux, bieii que 
cela constitue une augmentation du prix convenu. ' '

and Dalloz, Code Annotes, article 1793, Numbers 83, 84, 85, 88, 89, 90, 91 
and 93. No. 93 is typical :—

20
"93... Que, lorsqu'il est constant qu'un delai differe substan- 

tiellement dc celui qui avait 1'objet du marche, 1 'entrepreneur a droit 
a 1 'allocation d'un prix autre que celui qu'il avait accepte par er-reur.''

and Guillouard, Traite du Louage, 3e. Ed. T. 2 No. 893, and Dalloz, Kept. 
Supp. Louage d'Ouvrage et d'Industrie, Numbers 92 and 93. No. 93 is 
as follows:—

30 "C'efit par application de ces principes qu'il a ete jugv, 
d'une part, qu'il etait dvi un supplement de prix, si, des sondages 
preliminaires ayant ete operes pour determiner la fixation du prix, 
les terrains rencontres par 1'entrepreneur different essentiellement 
de ceux qu'avaient fait prevoir les sondages."

To sum up the evidence on that point we submit that the existence 
of the Hardpan is proved by the following:

a) By calling attention to it on November 21st, (Exhibit P.21) and 
40 getting the answer thereto which is Exhibit P.28.

b) By Mailhot's examination of it and testimony concerning it in 
Court;

c) By the testimony of Lindskog, Reiffen?itein and Bishop;

d) By the testimony of Acres;
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Intetc0eurtof e) By the entries of 0 'Shea's diary on November 12, (page 504 of 

^Bench VcL g.^ November 16th> (page 594) . November 23rd, (page 506) ; Novem-
tums ber 29th, (page 507) : December 17th, concerning the use of dynamite to

Respondents loosen up the soil (page 509) :
and Cross- *• \i & / i 
Appellants

f ) By O 'Shea's admission that what he found was something quite 
e Ma! less different. To refer to hig own note "Our testpits showed no evidence of

(Continued) TT i »»Hardpan". ^0

g) By Mr. Geoffrion's question to Mr. O'Shea on page 577 at the 
top of the page;

h) By the fact that though dynamite was being used on November 
17th, Mclntosh proves on page 662 that there was no frost to contend with 
until after his return from his Christmas holiday;

i) By the fact that the orange peel was in good condition when it 
arrived but that it soon became broken from banging on hard stuff ; 20

j) By the photograph of August 22nd (Exhibit D.14) ;

k) By the conversation of February 22nd, (page 510 of his evi­ 
dence, Vol. 3.)

1) By the letter of February 22nd, (Exhibit P.3) Vol. 6, page 
1080;

m) By the inference to be drawn from the terms of Mr. Fergu- 30 
son's letter of March 22nd, (Exhibit D-l, page 1081,) which was subse­ 
quent to his visf-t for the express purpose of dealing with the Hardpan 
situation.

It is interesting to compare, in this respect, the letter of November 
28th (Exhibit P.28, page 1069) with the letter (Exhibit D-l of March 22nd, 
which is at page 1081).

Here is an incident which was prior to the signing of the contract 
with respect to which it waft expressly understood that there would be ar- 40 
bitration and that our claim for exta comuensation would be taken care of 
in that way. O 'Shea admits that the situation was different from what 
had been anticipated and the difference was a substantial one. That dif­ 
ference meant that there had been error as to the nature of the work to be 
performed. We would have been entitled to cancellation had the agreement 
been one that we were to do the work at the price specified without qua­ 
lification. Both parties agreed at the time that we must do the work what­ 
ever the difficulties were, and that we would be entitled to have our claim
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for extra remuneration determined by a Board of arbitrators, without Intcoeurtof 
being prejudiced by the fact that we were to go on. — Now, we did seek Klngli.Bencl1 
arbitration as alleged in paragraphs 45 to 52 inclusively of the declaration The returns 
and we did not get it. Defendant's answer to these allegations is that we Respondents 
did not persist in our request for arbitration. To disprove this answer we AppSianu 
refer to our Exhibit (P.11) being our letter of December 29th, 1929, with cour"0f e 
the list of our claims attached; our exhibit (P.12) being the acknowledg- e May wsk

, i T-V n -, , , T • j i • ^T .LI J?T (Continued)10 ment by Defendant s solicitors; our correspondence with them of January 
6th and 7th, 1930, (Exhibits P.13 and P.14); our further correspondence 
of February 21,1930, February 28th, 1930, and March 1st, 1930, (Exhibits 
P.15, P.16, P.17) ; our notarial protest of the 6th November, 1930, (Ex­ 
hibit P.18). All thes,3 exhibits are in Vol. 6.

Unfortunately no adequate machinery seems to exist in our law to 
enforce the specific performance of an undertaking to arbitrate, and 
though there was here a dispute witli respect to which the parties agreed 
in their correspondence that the arbitration clause in the contract to be 

20 signed would apply, and we were thus induced to go on without resorting 
to the remedy of abandoning the undertaking. Defendant has neglected 
and refused to carry out its agreement in that regard and we had to assert 
the claim before the Court, and we submit that the Court is to deal with 
it as it would have been dealt with by the arbitrators.

The contractor had claimed a further sum of $7682.00 for excava­ 
ting hardpan in that part of the by-pass channel outside the actual site 
of the dam. This part of his claim was refused by the Trial Judge who 
dealt with the whole claim as follows:— 

30
"Only two classes of excavation are provided for by the con­ 

tract, earth and rock. — The evidence shows that beyond doubt a 
considerable amount of hard-pan had to be excavated, at a large 
additional cost over earth excavation."

The defendants' answer to thisclaim is in substance:

(A) There was little or none of this hard-pan, that which plain­ 
tiffs call hard-pan was really earth which had become frozen 

40 owing to the lateness of the reason.

(B) Test pits had been opened by Defendant, and these apparently 
did not disclose hard-pan, in fact O'Shea informed Plaintiff 
before tender was made that the test pits showed first five 
feet of sand and loam, and next gravelly material with occa­ 
sional boulders, consequently, no mention of hard-pan is con­ 
tained in the contract.
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THAT the material was hard-pan seems free from doubt. Mr. 
Mailhot a professor of geology proves it as does H. G. Ayers, a 
well known contractor, and altD Plaintiffs' men who worked on it. 
It was certainly there and had to be excavated. It is not mentioned 
in the contract, consequently defendant wants to pay for it as earth. 
Plaintiff says it cost almost as much to excavate as rock. Ferguson 
at page 368 says, that Plaintiff protested about it and he does not 
remember why he (Ferguson) did not attend to the matter in the 
beginning. Plaintiff and O'Shea spoke of recommending arbitra­ 
tion.

IF Plaintiff has to meet this extra expense on account of 
something unforseen, it certainly is imposing "an undue hardship 
on the contractor".

THE amount thus excavated in that portion of the dam across 
the by-pass channel is 8335 cubic yards at $2.90 per yard, (two thirds 
of rock price) amounts to $23,971.50, on account of which Plaintiff 
acknowledges to have received the earth price of $10,252.05, leaving 
a balance of $13,919.45 for which Plaintiff should recover.

AS to the 4600 cubic feet in the by-pass, the contract provides 
that any additional excavation "for by-passing or handling the flow 
of the river, shall form part of the principal sum." Plaintiff claims 
however, that it was represented by Defendants' engineers that the 
te?it-pits showed sand, loam and gravelly material and some boul­ 
ders. It is not shown that this was a misrepresentation. All that it 
means is that in the exact places where these test-pits were dug, 
there did not happen to be an3T hardpan. There not being any misre­ 
presentation, Plaintiff is not entitled to recover for the hardpan in 
the by-pass which is not part of the dam.

10

20

30

HANDLING DEFENDANT'S LOGS

This claim which is set up in paragraphs 12 and 13 of Plaintiffs' 
Declaration is to some extent involved or connected with a subsequent 
claim for damages suffered by the Plaintiff in connection with the un- 
watering of the site of the dam due to Defendant's misconduct in its hand­ 
ling of the logs, but for purpose of clarity and convenience we propose to 
deal with it as a separate item.

Perhaps this claim can be approached best by first considering what 
the respective duties, and obligations of the parties were, regardless of the 
contract, and then considering to what extent one or both of the parties

40
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permitted his rights or obligations to be modified or changed by the do- In c"06urt of 
c.ument. We submit, in the first place, that the right of any riparian owner King^_Bcnch 
to drive or float his logs from one point on a stream to another is a right me rLctums 
which does not entitle him to its use in disregard of all other persons pur- Respondents 
suing their lawful occasions upon or in the stream and that this right Appellants 
must be exercised by the person who floats or drives the logs with due re- court6 of e 
gard to the rights of other persons lawfully using either the waters or 

10 banks of the stream. Secondly, we submit that the obligation, generally 
^peaking, of any person legally empowered to dam or divert the waters 
of a stream, towards persons having a right to use the waters for floating 
of logs is that he shall provide suitable and proper means of passage for 
the logs and that this- obligation does not extend so far as to relieve the 
party using the waters of the stream for floatage purposes from his duty 
to exercise due care in such use so as not to damage or injure others.

In other words we submit that quite apart from any modification 
which may be found in the contract the situation of the MacLaren Corn- 

20 pany and the Bishop Company in ] aw would be as follows:—

The MacLaren Company has undoubtedly had the right to drive 
their logs on the river, but in so doing it was always incumbent upon them 
to conduct their driving operations so as not to cause damage to others 
(sic utere tuo ut alienum non kedas). The Bishop Company were lawfully 
upon the river having been put into possession for the purposes of the con­ 
tract, of the banks of the river by the owners, the Defendant. They were 
in damming and diverting the channel of the river, acting in the exercise 
of rights of the owner obtained from the Province of Quebec, and certainly,

30 as regards persons other than the owners, it was the duty of the Bishop 
Company to provide reasonable opportunities for the passage of logs 
rightfully driven in the stream. Whatever may have been the duty or obli­ 
gation of the Bishop Company towards the owners apart from the clauses 
of the contract WT C find that in the specification the duty was imposed upon 
the contractor to so "construct the cofferdams and erect and manage the 
construction of the works as a whole that logs of the owners, or of others, 
may lye driven by the site of the dam during the driving season of 1929, 
and shall provide such opportunities for the passage of logs as the con­ 
struction work mav render necessary.''

40
After the general position enunciated above, if sound, can it be rea­ 

sonably argued that the words just quoted, which are the only words in 
the contract dealing with the subject matter, in any way limit, modify or 
restrict the right of the contractor to demand the exercise of all due care 
in the driving of the logs by the owner or by others. The evidence is un­ 
doubtedly clear that in the driving of his logs the owner was absolutely 
reckless of the rights of the contractor and not only so but, if the situa­ 
tion could have been said to have been aggravated, the stand taken by the



— 68 —

In the
Court of 

King's Bench
Ko. 4

The Factunrs 
of
Respondents 
and Cross- 
Appellants 
before the 
Court of 
King's Bench 
6 May 1935 

(Continued)
10

20

owner in the letters of August 3rd and August 21st, 1929 (Exhibit P.32 
and P.34) (Vol. VI. pp. 1140-1141) indicated an absolute disregard of 
the Plaintiffs' position and persistence on the part of the Defendant in a 
situation which obviously must have been causing great expense and dif­ 
ficulty to the plaintiffs, and we submit that in the face of these letters 
the defendant cannot now be heard to say, with any expectation of belief, 
that there was any attempt on its part at co-operation in the matter of 
passing of the logs.

Indeed the clause in the specification quoted above indicates quite 
plainly that what was contemplated was that when the logs, approached 
the site of the dam they would be driven past it, and not left to the mercy 
of the currents, and certainly the Plaintiffs accepted no responsibility for 
the driving. The evidence is clear on this branch of the case that the logs 
as they approached the works of the Plaintiffs caused serious damage and 
greatly increased the difficulty of the work, and that such handling of 
the logs as was done by the Plaintiffs was done in an effort to minimize 
the damage and that but for this effort on the part of the Plaintiffs ve­ 
ry much larger sums than the amount claimed in this item would inevitably 
have been claimed, and rightfully claimed, from the Defendants.

The actual cost, without any overhead to the Plaintiffs, of this 
work and the material used in connection with it was $2995.42 and Plain­ 
tiffs felt they were entitled to an allowance for overhead and to the profit 
which they might reasonably expect to receive from the efforts of their 
force had they been otherwise employed. The contract recognized an al­ 
lowance of 37% for profit, overhead,etc., as being a reasonable and proper 
one, and we submitted that the Trial Court would not be guilty of exces- 30 
sive generosity if, in addition to the actual outlay for labor and material 
it allowed the further sum of $1,108.30, giving a total of $4,103.72.

The Trial Judge, however, allowed the bare sum of $2995.42 with 
interest from the date of the institution of the action. He dealt with this 
item as follows:—

'' THE next item for which Plaintiff claims is for handling 
"Defendants logs. The contract provides that the contractor 'shall 
"so construct the cofferdams and erect and manage the construction 40 
"of the works as a whole that logs of the owner or of others may 
"be driven by the site of the dam during the driving season of 1929, 
"and shall provide such opportunities for the passage of logs as 
"the construction work may render necessary.'

THE decision of this item will decide the next item in so far 
as the damage caused to the cofferdams, and the delay which result­ 
ed therefrom is concerned.
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< Contlnued >

UNDER all the circumstances of the ca^e and the wording Intc0eurtof 
of the contract, what is the meaning of the words 'may be driven', 
Does it mean that during the driving season the Plaintiff should 
leave sufficient space between its cofferdam as would enable the Respondents 
defendant using its knowledge and skill as log drivers (which is IppSants 
their line of business) to drive their logs through, or does it mean cou°rrte o?e 
that the Plaintiffs who are not in the log driving business, to un- 
dertake apart from leaving the necessary space for the logs to be 
driven through either to do the driving itself, which it never agreed 
to do, or allow each particular log to use its own judgment as to 
the facilities which Plaintiff had provided for its passage.

MR. KENNEY'S letter P.32 and P.34 indicate clearly the 
position taken by the Defendant. That is to say, not only does the 
defendant claim that it is under no obligation to drive or take care 
of the logs in any way, but actually wants to hold the plaintiff res­ 
ponsible for any additional exp-enses in driving the logs 'which 
they might be put to by reason of the works which Plaintiff was 
doing for Defendant under the contract in question. There is no 
provision in the contract that Plaintiff should bear any part of this 
expense, and the position taken by Defendant is in my opinion un­ 
tenable. The costt of handling these loss is shown to be for labor and 
materials $2995.42 for which Plaintiff is entitled to judgment.

As to the 37% which Plaintiff asks for, the work of hand­ 
ling Defendant's logs is not provided for by the contract, and being 
work not contemplated by the contract, this cannot be allowed. ' '

Before leaving this claim it is,we think, expedient to point out that 
no question of cancellation of the contract or election for non-performance 
can possibly arise in connection with this claim.

The statutory law in this respect is to be found in S. R. Q. 1925, 
chapter 46. Section 31 of that chapter expresses the right to drive logs. 
Section 44 provides that no person may exercise this right without being 
liable for all damages, caused by his operations on rivers, streams, lakes, 
creeks, or ponds, or on the banks thereof. Section 54 compels him to place 

40 men at every bridge under which his logs are to pass.

The logs being driven on this river were cut from Crown Lands. 
From Dumont vs Fras^r, in the Supreme Court, S. C. R. 49, page 158, we 
extract the following : —

"Les defendeurs sont concessionnaires de coupe de bois, 
leurs droits et leurs obligations aont regis par les lois des terres de 
la couronne ou ce que j 'appellerai notre code f orestler.
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Ces dispositions de code forestier lient les porteurs de coupe 
et ces derniers n'ont pas le droit de s'y soustraire en invoquant la
1 • 44

10

20

loi commune.

The Supreme Court reversed the judgment of the Court of King's 
Bench, reported at 21 K. B.365, and its decision was affirmed by the Privy 
Council, 19 D. L. R. 104.

We also rely on Ward vs Township of Grenville, 32 S. C. R. 510; 
Ste. Anne Fish and Game Club vs Riviere Ouelle Pulp and Lumber Com­ 
pany, 45 S. C. R. 1.

We beg to call attention to the terms of Defendants' Plea. (Para­ 
graph 7, sub-paragraph a) The Contractor is charged with liability in res­ 
pect to the driving of logs because, (1), of the failure of said Plaintiffs 
to provide guide booms; and because, (2), the gaps left between the coffer­ 
dam cribs were too narrow to permit the passage of logs.

As to the first point, it is submitted that providing guide booms 
was no part of our duty. — It was a duty which rested upon the Owner of 
the logs and our only contractual undertaking was to provide "such op­ 
portunities for the passage of logs as the construction work rendered ne­ 
cessary." (Contract, Vol. 6, page 1103, line 24.)

On the second point, we submit that the whole of the evidence is to 
the effect that the gaps left between the cribs were quite wide enough.

As to the general construction of the clause we rely on the decision 30 
in the case of MacLaren Company, Limited, vs Electric Reduction Com­ 
pany, Limited, which went to the Supreme Court and is reported at D. L. 
R. 1926, Vol. IV., page 593. We particularly rely on the terms of Mr. 
Justice Rinfret's judgment in the Trial Court in which he held that be­ 
cause the Maclaren Company had expressly agreed to the construction of 
a dam, though they had stipulated that there would be no interference with 
their driving facilities in the river, they must nevertheless suffer without 
complaint the inconvenience to their driving operations which resulted 
from slowing down the current, that result being a necessary consequence 
of the thing which they had expressly authorized, namely the placing of 40 
a dam across the stream. This judgment was an application of the general 
•principle that when a contract is made for the main purpose of authoriz­ 
ing or requiring the doing of a specific thing, no matter what may be the 
terms of the incidental clause of the contract, the results which are a ne­ 
cessary consequence of doing the thing for which the contract mainly pro­ 
vides are implicitly authorized. We submit that this principle is one of 
general application and that a typical illustration of how it operates is to 
be found in article 552 of the Civil Code.
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The consideration of this, claim involves prima facie a somewhat 
complicated and intricate situation, both from the standpoint of the facts f ' 

10 and of the law. We have here an undoubted hardship suffered by the (Contlnned) 
Plaintiffs involving them in huge expenditures, in serious delays, disrup­ 
tion and disorganization of their whole contract, from two cause?,, both, we 
submit, well founded in law ; yet, in the nature of things, the practical im­ 
possibility of absolutely allocating to one or the other cause an exact 
amount of monetary damages renders it somewhat difficult to discuss the 
claim with that clarity which is desired.

The cause to which the Plaintiffs attributed their damage in con­ 
nection with the coffer dam are broadly speaking, two. In the first place

20 they say the Defendant so drove his logs as to create jams in front of their 
coffer dam cribs,, as a result of which logs became lodged in the interstices 
of the cribs to such an extent that it was not commercially practical with 
the equipment available to remove them, and to a similar and equal ex­ 
tent logs became lodged in the bed of the river upstream from their coffer 
dam, so that it was impossible for them to sheath their coffer dam in the 
way they normally would have done, all of which added materially to the ex­ 
pense of construction and to the difficulty of making the structure water 
tight. In the second place, although it was positively represented to them 
in their contract that they had all across the bed of the river ledge rock,

CO without overburden, upon which to place their coffer dam, which would 
create a most favourable situation for obtaining an absolutely water tight 
coffer dam at a minimum of expense and delay, in point of fact the repre­ 
sentations made to them were absolutely misleading. There was an over­ 
burden of pervious nature overlying the ledge to a depth of some nine 
feet, as a result of which it was impossible for them to obtain a water 
tight coffer dam by the methods, which, relying upon those representa­ 
tions, they adopted and which would have been perfectly proper methods 
had the representations been correct.

4f> Having thus stated generally the predisposing causes of the dam­ 
ages claimed by Plaintiffs under this head, we proceed to deal in more de­ 
tail with each of them, and since it very closely relates to the claim last 
considered, we shall deal with the situation created by the logs. — The 
evidence of all the witnesses produced by Plaintiffs not contradicted or 
attempted to be contradicted by any of Defendant's witnesses, save the 
witness Coyle, is that the logs of the Defendant came down stream in large 
quantities, so large in fact that even the precautions taken by the Plain­ 
tiffs to keep them off the coffer dam were useless; that they jammed
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against the cribs of the Plaintiffs' coffer dam and in one instance drove a 
crib several feet downstream and necessitated the placing of the sheath­ 
ing of Plaintiffs' coffer dam upstream from the face of the cribs a dis­ 
tance varying from two to fifteen or sixteen feet, necessitating fill of 
heavy material between the sheathing and the cribs, the construction of a 
falsework of struts and walers which would, but for the presence of the 
logs, have been unnecessary. The presence of the logs further made it im­ 
possible to drive the wooden sheathing through the overburden and even JQ 
in some instances, prevented the sheathing from reaching the surface of 
the river bed. This necessitated the uf>3 of some 11,000 yards of toefill, an 
abnormal quantity, and manifestly most expensive to place, the result being 
that when the coffer dam construction had been completed in so far as 
the placing of the cribs and wooden sheathing and toefill was concerned, 
it was found impossible, notwithstanding the use of three timee, the nor­ 
mally anticipated pumping equipment on the job, to lower the water 
between the upstream and downstream coffer dams to any appreciable 
extent. This being the case, Mr. Ferguson, the Defendant's engineer, was 
called in and it was hia opinion that the bed of the river upstream from 20 
the coffer dam should be blanketed with more toefill, which suggestion 
w-.is followed and although Mr. Ferguson expressed the opinion that the 
soundings indicated on his plan were correct, he nevertheless undertook 
to have the location core drilled so that some definite assurance might be 
obtained. This undertaking on Mr. Ferguson's part was not fulfilled be­ 
cause he afterwards decided that an electrical apparatus, which he admits 
upon cross-examination, would not be accurate within three or four feet, 
could be used in substitution at less expense to the owners.

The second complaint of Mr. Bishop with respect to the inaccuracy 30 
of the contract is undoubtedly incontrovertible in the light of the evidence 
submitted.—

What wTere the rights of the contractor ? We submit, first, that the 
owner was bound, in preparing plans, and more particularly so important 
a plan as that of the topography of the site to employ a competent engi­ 
neer with experience in the preparation of plans of that kind. Second, that 
after this engineer had procured his information the contractor was en­ 
titled to have it fully, fairly and accurately transcribed upon the plan and 
to be given all the information with respect to the site which the owner or 43 
his engineer had obtained and that the information given should repre­ 
sent accurately the conditions existent at the site. How far have the owners 
and their engineers discharged their obligations in respect of the matter 1? 
Mr. Stratton who took the soundings stated that "so far as taking sound­ 
ings in rivers was concerned he was practically without experience when he 
arrived at the Lievre." (Vol. 3, page 591, line 40). We must ask the Court 
to give special consideration to the evidence of Mr. Stratton, and especially 
to his answers on cross-examination. It is he who made the only examina-



— 73 —
In the

Court of
tion of the site which was made prior to the calling for tenders and it is Klne^_Bench 
the results of his investigation that were supposed to be portrayed on the 
plans. He admits his inexperience, he admits the methods he used to in- Ee 
vestigate the river bed were unreliable and he admits that his plan did 
not even present a true picture of what he thought he had found by his ceofu°r"o?e 
unreliable methods. (Vol. 3, page 559, lines 30 et seq.) We feel quite con- FSfav 

10 fident that after having considered the evidence of Mr. Stratton, the Court (Contlnned) 
will have no difficulty in coming to the conclusion that so far from being 
a competent and experienced man in the class of work that he was sent out 
to do, he was inexperienced and incompetent and prepared a plan which 
in no way truly represented conditions as they existed, and what stronger 
evidence in support of our statement in this respect could be found than 
the cross-examination of Mr. Ferguson (Vol. 4, at pp. 697, 698 & 699) 1

It seems somewhat difficult for one to conceive what reasons could 
have actuated Mr. Stratton, in preparing so obviously a negligent and in-

20 accurate representation of the conditions which actually existed at the 
site of the work, but possibly the best excuse that can be offered for Mr. 
Stratton can be summed up as follows: In the first place, Mr. Stratton 
had been given a responsibility for which his previous training and ex­ 
perience were absolutely inadequate. He it was who had been asked to se­ 
lect a site for the dam. — For reasons best known to himself he selected 
the site upon which the dam was constructed. Possibly he felt that in or­ 
der to justify his selection he must make it appear that the locus selected 
by him was one upon which the dam could be built at a minimum of ex­ 
pense, hoping, for he was clearly not qualified to form a worth-while

30 opinion on the subject, that subsequent developments would justify his 
guess or, if not, that the contractor would be the one to pay the piper. — 
Whatever theory one adopts as to Mr. Stratton 's mental processes surely 
the consequence of his errors and incompetence must be borne by the de­ 
fendant who employed an engineering expert of that calibre.

Whatever may be said about the competence or incompetence of 
Mr. Stratton, so far as responsibility is concerned for the ultimate conse­ 
quences, can, we submit, in law be applied with equal force to Mr. Fergu­ 
son because our position in the law is that the incompetence of Mr. 

40 Ferguson 's employee is the incompetence of Mr. Ferguson, and the in­ 
competence of Mr. Ferguson is the incompetence of the owner. Surely, 
there can be no principle of law more firmly established than this, that 
if I employ a servant to perform an act requiring skill and as a result of 
his unskillfulness I cause prejudice or damage to others I must compen­ 
sate those who have suffered in the same way as if the lack of skill had 
been my own.

When we come to consider the question of Mr. Ferguson we have, 
we submit, only to refer to his own evidence on the subject. We do not
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propose to comment on his evidence out we would ask the Court to read it 
carefully, more particularly the cross-examination which is found in Vol. 
4, on pages 694 to 728 inclusive, and our submission is this: After reading 
that evidence one can come to no other conclusion than that a contractor 
examining the plan B-2444 would be led to believe that he had work to be 
done, as far as the unwatering is concerned, which could be performed 
expeditlously and at the absolute minimum of expense for work of that 
kind. Next, the conclusion from Mr. Ferguson's evidence is that any er- JQ 
rors in the topographical plan might entail serious prejudice and entail 
increased cost to the contractor. Now it is perfectly clear, we submit, that 
if an engineer, acting for an owner, is permitted to advertise to the con­ 
tracting world at large that he has a job to be performed which is simple 
in its nature and capable of performance at the minimum of cost, the 
prices which the owner will obtain when tenders are called would not be 
those which would be submitted if the information given to the contrac­ 
tors disclosed the probability or even possibility of real difficulties. Is it 
not reasonable to suppose that Mr. Ferguson. the engineer, was actuated 
by the desire to procure for his principals the lowest possible price for 20 
their work 1? What other reason can be suggested for the fact that Mr. 
Ferguson refrained from disclosing on Plan B-2444 information which 
Mr. Stratton thought he had, namely, that there was overburden where 
ledge is shown on the plan, unless Mr. Ferguson felt that to disclose the 
fact that the surface of the river bed was not ledge, as the plan shows, 
would enhance the price of bidding contractors?

Had Mr. Ferguson disclosed, as he admits it was his duty to do, the 
fact that Mr. Stratton had discovered in spite of his inadequate and un­ 
reliable methods, a certain amount <>f overburden, it would possibly have 30 
suggested to the contractors the necessity for some further investigation 
of the site before they made their tenders; but Mr. Ferguson failed to 
disclose that information. Are we not naturally led to the conclusion that 
it was a desire to protect the interest of the owner rather than give a fair 
and full disclosure to the contractor which actuated him to do sol

We have found it somewhat difficult to extract from the evidence 
of all the witnesses who testified as to the consequences of the misinform­ 
ation on the plan particular references which would be of more assistance 
to the Court, than a general perusal of their evidence. Such a vast amount 40 
of testimony was offered upon this subject that we feel in order to do it 
justice the Court will be obliged to read closely the evidence of all the 
witnesses called by both parties on this subject. There are, however, one or 
two facts which stand out above all others as indicating that the position 
taken by the Plaintiffs with reference to the nature of the material in the 
river bed is correct. In the first place Mr. Ferguson, in order to justify 
his position that it was not the pervious nature of the river bed but some 
error in design or construction of the cofferdam which caused the difficul-
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ty of unwatering made a statement that at a certain time he had observed In court »f 
silt or toefill material that had washed through the sheathing and the ere- KlnglLBe"ch 
vices of the coffer-dam and this to a height permitting one to walk across me returns 
the channel. Fortunately, however, for the contractor, an imperishable Be 
record of what actually existed in the river bed below the upstream coffer 
dam was produced in the form of a photograph which showed that, with 
the water lowered some four feet below the elevation at which it was on f'Swal Bil" *? 

}0 the date of Mr. Ferguson 's visit, it would even then have been impossible (Cont 
to walk across the river below the upstream coffer dam, and that far from 
there being silt or other material which showed as having washed through 
the crevices there actually was at the time of Mr. Ferguson's visit to the 
site more than four feet of water straight across the river with no earth 
or other solid material in sight.

Further no attempt was made by witnesses for the Defendant to 
contradict the evidence of practical witnesses for Plaintiffs who were o~i 
the work and who definitely stated that when the pumping had been suf-

20 ficiently far advanced to permit of ocular observation, they observed the 
water coming in streams through the overburden and, again, no witness 
for the Defendant seriously attempts to deny the existence of the over­ 
burden. Even Stratton, whose plan absolutely negatives the existence of 
overburden, admits that with the inadequate equipment he had he dis­ 
covered it to the extent of two and one-half feet. The Defendant itself, on 
the certificate of its engineer, paid for material other than rock excavated 
at the site of the dam, in the river section. That is the best evidence that 
it was there since we were paid for removing it, and according to the 
plans and the estimates none was to be expected.

30
Now, one is forced, we submit, to consider this state of affairs. If 

engineers and owners are to be permitted, for the purpose of obtaining low 
bids, to offer contractors information which will induce them to tender 
lower than otherwise they would do and to enrich themselves at the ex­ 
pense of the contractor when the actual state of affairs becomes known, 
it means the sanction of an immoralitv in business matters that neither 
law nor justice can support. Thus the Plaintiffs contend that applying 
either ethical, moral or legal standards to the conditions as they existed in 
the contract under discussion, they are entitled to be compensated for the

40 extra expense they have been put to by reason of the untrue representa­ 
tions made by the Defendants or on their behalf and the question for the 
Court to consider on this particular claim is the amount to which Plain­ 
tiffs are entitled.

Particulars of the extra expense incurred by Plaintiff with res­ 
pect to this particular claim are contained in paragraph 19 of the De­ 
claration and in exhibit P.116 at Vol. 6. p. 1178 and following, and we sub­ 
mit that the actual outlay which is alleged to have been made by Plain-
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tiff's is amply justified by the evidence upon this point given by Plain­ 
tiffs' accounting witnesses. The only item that might be said to be open 
to argument is the one of 31% for overhead, use of plant, etc., and the 
Trial Judge reduced this to 15% in his judgment which is as follows:—

"The next item is the increased cost of cofferdams and un- 
watering.

THE Plaintiff seeks to hold Defendant responsible for this 
item on two grounds:

(a) The damage caused by the logs.

(b) The fact that on the plan upon which the tender was made, 
'the line established on the ground' (page 1 of the contract) was 
marked L. admittedly meaning ledge, while as a matter of fact it 
was not ledge at all, but had an over burden of a pervious nature, 
in some places as much as nine feet, so that it was only after much 20 
delay and large extra cost, that the cofferdams could be made suf­ 
ficiently water-tight for the work to be proceeded with.

THE Defendant contends that Plaintiff should not have 
relied upon the statements on the plan, but should have verified 
them all, and cites several cases in support of the contention, prin­ 
cipally the Nova Scotia Construction Co. and The Quebec Streams 
Commission. It must be noted however that the contract in the No­ 
va Scotia case contains a special clause that 'the agreement is made 
'and entered into by the contractor.... solely on his own knowledge, 30 
'information and judgment of the character and topography of 
'the country, its streams, water courses and rainfall and subject 
'to the same, and upon information derived from other sources 
'than the commission etc.' No such clause is in the contract undt^r 
consideration in this case.

THE contract calls for the building of a dam 'at a line es- 
'tablished on the ground, the location of which is indicated on a map 
'attached hereto.'

40
IT is admitted by both parties that the dam was built on the 

line on the ground indicated on the map, and that the letters L on 
the map mean ledge. In addition to this the contract provides at 
page 9: ' It is further agreed that any core drilling or grouting of 
'seams in the ledge beneath the dam which may be required by the 
'engineer shall be considered as extra work, and be paid for as 
'such in the manner provided herein for other extra work.'
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IT is intimated by the defence in the examination of witnesses Respondents 
and at the argument, that Plaintiff should have verified the finding 
of ledge, even to the extent of core boring. The contract as we have 
just seen provides that if core boryig is considered necessary by the f May 

10 engineer, (either Stream Commission's of Defendant's page 2-A of (Contlnued) 
the contract) it shall be paid for as extra work.—

IT would seem from the evidence that core boring might 
have saved much of the trouble, but there is no suggestion that the 
Engineer ever considered it necessary and under the contract it was 
up to him.

THE Plan B-2444 was certainly not accurate, and plaintiff 
was misled as to the difficulties which he would have to face in the 

20 placing of coffer-dams and the unwatering operations generally. 
Stratton was the man who obtained the information upon which the 
plan B-2444 was made, and his evidence shows that he had not had 
sufficient experience to be entrusted with such an important piece 
of work. He selected the "line on the ground," the site of the dam. 
Surely plaintiff had the right to suppose that when the site of the 
dam had been chosen by a well known firm of hydraulic Engineers 
that at that particular spot the river bottom was ledge, as marked 
on the plan, and that site had been chosen because it was ledge.

30 DEFENDANT argues that Plaintiff did not rely on Strat­ 
ton's findings but checked it up themselves. The evidence shows that 
the soundings made by Reiffenstein and 1'Heureux were merely for 
the purpose of getting the depth of the water and the shape of the 
river bottom so that L'Heureux who was the foreman carpenter 
would know how to make his cribs. The Defendant tries to show that 
the cribs for the cofferdams were not propertly made, but the evi­ 
dence on this point is not convincing. All the delay, trouble and 
expense are due to two things:

40 (a) The fact that instead of ledge at the line on the ground, 
where the dam was to be built there was pervious over burden, 
(b) The damage caused by the defendant's logs.

THE amount of loss proved by Plaintiff is $144,457.92 being 
for extra crib-work, sheeting and toe fill, steel sheet piling, including 
taking in heavy pile driver, pumping, removing of coffer-dams, 
boats, etc.
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THIS however cannot be considered work done under the 
contract but damages. This being the case plaintiff is not entitled 
to the 37% profits provided by the contract, but it is admitted at the 
argument that in this event an allowance of 15% for overhead 
would be fair. This amounts to $21,667.50, making in all $166,125.52, 
upon which Plaintiff acknowledges to have received $49,050.20 
leaving a balance of $117,075.22 for which Plaintiff is entitled to 
judgment." }0

The Trial Judge however allowed interest on this amount only from 
the date of judgment and it is claimed on the cross-appeal that it should 
run from the date of the institution of the action.

In a general way the consequences of the unwatering difficulties 
are conclusively shown by the statement made by Mr. Lefebvre in his re­ 
port of 1929 for the Quebec Streams Commission. This appears at Vol. 5, 
page 912, lines 10 et seq. "The unwatering of the dam site was quite dif­ 
ficult and the work was delayed a few months on that account. Pouring 20 
concrete will have to be made during most of the winter and the work will 
be completed early in the Spring."

It is proved by Mr. Acres that up to the 15th of October all efforts 
were directed towards coping with difficulties arising out of the presence 
of the logs, and the delay from the 15th of October was due to the porous 
nature of the river bed. (Vol. 3, pages 430 and 436.) Without these diffi­ 
culties, we could have done the unwatering for $49,050.20 included in the 
estimate. This is proved by Mr. Bishop in Vol. 5 at page 1042.

As to the erroneous information conveyed by Plan B-2444, Mr. Le­ 
febvre states in Vol. 5 at page 911, that he would read this plan as showing 
bare ledge rock at every point where the letter "L" appears.

Mr. Ferguson makes the same admission at the top of page 717 of 
Vol. 4. At pages 672, 701, 715, 716, Mr. Ferguson also admits that by the 
word "topography" as applied to the bed of the stream, was meant the 
contour and form or substance and of what it consists "and that anyone 
reading the plans without any other information from Mr. Stratton would 
understand that it consisted of ledge at the elevations shown without any ^ 
over burden." He further adds at p. 716, "I felt a few feet of overburden 
probably would be something to be paid for." The Trial Court agreed with 
him.

We rely on the decision of the House of Lords in the case of Pear- 
son and Sons and the City of Dublin, 1907, A. C. 351.

It is quite true that under normal conditions the proper recourse 
would have been for rescision of the contract as was held by the Supreme
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Court in the Nova Scotia case, relying on the decision of the Privy Council Intcoeurtof 
in the case of the United States Machinery Company and Brunet, cited KinsHBencl1 
therein, L. R. 1909, A. C. at p. 339. But when we protested we were in- 
structed to go ahead with the work at whatever cost and have the matter of 
our right to increased compensation determined by arbitration. (See exhi- 
bit D.3 Vol. 6 p. 1153 at LL. 43 et seq.)

^ ^ ' King's Bench
6 May 1935

10 We also refer to P.31 to P.36 inclusively, Vol. 6. pp. 1139-1T44,/ (Contlniiea) 
being the letters exchanged with respect to the driving of the logs where 
the defendant's officers themselves expressly stated that both parties' 
rights had been fully protected by their respective protests and would be 
taken care of afterwards.

We also call attention to the fact that no fault was found with the 
way we had proceeded and that on October 2nd, we were directed to go on 
and put in still more toefill. (See Exhibit P.6 and Exhibit P.7, VoL 6, 
pp. 1146-1147) (See also the extracts from O'Shea's diary in Vol. 3. at pp. 

20 526, 527, 528 and 551. "Bishop intimated that information on drawing B- 
2444 showing ledge was wrong, and that consequently he feels he has done 
all his contract calls for and shoiild be paid for any more. Mr. Ferguson 
refuses to decide on this saying it was a matter to be decided by themselves 
and that an arbitration was the proper means. — Ferguson was very insis­ 
tent that the job should not be held up. Bishop ready to throw up but sur­ 
prised me by being less wild than I expected.")....

— 4 —

30 COFFER-DAM AT THE LOWER END OF THE BY-PASS. 

This claim was disallowed.

— 5 — 

ADDITIONAL COST OF ROCK EXCAVATED.

Reference to paragraphs 22 to 26 inclusive of the Declaration ex­ 
poses in detail the basis upon which this claim is put forward by the con- 

40 tractor. It may, we submit, be briefly summarized as follows:

In the contract as offered to the Plaintiffs a total amount of rock 
excavation of 8000 cubic yards was in contemplation. In point of fact the 
completion of the contract involved the excavation by the Plaintiff of 
21564 cubic yards, or slightly less than three times as much. It is true that 
under the contract in certain specified localities provision was made for 
radical increases in depth, and, in the locations in respect of which such 
provision was made, the Plaintiffs were remunerated at the price stipu-
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lated in the contract. Apparently the engineering staff who prepared the 
contract were satisfied that there ccmld be no possibility of the necessity 
of excavation of radically increased depths, save at the points which are 
mentioned in the contract, because were it otherwise one could only jus­ 
tify their having failed to make such provision at other points by a sug­ 
gestion that they intended to impose risk and hardship upon the Plaintiffs. 
It must, therefore, come as somewhat of a surprise to all concerned when 
upon examination of the profiles' indicating the proposed base of the dam }0 
and those which indicate the actual line of the base of the dam, one dis­ 
covers that the major portion of the over-run in rock quantities is found at 
places where no provision is made for increased payments in regard to in­ 
creased, depth.

The Plaintiffs complain not only of this radically increased and 
excessive over-run in rock quantities at points where no provision was 
made in the contract for increases in unit prices, but also of the fact that 
in practically every other place where rock was to be excavated the me­ 
thod imposed by the engineers for the Defendant was one, the only result 20 
of which could be, to increase the cost of Plaintiff's operations, namely 
the practice of removing the rock in thin layers rather than making apt 
investigations to determine within reasonable limits the actual depth of 
the defective rock, in order that the contractor might remove it as quickly 
and with as little expense as possible.—

There might be some increases "but the contract was expressly 
framed or drafted with the definite idea in view that if excavation was to 
go deeper there would be provision to pay for it." Vol. 4, p. 716, line 24.

Undoubtedly a strict construction of certain expressions in the con­ 
tract and a literal interpretation of it without due regard to those clauses 
which, we submit, were designed to provide that in cases of doubt a gene­ 
rous and liberal treatment of the contractor would ensue, makes the posi­ 
tion of the Plaintiffs with respect to this particular claim a somewhat 
difficult one. When, however, one takes into consideration the fact that 
the contract itself leaves somewhat at large the question of what is and 
what is not extra work, and only makes the decision of the engineers final 
and conclusive as to quality of materials and workmanship, leaving to ar­ 
bitration disputes "as to cost of changes and extra work performed, or in 
regard to any other matter regarding the execution or final settlement of 
this contract" it is submitted that the contractor in this action is upon 
an entirely different footing as to the risks undertaken by him from that 
which was occupied by the contractor in the Nova Scotia Construction 
case. — This view and this argument are, we submit, reinforced by the 
clause in the specification which clearly shows that the intention of the con­ 
tract is to secure first class construction "without working an undue 
hardship on the contractor". We submit, for instance, had the Defendant

30
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loyally carried out those provisions of the contract which provided for In 'court of 
arbitration and had the cost of the contract with respect to the rock excava- Km^s_Bench 
tion been submitted to arbitrators thoroughly conversant with the method 
of execution of contracts of this kind, there could clearly be no doubt as of 
to the judgment of such a tribunal where quantities so largely overran 
those anticipated and the method for dealing with them was that imposed
-, ji /! , • , King's Benchby the owner in the present instance. 6 May 1935

•' 1 (Continued)
10

It is our submission, therefore, giving to the contract that liberal
construction which we submit it should receive by reason of the clause 
quoted and its general tenor and the impression which we submit would 
be conveyed to the contractor bidding upon the job, the claim in question 
should receive the favorable consideration of this Court and under this 
head of the case Plaintiffs should receive $35,100.74 which is the net 
amount claimed after allowance for a1.! payments received for rock exca­ 
vation. The details are to be found in Vol. 6, pages 1189-1190 and 1191.

20 — 6 —

HANDLING AND TRIMMING EXCAVATED ROCK.

This claim was disallowed.

FROZEN MATERIALS IN THE RIVER-BED

30 We refer the Court to paragraphs 28 to 30 inclusive of the de-lar- 
ation.

It is common ground that in the quantities to be excavated on the 
bed of the river only rock was in contemplation of the parties, and it can­ 
not be said that the contractor tendered to remove any earth in that loca­ 
lity. It is equally agreed by both parties that there was removed from the 
bed of the river 811 cubic yards of material other than ledge rock, although 
the plans had indicated that only ledge rock would be found there.

40 It is common ground that the material other than ledge rock which 
occurred in the bed of the river was removed by the contractor and no 
one has ventured to dispute the evidence of his witnesses that this mate­ 
rial when removed consisted of boulders, stones, gravel and sand, that it 
was taken out in the middle of winter in a frozen condition and was much 
more difficult and expensive to handle than earth. In fact Plaintiffs' wit­ 
nesses are unanimous in saying that it conld not be handled at less costs than 
ledge rock. Now, the question is whether, having in mind that the removal 
of this material formed no part of the work which the contractor had
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specifically contracted to do, it would under the terms of the contract it­ 
self be extra work to be performed, and there can be no doubt that had the 
Defendant fulfilled its obligation to arbitrate this question, among others, 
its liability or non-liability to compensate the Plaintiffs as an extra for 
the performance of this work would properly have been the subject of 
arbitration proceedings. For the arbitration proceedings which the contract 
contemplated the Defendant endeavours to substitute ex parte the deci­ 
sion of its employee O'Shea. If in the light of the plain words of the con- 
tract one can come to the conclusion that the contractor would enjoy the 
same benefit from the decision of Mr. O'Shea as he could from the deci­ 
sion of an impartial tribunal constituted under the arbitration clauses of 
the agreement, then little remains to be said; but, if, as we submit, the 
contract does not make express provision for payment of this work and 
the Defendant has, as there is no doubt he has done, refused to resort to 
the tribunal constituted by the contract, we submit it was a matter proper 
for submission to the Court, and we equally submit that on the evidence 
the Court was right in giving judgment in Plaintiffs' favour on this item. 
The amount involved is made up by Plaintiffs on the basis of the rock 
price less the earth excavation price paid by Defendant on 0 'Shea's cer­ 
tificate, leaving a net amount of $2530.32 for which the Trial Court gave 
judgment, finding as follows: —

"The next item is for excavating 811 cubic yards of frozen 
boulders etc., at rock price $4.35 which was paid at earth price $1.23, 
leaving a difference of $2,530.32. There is no provision in the con­ 
tract except for earth and rock. This material was certainly not 
ordinary earth excavation and was as expensive as rock. It would 
obviously be imposing undue hardship on the contractor to make 
him accept the earth price — consequently plaintiff is entitled to 
this amount."

_ g _

WORK UNDER WINTER CONDITIONS

This claim which is set up in paragraphs 31 and 32 of the declar­ 
ation, while of very great importance to Plaintiffs and involving a very 
considerable amount of money, is so closely interwoven with the claim of 
the Plaintiffs with respect to the excessive cost of coffer damming and 
unwatering of the stream, that it can be disposed of by a brief but, we 
submit cogent argument.

Let us first dispose of those questions of fact about which there can 
be no dispute. In the first place it is conceded that the pouring of con­ 
crete under winter conditions such as prevailed in the locality in question 
is vastly more expensive than the same work would be under conditions

10

20

30
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which obtain in the Spring, Summer and Fall. Some attempt was made by Intc0eurtof 
both parties to generalize as to the percentage difference per yard of con- Kins^_Bench 
crete, but the Plaintiffs concede that to generalize upon such a subject is The Factions 
dangerous. The Court, in arriving at a conclusion found that all this extra Respondents 
cost has been definitely established by witnesses for the Plaintiffs, and it AppSfa'nts 
is our submission that on a consideration of the whole evidence there has ceou°rte o?e 
been no real effort made by the Defendant to dispute the figures to which f'Sfay ^ss

10 we have just now referred. It must, we submit, be conceded in view of the (Contlnned) 
figures established by the Plaintiffs that no sane person would undertake 
work of this kind in the winter time save by compulsion of causes beyond 
his control. It is clearly established that the Plaintiffs in the present case 
did work in the winter time and the logical mind naturally wonders why. 
Examination of the evidence of Mr. Bishop and of the witnesses called in 
support of Plaintiffs' case shows that not only from the standpoint of 
theory but also in usual practice and performance with the plant and equip­ 
ment provided by the Plaintiffs the work to be done under his contract, 
as well as the remarkable over-run of quantities which he encountered,

20 could have been performed under these weather conditions most propitious 
for inexpensive operation, unless the contractor had been compelled to do 
otherwise for some reason. Without going too much into detail we would 
like to stress in particular Mr. Bishop's evidence upon this point and 
would call to the Court's attention the progress charts both of anticipated 
performance and of actual performance which were produced by him. To 
what cause then must we inevitably attribute the fact that the Plaintiffs 
were compelled to undertake the erection of forms and the pouring of con­ 
crete in unseasonable winter weather. Can it be other than that the un- 
watering difficulties experienced in the bed of the river so delayed the

30 performance of the work that in order to perform his obligation with 
respect to the completion date he found himself compelled to proceed un­ 
der these adverse winter conditions ?

It would be idle wre think to reiterate the detail of the argument 
submitted under claim No. 3. but we submit that when the Court came to 
the conclusion that the coffer damming difficulties arose from the fault 
of the Defendant both by reason of its delict with regard to the logs and 
the inadequacy of its plans and the misrepresentations contained there­ 
in, then it could not fail to conclude that the delay occasioned by those dif- 

40 ficulties in the river was the compelling cause of the contractor working 
under winter conditions and that the Defendant is equally liable for the 
additional expense thereby occasioned.

It might be urged and argued that it would have been more prudent 
for the Plaintiff, having completed the work essential to the unwatering 
and excavation of the river bed, to have held over their further operations 
until the Spring. No great stretch of the imagination is required, we sub­ 
mit, to visualize, having in mind the nature of the river bed, the complete
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disappearance in the spring floods of the succeeding year, of the work done 
the previous summer and fall in the river bed. With respect to this claim 
the Plaintiffs claimed judgment for the sum of $96,832.45, this amount- 
being made up of his actual outlay for labour and material of $70,680.62, 
with the 37% added. The Trial Court allowed the $70,680.62 plus 15% 
for overhead and plant or $81,282.62 expressly holding that "the delay 
was caused by the porous nature of the overburden at the places marked 
ledge, and the delay caused by defendant's logs" (Vol. 6, p. 1256.). }0

The connection between the winter work and the delay in the mi- 
watering is clearly expressed in Mr. Lefebvre's report already cited; 
Vol. 5, page 912. "The unwateriug of the dam site was quite difficult and 
the work was delayed a few months on that account. Pouring concrete will 
have to be made during most of the winter and the work will be completed 
early in the spring."

The manner in which Plaintiffs' calculation of the additional cost 
is made is clearly set out in our Exhibit P.49 (Vol. 6, p. 1240), and P.116 20 
(at vol. 6, page 1193). Our exhibit P.120 (Vol. 6, page 1247) shows the 
additional costs of building the forms for the concrete during the winter 
months to have been about $18,000.00. No special claim was made for this 
extra cost and it is our submission on this point our evidence has esta­ 
blished that the winter work actually cost us more than the sum we sued 
for. — Even if the Court had been inclined to consider that some of the 
items in this chapter might be open to criticism, the $18,000.00 of addi­ 
tional cost of the forms provided a margin which would have made it easy 
for the Court to award at least the amount set out in the declaration in 
that regard. Some attempt was made by the defendant to challenge these 30 
costs by Mr. Chadwick's evidence. Mr. Chadwick stated that in a general 
way for common concrete $1.30 might be a sufficient increase, but when 
cross-examined and made to realize what the actual conditions were, he 
raised his figure to $2.70 per yard and we submit that our evidence of 
$3.20 per yard remains intact. This is another item on which we contend 
on our cross-appeal the interest should run from the date of the action.

OVERCHARGE ON LOGS

This was a claim for $6893.68 which Plaintiffs claimed was an 
overcharge on logs delivered to the contractor by the owner. The owner 
had billed the contractor for $25,735.06 and had retained that amount 
out of the sums payable to the contractor for work performed. The con­ 
tractor contended that the sum really due should have been only $18,842.28 
because he had been billed according to quantities measured in board feet 
after he had himself caused the lumber to be sawn; whilst he had bought
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the logs in the round subject, as he contended, to measurement according Intcoeurtof 
to the Quebec Government scale. He claimed that made a difference of King_l:Bencl1 
29% because it is possible and usual to get out of logs measured according The Fa°c'tums 
to Quebec scale, that percentage more of deals or boards when they are Respondents 
carefully sawn. The Trial Judge did not accept Plaintiffs' evidence as Appellants 
sufficiently convincing on that score. But he did find that the Defendant fee 
had collected for one lot of 1,100,318 feet at $20.00 per thousand feet when

10 only 1,028.838 feet had been delivered; a difference of 71,480 feet equal to (Contlnuea) 
$1429.60 for which he gave judgment. The particulars in this respect are 
in Vol. 6 at pages 1201 and 1202 and the evidence is in the testimony of H. 
C. Griffith, Vol. 3 at p. 437.

— 10 —

CEMENT FOR APRON IN BY-PASS CHANNEL

We refer to paragraph 35 of the declaration in which this claim is 
set up, and to Vol. 6. page 1204, where the details of a revised claim arc 

20 shown.

The evidence of this claim can, from Plaintiffs' point of view, be 
summed up as follows: At a certain time the engineers in charge of the 
work decided that a concrete apron should be laid in the by-pass channel 
to avoid the possibility of erosion. This apron formed no part of the ori­ 
ginal design of the dam. The giving of this order necessarily increased 
the quantity of cement required for completion of the work. Now, had the 
Plaintiffs been notified while transportation facilities permitted of eco­ 
nomical transport of the cement this claim would not exist. In point of

30 fact, however, the decision to lay this apron was arrived at when the win­ 
ter roads were breaking up and no definite information as to the quantity 
of cement required was given the contractor until the excavation required 
for the apron had been completed. When definite information became 
available winter roads were gone and the transportation of the additional 
cement which the construction of the apron had entailed became a very 
much more expensive proposition than it otherwise would have been, and 
it is the submission of the Plaintiffs that this additional cost of transport­ 
ation formed part of the extra cost of the apron and that they should, 
under the terms of their contract, be compensated for it. Compensation

"*u under the terms of the contract would involve repayment of his actual 
outlay plus 37%, which amounts to $145403 after due credit for the cost 
which would have been involved had the hauling been done on winter roads.

The trial Court overlooked this revision of the claim which appears 
in Mr. Griffith's evidence, Vol. 3. page 470 and following, and it must be 
confessed that he was led into that error by the factums of both parties 
which failed to call his attention to it. In the result he allowed as item 
10 of his judgment $1879.83 whilst it should be only $1454.03. But it 
should bear interest from the date of the action.
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It is quite clear that this apron was an extra. It was not an increase 
in the quantity of the concrete in the dam, but the building of another unit 
altogether and should be paid for under the extra work clause of the con­ 
tract. If one will refer to Mr. Mclntosh's diary, Exhibit P.106 not printed, 
one will see what a tremendously difficult problem it was to get this ce­ 
ment in at that time, and Mr. O'Shea admitted that this extra cement was 
required only because of the building of this apron and that the contrac­ 
tor had enough on hand when the order for the apron was given to complete 
the rest of the job. (Vol. 3, page 581, Lines 20 et seq.)

— 11 — 

SHORTAGE IN PAYMENT FOE CLASS 1 CONCRETE

This claim involves practically no disputed questions of facts and 
depends in its entirety upon the proper construction of the contract be­ 
tween Plaintiff and Defendant. At page 1097, Vol. 6, of the contract are 
found the provisions for additions (o or deductions from the principal 
sum according to whether quantities are increased or diminished, and at 
page 1098 it is provided that for each cubic yard of class 1 concrete with­ 
out plums by which the scheduled quantities are increased there is to be an 
increase of $18.92, and for each cubic yard of Class 1 concrete without 
plums by which the quantities are decreased there is to be a deduction of 
$9 81 while in the following schedule it is provided that for each cubic 
yard of Class 1 concrete with plums by which the scheduled quantities are 
increased there is to be an increase of $17.16 while there is to be a deduc­ 
tion of $9.31 for each cubic yard of Class 1 concrete with plums by which 
the scheduled quantities are decreased. — It is common ground that the 
Class 1 concrete without plums actually poured was 23,656 cubic yards, 
while the quantity scheduled in the contract was 9690 cubic yards. Apply­ 
ing the unit price above referred to, $18.92, we find that the contractor's 
price should have been increased by $264,236.72 on this head. It is equally 
beyond dispute that the contract quantities of Class 1 concrete with plums 
were 10,800 cubic yards, while the actual quantity of this class poured 
was 6,781, a decrease of 4,019 cubic yards. Applying to this the figure $9.31 
referred to in (k) on page 1098 we find that the contract price should be 
decreased by $37,416.89 on this head, leaving a net increase of $226,819.83. 
— The engineer's estimates in respect of class 1 concrete have only allowed 
the Plaintiffs the sum of $195,270.68 leaving a net difference in the con­ 
tractor's favor of $31,549.15. The figures above referred to are not dis­ 
puted and it is our submission that any construction of the contract other 
than that which Plaintiff upholds must clearly be in absolute contradic­ 
tion and negation of these clear and unambiguous words. The evidence, as 
the Court will find, disclosed that the Defendant itself up to a certain 
point so interpreted the contract, but that the bright idea occurred to some 
one when the latter estimates were going through that since they had the

10
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funds in their hands they might insist upon an arbitrary construction of Intcourtof
the contract involving as we have previously said the negation of its terms KingliBench
and retain the amount in question leaving it to Plaintiffs to assert their meFactums
rights. We submit that the terms of the contract are clear and unequivo- Respondents
cal and that Plaintiffs are, beyond question, entitled to be paid the amount AppSlants
claimed, and the Trial Court "so found (Vol. 6 p. 1257). ooS?o*?a

King's Bench
6 May 1935

-, Q (Continued)10 — J-^ —
PLANT REMOVAL

This claim falls with the class of those which arise from the damage 
resultant upon the erroneous representation of the Defendant in its plans 
and its misconduct in the driving of its logs. The evidence establishes, we 
submit, that Plaintiffs could, but for the difficulties encountered in the 
bed of the stream, have completed its work well within that period of 
time which would have permitted Plaintiffs' plant to have been removed 
from the locus of the work over winter roads, which in that locality offer

20 the most economical method of transportation. Due to the fault of De­ 
fendant, details of which appeared before in evidence and argument rela­ 
ting to the claim for imwatering the river bed, delays were ocasioned to 
Plaintiffs which prevented their use of these favourable transportation 
facilities, hence an additional delay and loss to Plaintiffs of $5247.06 in­ 
stead of $5823.49 as set up in paragraph 39 of the Declaration and esta­ 
blished by the evidence of Plaintiffs' witness Griffith. The details of this 
claim are in Volume 6, at pages 12*05 and 1206, and the evidence in Vol. 3 
at pages 471 et seq. There was no dispute in the factums of the parties 
as to accuracy of the figures and no special reference to the adjustment

30 and in consequence the Trial Court overlooked the adjustment and gave 
judgment for the original claim $5823.49 which must be reduced to $5247.06 
but which should bear interest from the date of the action.

— 13 — 

STANDBY AND OVERHEAD EXPENSES
These claims which total $49,147.41 are set up in paragraphs 40 and 

41 of the declaration and the particulars were proved by Mr. Griffith in 
Vol. 3, at pages 474 et seq. The Trial Court however, refused to allow 

40 them.—
— 14 —

INTEREST
Claim number 14 related to interest claimed by Plaintiffs in res­ 

pect of delays in the payment of sums due from the defendant. The amount 
involved was in comparison with the total amount at issue a trifling one, 
but in view of the attitude which Defendant adopted during the course of 
the contract, Plaintiffs felt justified in insisting upon payment of the 
amount claimed, namely $286.90 but the Trial Court disallowed it.
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CONCLUSIONS
The total amount of the judgment must be reduced by $1002.23 be­ 

cause of the two clerical errors to which we ourselves have drawn atten­ 
tion, i. e., the allowance of $1879.83 instead of $1454.03 on claim number 
10 and the allowance of $5823.49 instead of $5,247.06 on claim number 12. 
These two errors were clearly clerical errors that would have been cor­ 
rected without any appeal as soon as attention was called to them and we 
submit that the judgment should be confirmed in all other respects and ^ 
the main appeal dismissed.

(CROSS-APPEAL)
As we have already pointed out, the Trial Judge gave interest on 

four items from the date of judgment only instead of from the date of 
the action. Plaintiffs made a cross-appeal limiting it, however, to this one 
point.

It is our submission that it clearly appears from the evidence and 
the judgment that no interest beyond the date of the action was included 20 
in the amounts awarded for these items and that being the case Plaintiffs 
were entitled to interest thereon from the date of the action, and the 
amount being a substantial one, $36,060.70, it warranted the cross-appeal.

We rely upon the judgment of this Court in the case of the Mont­ 
real Gas Company and Vasey, 8 K.B., 412, (See note of Judge Wurtele at 
K. 431) and the confirmation of the Privy Council in this respect. (Can. 
Rep. 12 A.C., 301, at page 307) from which we quote as follows:—

"The learned Chief Justice considered that the first judgment must 
be taken to include interest in the damages awarded up to the date of the 30 
judgment; this, however, does not appear to have been done, and, in the 
absence of any evidence that it was so comprised, their Lordship think 
they must treat interest from the date of the action as not included in the 
damages. Then, as it appears that the respondent was entitled to recover 
interest from the date the appellants were put "en demeure" by the ser­ 
vice of process, the judgment of the Court of Queens Bench in this respect 
must be considered not to have been successfully impeached."

We also rely upon the decision of this Court in Great Northern Con­ 
struction Company et al vs Ross et al, 25 K.B. 385, and Mr. Justice Do- ^Q 
rion's judgment in the Quebec Harbour Commissioners vs New Zealand 
and Shipping Company, 50 C. S. 305.

On the strength of these decisions and on the general principle that 
a judgment is a declaration of rights and operates as such from the date 
the action was brought, it is respectfully submitted that the cross-appeal 
should be allowed.

Montreal, May 6th 1935.
Brown, Montgomery & McMichael, 

Attorneys for Respondents on the Main Appeal
and Appellants on the Cross-appeal. 

Louis St. Laurent, K.C., 
Counsel.
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The Appellants have appealed on the question of interest only from cour"of e 
the judgment of the Superior Court of the District of Montcalm, rendered ?onlept. ei935 

JO by Honourable Mr. Justice White, dated June 1st, 1934 and recorded as 
of June 10th, 1934. By this judgment the action of the present Appellants 
against Respondent was maintained for the sum of $293,585.84, with interest 
on $206,061.16 from the date of judgment and interest on the balance from 
the date of action, December 9th, 1930. By their appeal appellants claim 
that they should have been awarded interest on the full amount of the 
judgment from the date of action.

The present Respondent has also appealed from said judgment and 
in its faction in support of its own appeal, to which Respondent now re- 

20 fers, all the facts of the case have been fully dealt with.

The judgment awards Appellants interest from the date of service 
of the action, as claimed, on all the items except the following:—

CLAIM 3—INCREASED COST OF COFFER-DAMS & UN- 
WATERING
Amount awarded ................................... $117,075.22

3Q CLAIM 8—WORK UNDER WINTER CONDITIONS
Amount awarded .................................... $81,282.62

CLAIM 10—CEMENT FOR APRON IN BY-PASS CHANNEL
Amount awarded .......................... $1,879.83

CLAIM 12—PLANT REMOVAL
Amount awarded ............................... $5,823.49

40 The amount awarded Appellants under Claim 3 above mentioned is 
stated in the judgment to be awarded not as something due under the con­ 
tract, but as damages. (Volume VI, p. 1255, 1. 30). In allowing this sum 
as damages the Court expressly declares that interest is to run only from 
date of judgment. This can only mean that the learned Trial Judge in as­ 
sessing the damages which he considered payable had calculated the 
amount due up to the date of judgment and therefore any interest that 
may be owing in connection with such item must be treated as being in-
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In court of eluded in the amount awarded. There is, therefore, no conflict between the 
Ktngj^Bench ju(jgmen£ jn this case on the matter of interest and the case of Montreal 

TneFa°ctum Gas Company & Vasey 8 K. B. 412 upon which appellants rely.
respondent

COM"of e Claim Number 8 is of the same nature. It is stated in the judg-
ionlept. ei936 ment that "this is another item in the nature of damages." (Volume VI,
(continued) ^ 1256, 1. 30) The same observations would therefore apply as in the

case of Claim 3. }Q

As to Claim 10, it is apparent from the remarks of the learned Trial 
Judge at page 1256, 11. 40-50, that the amount awarded under this claim 
was also awarded by way of damages and not as something due under the 
contract. No other conclusion is possible when the nature of the claim it­ 
self is considered. The same principle applies to Claim 12, which was 
maintained on the basis of damages and not as something due under the 
contract. (See Judgment, p. 1257, 11. 20-40).

The basis on which the learned Trial Judge has awarded interest 20 
therefore seems quite clear. As regards amounts that he found to be owing 
under the contract, he awarded interest from the date of service of the 
action. As regards the four items above mentioned, he did not consider 
that these were due under the contract, but as damages, and in assessing 
the damages he expressly declared that interest would only run from date 
of judgment. It is respectfully submitted that if it should be found that 
Appellants are entitled to the whole or any part of the amounts awarded 
under these items, that this Court also should award interest only from 
the date of judgment, as was done by the Trial Judge.

30
Respondent, of course, does not admit that Appellant's claim as re­ 

gards any of these items is well-founded, and in its own appeal has urged 
that the claim of Appellants as regards all of these four items should be dis­ 
missed in toto.

For the foregoing reasons Respondent respectfully asks that the 
present appeal of Appellants be dismissed with costs.

Montreal, September 10th, 1935.
40

Aylen & Aylen, 
Attorneys for Respondent. 

Aime Greoffrion, K.C., 
Counsel.
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Formal Judgment of the Court of King's Bench Maintaining the Appeal Form^f' 6 
of The James MacLaren Company Limited. i^fc^urtof

King's Bench 
Maintaining

Province de Quebec COUR DU BANC DU ROI SnSSSL 
10 District de Montreal (En Appel) company"
-1" \ J. .L / Limited

27 Dec. 1935

Montreal, le vingt-septieme jour de decembre 1935.

CORAM:—BERNIER, RIVARD, LETOURNEAU, HALL, ST-GER- 
MAIN, JJ.

No. 870
THE JAMES MACLAREN COMPANY,

corps politique et incorpore ayant sa principale place d'affaires dans la
ville de Buckingham, district de Hull, 

20 APPELANTE,
&

WILLIAM I. BISHOP LIMITED,
corps politique et incorpore ayant sa principale place d'affaires en la cite

de Montreal et BANK OF MONTREAL, corps politique et incorpore
ayant sa principale place d'affaires en la cite de Montreal,

INTIMEES, 
&

30
A. DUBREITIL,

Registrateur de la division d'enregistrement du comte de Labelle,

MIS EN CAUSE.

LA COUR, apres avoir entendu les parties par leurs procureurs 
respectifs sur le merite clu present appel, avoir examine le dossier et sur 
le tout delibere;

40 ATTENDU que pour regulariser le debit de la Lievre a son pro- 
pre benefice comme a 1'usage des industries situees sur le parcours de 
cette riviere, la Compagnie-Appelante a forme le pro jet d'y etablir un 
barrage a 1'endroit appele Rapides des Cedres, dans le comte de Labelle;

ATTENDU qiie PIntimee William I. Bishop Limited, a offert ses 
services comme entrepreneur et que sa soumission ayant ete acceptee le 
5 novembre 1928, les travaux commencerent aussitot, et que bien que la 
signature du contrat ait ete differee jusqu'au 23 mai 1929, on y trouve 
une clause pourvoyant a ce qu'il soit sense avoir ete fait et signe le 15 no­ 
vembre 1928;



_ no _——— J£j

Intcoeurtot ATTENDU que ce barrage, une fois construit, devait appartenir 
King^Bench ^ J R commissjon <} es Eaux Courantes de Quebec et que ceci impliquait 

Formal0 ' 6 pour les travaux a faire, un controle et une direction de son ingenieur;
Judgment of 
the Court of
Main't8aintagh ATTENDU que Men que pour un montant initial de $609,100., ce
ot?ThepjImes contrat pourvoyait a certaines additions ou deductions suivant des prix
cIoampa'nyn de serie ou de base, arretes a ce contrat;
Limited
27 Dec. 1936 |Q
(continued) ATTENDU qu'il resulte des termes memes du dit contrat qu'il de­ 

vait etre execute jusqu'au bout et sans que Pentrepreneur en put deman- 
der 1'annulation, quelque chaiigement qu'on put faire aux plans au cours 
de 1'entreprise, sauf indemnite d'apres ce qu'il y etait pourvu pour chaque 
cas;

ATTENDU que le contrat en question a ete execute et qu'apres 
avoir deja touche comme prix une sonime de $916,723.57, les Intimees 
William I. Bishop Limited et la Banque de Montreal demandent par ac­ 
tion un montant additionnel de $412,846.75 que le tribunal de premiere 20 
instance a admis jusqu'a concurrence de $293,585.84, adjugeant cette der- 
niere somme a la Banque Intimee comme cessionnaire, le tout selon les 
precisions que comporte le tableau que voici:—

Amount claimed Amount allowed 

Title of Claim by the Action by the judgment

No. 1—Hardpan Excavation ......................... $21,601.45 $13,919.45
No. 2—Passing logs .................................. 4,103.72 2,995.4230
No. 3—Cofferdam & Unwatering ................. 148,857.15 117,075.22
No. 4—Cofferdam Lower End By-pass ...... .5,563.50
No. 5—Additionnal cost of Rock Excavation 55,100.74 35,100.74 
No. 6—Handling & Trimming Excavated

Rock ...................................... ................ 1,990.82
No. 7—Excavating Frozen Material in river

bed ............................................................ 2,530.32 2,530.32
No. 8—Work under winter conditions ....... 96,832.45 81,282.62
No. 9—Overcharge on Logs ............................ 7,220.19 1,429.60
No. 10—Cement for Apron in By-pass channel 2,239.46 1,879.83 40 
No. 11—Shortage in payment for Class 1

Concrete ................................................. 31,549.15 31,549.15
No. 12—Plant removal ................ 5,823.49 5,823.49
No. 13—Standby & Overhead Expense .......... 49,147.41
No. 14—Interest on Deferred payments ....... 286.90

_L

$412,846.75 $293,585.84
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In theATTENDU que la Compagnie THE JAMES McLAREN COMPA­ 

NY LIMITED en appelle du jugement de la Cour Superieure, reconnais- 
sant toutefois comme fonde I'item 9 du tableau precite et acquiescent pour 
autant a une condamnatioii de $1429.60;

Maintaining

CONSIDERANT que les parties ont eutendu, par leur contrat en 
question, pourvoir a tout ce qui presentement les divise et que c'est sous 

10 1'empire de ce contrat exclusivement que ks travaux dont il s'agit out etc 
demandes et executes, chaque partie comptaut seulement au cas d'un con- 
flit, sin- 1'arbitrage de la clause du contrat que voici:—

"It is understood and agreed by both parties that the Engineer's 
decision regarding the quality of the materials or workmanship 1o 
be furnished under the terms of this contract shall be final and 
binding. Should any dispute arise as to the interpretation of the 
terms of this contract, as to cost of changes and extra work per­ 
formed, or in regard to any other matter regarding the execution 

20 or final settlement of this contract, it shall be referred to a Board 
of three arbitrators "

CONSIDERANT que faute d'avoir eu recours a cet arbitrage, 
les parties se soiit pour tout ce qui aurait pu en etre 1'objet, sounds a une 
decision du tribunal competent;

CONSIDERANT qu'il y a lieu en consequence d'examiner separe- 
ment le Men fonde de chacun des items du tableau susmentionne — sauf 
celui de $1429.60 reconnu par 1'Appelante—, et que la Cour Superieure a 

30 admis;

CONSIDERANT que pour ce qui est de I'item No. 1 et qui se rap- 
porte au creusage de 1'argile durci (hardpan excavation), le contrat et les 
devis qui s'y rattachent ne eomportent qu'une seulc distinction: ou da 
"roc" ou de la "terre", et que pour chacun de ces deux cas, le contrat fixe 
expressement le prix a etre paye;

CONSIDERANT que si meme il f alia it dire que ce que les Intimes
ont ainsi represente comme du "hardpan" en etait veritablement, il reste-

40 rait d'apres la preuve que ce n'etait pas du "roc", et que les Intimees
etaient en consequence reduites a lie pourvoir charger que selon 1'autre
alternative, savoir comme pour de la "terre";

CONSIDERANT que les Intimees ne peuvent a ce sujet invoquer 
la clause des devis incorpores au contrat et qui apres avoir prescrit que 
les materiaux ou les ouvrages seraient de premiere classe, font la reserve: 
"without working an undue hardship on the Contractor", puisque cette
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^'court^of ^ reserve est, selon le contexte, particuliere a la nature de 1'ouvrage et du 
materiel et ne peut etre d'aucun effet a 1'encontre des termes memes du 
contrat ou pour en alterer les prix;

CONSIDERANT que 1'Intimee William I. Bishop Limited ne pou- 
vait quant a ce premier item de son compte, charger autrement qu'au 
prix convenu pour la "terre" et qu'ayant regu le plein montant de ce qui 

27Iui)e?. less mi etait du sur cette base, 1'action serait mal fondee et le iugement de-
sn«inf{Tiiiai1\ " do

Judgment of 
the Court of

Limited

(Continued) . *, . „. , ,vrait etre intirme quant au surplu

CONSIDERANT que 1'item No. 2 pour flottage du bois de 1'Ap- 
pelante (Passing Logs) depend de Interpretation qu'il convient de don- 
ner a la clause suivante du contrat : —

"He shall so contract the coffer dams and arrange and manage the 
construction of the works as a whole, that logs of the owner, may be 
driven by the site of the dam during the driving season of 1929, and 
shall provide such opportunities for the passage of logs as the con- 20 
truction work may render necessary."

CONSIDERANT que la premiere partie de cette clause du con­ 
trat pourvoit a une ouverture suffisante au passage du bois flotte, mais 
que la seconde implique qu'il devait en outre etre pourvu a des moyens 
pour que les billots ne s'arretent ou ne se perdent;

CONSIDERANT qu'il n'y avait a ce sujet qu'un seul moyen pra­ 
tique, celui des estacades voulues ;

30
CONSIDERANT que 1 'Intimee William I. Bishop Limited a, de 

fait, accepte de recourir a ce moyen, mais que les estacades qu'elle a ainsi 
pretendu etablir se sont trouvees insuff isantes et inef f icaces parce que trop 
minces, trop f aibles et improprement orientees par rapport au courant ;

CONSIDERANT que ladite Intimee doit au fait de n 'avoir pas 
pris les precautions voulues et que lui imposait son contrat, d 'avoir souf- 
f ert les ennuis et les troubles qui lui sont venu des billots a la derive, et 
qu'elle doit en consequence subir les dommages qui ont pului en resulter;

CONSIDERANT que 1'item No. 3 pour cout plus eleve des batar- 
deaux et de 1'assechement (cofferdams and unwatering) se rapporte a la 
construction et a I'efficacite d'un barrage temporaire qu'il fallait a 1 'In­ 
timee Wm. I. Bishop Limited pour executer son entreprise, consequemment 
a un accessoire qui etait plutot pour son compte, dont elle avait seule la 
direction et le controle et que couvrait son prix global ;

CONSIDERANT que les Intimees font reposer les dommages de 
cet item sur deux griefs: a) 1'appelante en fournissant a 1 'Intimee Wm. I.
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Bishop Limited un certain plan, lui aurait donne des informations erro- Intc0eurtof 
nees touchant le lit de la riviere a 1'endroit ou elle a voulu mettre son ba- Ktag^_Ben<:h 
tardeau; b) le bois flotte par la Compagnie-Appelante aurait empeche la- Formal0 ' 6 
dite Intimee de f aire etanche ce barrage temporaire ;n *- ' King's Bench 

Maintaining

CONSIDERANT que les soiidages qui apparaissent an plan remis 
(p-2) n 'etait nullement faits en vue du barrage temporaire que 1 'Intimee company" 

JO Wm. I. Bishop Limited se devait d'etablir pour 1 'execution des travaux 27mblc. 1935 
entrepris, mais seulement pour determiner le meilleur site de la digue ; (continued)

CONSIDERANT qu'a sa face le plan en question etait insuffisant ; 
qu'il etait de la prudence la plus elementaire de connaitre autrement la 
nature et le lit de la riviere a 1'endroit du batardeau afin d'y descendre et 
arreter comme il convenait les caissons; qu'en fait 1 'Intimee Wm. I. Bi­ 
shop Limited a precede a un examen nouveau du lit de la riviere avant 
d'y etablir son barrage temporaire et que c'est sans en aucune fagoii s'as- 
sujettir aux pretendues indications du plan re m qu 'elle etabli ce barrage; 

20
CONSIDERANT que pour les motifs cleja donnes 1 'Intimee Wm. 

I. Bishop Limited ne peut s'en prendre qu'a elle-meme d 'avoir ete en- 
nuyee et retardee par le bois flotte ;

CONSIDERANT qu'il results de la preuve que 1'Intimee William 
I. Bishop Limited a plutot dil a un defaut de soins et de precautions 
d 'avoir eu des difficultes au sujet de I'etablissement de son barrage tem­ 
poraire et d 'avoir subi les inconvenients qui sont invoques au soutien du 
present item de la reclamation ; 

30
CONSIDERANT que les Intiniees doivent eu consequence suppor­ 

ter seules la pretendue perte que represonte cet item ;

CONSIDERANT que 1'it em No. 5 suivant est pour cout addition- 
nel du creusage dans le roc (additional cost of rock excavation), non que 
les Intimees pretendent n 'avoir pas ete payees au prix convenu et pour le 
nombre de verges cubes qui ef fectivement out ete enleves, mais parce que 
1 'entrepreneur aurait ete assujetti a proceder par couches plus minces 
qu'il n'aurait voulu; 

40
CONSIDERANT que la clause du contrat qui a trait a cette par- 

tie de 1'ouvrage se lit : —

"In preparing foundations for the concrete structures all 
loose ledge must be removed and the excavation carried to a suffi­ 
cient depth to provide a safe foundation and remove all open seams 
or joints which might at some time permit leakage or act as sliding 
planes.
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In the
Court of 

King' a Bench

No. 6 
Formal 
Judgment of 
the Court of 
King's Euiicli 
Maintaining 
the Appeal 
of The James 
MacLaren 
Company 
Limited 
27 Dec. 1935 

(Continued)

All this work shall be done as directed by and to the satisfac­ 
tion of the Engineer.

Cut-off trenches approximately as shown upon the drawings 
shall be excavated in the ledge with minimum dimensions indicated. 
Great care should be used with explosives in excavating these tren­ 
ches so as not to shatter the ledge unnecessarily or open any cracks 
which shall cause leakage or allow water to exert pressure under- jo 
neath the structure...."

CONSIDERANT qu'il resulte du temoignage de Pingenieur qui 
avait la direction de ces travaux speciaux, qu'il a ete precede selon qu'on 
devait et que le mode qu'auraient voulu les Intimees presente des incon- 
venients serieux auxquels, dans les eirconstances, ne pouvait etre assujet- 
tie 1'Appelante;

CONSIDERANT que le montant de cct item aurait en consequence 
du etre refuse; 20

CONSIDERANT que des avant de formuler 1'item No. 7 suivant 
de son compte pour extraction de matieres gelees dans le lit de la riviere 
(excavating frozen material in river), 1'Intimee Win. I. Bishop Limited 
avait deja regu pour les 811 verges cubes de sable, de gravier et de cail- 
loux qui etaient sur le roc du fond de la riviere, le prix qu'elle avait sti­ 
pule pour extraction de la terre, savoir $1.25 la verge cube;

CONSIDERANT que pour les motifs deja donnes, la clause de 
"undue hardship" ne saurait venir au secours des Intimees quant a cet 30 
item particulier, ni le prix stipule au contrat pour du "roc" s'y appliquer;

CONSIDERANT que ces matieres du lit de la riviere n'ont ete 
gelees et durcies que par suite de retards dont 1'Intime Wm. I. Bishop 
Limited est seule responsable;

fuse;
CONSIDERANT que cet item de la reclamation aurait du etre re-

CONSIDERANT que 1'item No. 8 suivant pour travail durant 40 
1'hiver (work under winter conditions) et que les Intimees font encore de- 
couler du retard apporte, soil que celui-ci provienne des diffictiltes et de 
1'insuffisance du batardeau et de Passeehement plus difficile du lit de la ri­ 
viere ou de Pampleur meme des travaux ordonnes, doit egalement etre re­ 
fuse par les motifs que 1'Intimee Wm. I. Bishop est d'apres la preuve 
seule responsable de la premiere de ces deux causes de retard et que pour 
ce qui est de la seconde cause, celle de quantites plus considerables, il y a 
eu paiement selon que prevu au contrat;
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CONSIDERANT que 1'item 10 du tableau ci-dessus et qui est pour Intcoeurtof 
ciment du tablier (cement for apron in by-pass channel) vient de ce que Km8_l enc 
1'Intimee William I. Bishop Limited, requise seulement en date du 13 Formal'

-i r>orv i r> • L JIT-I i i -i ' • j_- Judgment ofmars 1930 de taire comme extra ce tablier du canal de derivation, se se- 
rait ainsi vue foreee d'employer tout le ciment qu'elle avait encore sur les 
lieux et qu'elle gardait pour finir par ailleurs 1'entreprise, encourant ainsi 
et a raison de la perte du benefice des chemins d'hiver pour suppleer a 

10 cette earence, des dommages que le tribunal de premiere instance a fixes

CONSIDERANT que 1'Intimee William I. Bishop Limited etait 
assujettie par son contrat a 1'obligation d'executer cet extra comme tout 
autre, sans egard an moment ou a la saison oil il pourrait lui etre deman- 
de, et que eelle-ei a etc selou les prix convenus payee de cet ouvragc addi- 
tionnel;

CONSIDERANT qu'il result e de la preuve que meme a cette date 
20 du 13 mars 1930, les chemins d'hiver existaient encore et que 1'Intimee 

William I. Bishop Limited eut pu en tirer parti pour ref aire la provision 
de ciment qu'il lui fallait;

CONSIDERANT que cet item de dommages est en consequence 
mal fonde;

CONSIDERANT que 1'item No. 11 suivant et qui est pour chan- 
gement de classe de beton (shortage for class 1 concrete) tient egalement 
a 1'interpretation qu'il convient de rlonuer au contrat quant a une reserve 

30 qui s'y trouve, celle pourvoyant a des augmentations ou reductions d'apres 
certains prix de base speciaux, pour le cas d'un changement particulier: 
"due to changes of design or depth of foundations from those used for cal­ 
culating said quantities, there shall be added to or deducted from said 
principle sum according to whether said quantities are increased or dimi­ 
nished, sums computed according to the following table....";

CONSIDERANT que les chiffres donnes de part et d'autre au sujet 
de 1'item dont il s'agit, ont ete reconnus comme exacts, et que le sort de 
cet item depend plutot et exclusivement du benefice que les Intimees pou- 

40 vaient etre admises a tirer de cette reserve faite au contrat;

CONSIDERANT que le changement ainsi prevu ne s'est pas rea­ 
lise et que consequemment les Intimees ne peuvent beneficier de la reserve 
en question;

CONSIDERANT qu'il ne s'est agi la que d'une simple substitution 
d'un ciment No. 1 "without plums" a nn ciment No 1 "with plums", et 
que le paiement regu par 1'Intimee Wm. I. Bishop Limited couvrait ce qui 
lui etait du a ce sujet;
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In "n "court of CONSIDERANT que I'item en question aurait en consequence du
King^Ben,* g^ ref ug .

No. 6

CONSIDERANT que le dernier item du tableau ci-dessus (No. 12) 
pour enlevement du materiel (plant removal), resulte encore et exclusi- 
vemeiit des retards que les Intimees ont voulu mettre au compte de 1'Ap- 

coampanyn pclante, mais dont elles doivent plutot, pour les raisons deja donnees, avoir
1935 toute la responsabilite ; in

(Continued) r ^ _iu

CONSIDERANT que I'item en question doit par suite etre pareil- 
lement refuse aux Intimees ;

CONSIDERANT qu'il y a lieu en consequence de faire droit a 
1'appel et de rejeter la demande, sauf quant a cette somme de $1429.60 de 
I'item No. 9 (overcharge on logs) qui a ete justement admise comme en­ 
core due au moment de 1 'institution de la poursuite;

CONSIDERANT qu'en admettant la demande pour le montant sus- 
mentionne de $1429.60, il est juste de le faire avec interet a compter de la 
signification et les depens d'une action de cette classe, mais que par contre 
et eu egard au fait que la presque totalite de 1'enquete se rapporte plutot 
aux autres items, ceux qui sent refuses comme non fondes, il serait in- 
juste de faire entrer en taxation contre 1'Appelante, plus que un dixieme 
des depenses encourues et taxables de ce chef de 1'enquete;

PAR CES MOTIFS : —
FAIT DROIT a 1'appel avec depens; INFIRME le jugement dont 

ilest appel, et, STATUANT a nouveau, MAINTIENT 1 'action pour un 30 
montant de $1429.60 avec interet sur cette somme a compter de la signifi­ 
cation de 1 'action, et ORDONNE au Mis en Cause, en sa qualite de Regis- 
trateur de la Division d'Enregistrement du Comte de Labelle, de rayer 
quant a tout tel surplus le privilege qui, a la demande de William I. Bi­ 
shop Limited a ete enregistre sur 1'immeuble suivant, savoir:

"Lot "A" in the 4th Range of the Township of Biglow in the 
County of Labelle, and the lots Nos. 1 and 2 in the 1st Range of the 
Township of McGill in the County of Labelle",

que le tribunal de premiere instance a reconnu et confirme quant a tout le 40 
montant de sa condamnation en capital, interets et depens ; les depens aux- 
quelle 1'Appelante reste presentement condamnee et qui par ailleurs sont 
ceux de la classe du montant de $1429.60 qui est accorde aux Intimees, de- 
vront toutefois pour ce qui est de 1 'enqueten 'entrer en taxation contre elle 
que pour un dixieme de ce qui a ete encouru de ce chef de 1'enquete.

Monsieur le juge St-Germain dissident quant au montant.
(signe) Severin Letourneau

J.C.B.R.
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In the
•KTn 1 Court of JNO. I King's Bench

No. 7
The Notes of Hon. Mr. Justice Bernier ^o^Mr.

Justice 
Bernier

Je suis d'opinion de faire droit a I'appel avec depens; je condam- 
nerais la Defenderesse a la somme de $1429.60, avec interets, et les de- 
pens d'une action de ce montant.

Je rejetterais le contre-appel avec depeiis.

(Signe) Alphonse Bernier
J.C>B.R.

NO. 8 In the
Court of 

King's Bench
on The Notes of Hon. Mr. Justice Rivard NO. s/U The Notes

of Hon. Mr. 
justiceJe fais droit a I'appel de la defenderesse The James MacLaren Com- Elvard 

pany Limited, avec depens de I'appel en sa faveur centre les demanderesses 
W. I. Bishop Ltd. et al.

Statuant a nouveau, sur 1'action des demanderesses, je condamne
la compagnie defenderesse a payer $1429.60 avec interets a compter de la
signification de 1'action et les frais en Cour Superieure, les dits frais lie
devant cependant comprendre qu'un dixieine des frais d'enquete, steno-

30 graphic et transcription.

Je rejette le contre-appel avec depens.

(Signe) Adjutor Rivard
J.C.B.B. 

Montreal, 28 decembre 1935.

40 DELTBERE 
RIVARD, J.

Pour regulariser le debit de la Lievre a son propre benefice comme 
a 1'usage des industries situees sur le parcours de cette riviere, la compa­ 
gnie appelante, The James MacLaren Company Limited, avait forme le 
pro jet d'y etablir un barrage a 1'endroit appele Rapide des Cedres, dans 
le comte de Labelle.
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In 'court of

No. 8 
The Notes 
of Hon. Mr. 
Justice 
Eivard 

(Continued)

Le 29 juillet 1928, la compagnie intimee, William I. Bishop Limi- 
offrait ses services comme entrepreneur; et sa soumission ayant ete 

acceptee le 5 novembre suivant, les travaux conimencerent aussitot. Cepen- 
dant, le contrat ne fut definitivement signe que six mois plus tard, le 23 
mai 1929, mais avec 1'entente qu'il s'appliquerait a 1'entreprise comme s'il 
avait ete fait le 15 novembre 1928: "This contract shall avail and be bind­ 
ing on the parties hereto as if signed on November 15th 1928." (D.c., page 
1100). 10

Ce barrage du rapide des Cedres, une fois construit, devait appar- 
tenir a la Commission des eaux courantes de Quebec (S.R.Q. 1925, ch. 46, 
art. 68) ; c'est ce qui explique le concours de la Commission dans 1'entre- 
prise et le pouvoir de controle et de direction attribue a son ingenieur en 
chef sur les travaux.

C'est 1'execution de ce contrat qui a ete la source du present litige.

La construction du barrage fut terminee le 15 juin 1930. Suivant 20 
les conventions, des paiements avaient ete f aits a 1 'entrepreneur durant les 
travaiix; mais le 26 juin 1930, il fit enregistrer un privilege pour la som­ 
me de $660,228.03. D'autres paiements ayant ete effectues, la compagnie 
Bishop se trouva avoir recu en tout $916,723.57.

Enfin, le 9 decembre 1930, pretendant qu'elle etait encore creancie- 
re pour $412,846.75, la compagnie Bishop prit une action en recouvre- 
ment de cette somme et en confirmation de son privilege pour autant.

Par jugement du ler juin 1934, la Cour Superieure a adjuge a la 30 
compagnie Bishop les conclusions de son action jusqu'a concurrence de 
$293,585.84, avec interets sur $206,061.16 a compter de la date du juge­ 
ment et sur le reste a compter de 1'action, et les frais.

La compagnie MacLaren en appelle.

Elle admet un item de $1429.60. Get item mentionne au no 9 des re­ 
clamations de 1'action, et qui etait originairement de $7220.19, a ete reduit 
par la Cour superieure a ladite somme de $1429.60. La compagnie Mac­ 
Laren acquiesce au jugement sur ce point; mais elle demande que 1'action 40 
soit rejetee quant au surplus.

De son cote, la compagnie Bishop enteiid faire maintenir le juge­ 
ment, sauf correction de deux erreurs, savoir:

lo—Sur 1'item No 10, le chiffre de la somme accordee par la Cour Supe­ 
rieure devrait etre de $1454.03 au lieu de $1879.83; difference: $425.80. 
20—Sur 1'item no 12, on aurait du compter $5247.06 au lieu de $5,823.49; 
difference: $576.43.
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La correction de ces deux erreurs ramenerait le total du jugement In conn of 
a $292,583.61; et la compagnie Bishop pretend que le jugement est Men Kmg!lBencl1 
f onde pour cette somme, tandis que la compagnie MacLaren soutient qu 'elle The Notes 
ne devrait etre que de $1429.60.-1-

De plus, la compagnie Bishop se plaint par contre-appel que la Cour
superieure ne lui a accorde d'interets sur une partie de la somme qu'a

10 compter de la date du jugement. Elle pretend avoir droit a 1'interet sur
le tout a partir du 9 decembre 1930, date de son action, a quoi la compagnie
MacLaren s'oppose.

(La Banque de Montreal se trouve jointe a la compagnie Bishop 
comme demanderesse, parce que les droits de cette derniere lui avaient 
etc transported).

Rivard 
(Continued)

L'action de la compagnie Bishop est basee sur le contrat intervenu 
20 entre elle et la compagnie MacLaren. Diverses conventions consignees 

dans ce contrat devront etre rappelees a mesure qu'il sera besom, au cours 
de Pexamen des reclamations mais il pent etre utile de signaler des le de­ 
but quelques clauses de portee generale, afin de pouvoir ensuite y re- 
ferer brievement.

lo—On remarque d'abord que. pour les considerations stipulees, la 
compagnie Bishop entreprenait d'executer completement 1'entreprise, y 
compris les changements qui pourraient etre apportes au projet primitif. 
Une estimation des quantites quant au creusage, au beton, a tons les ou- 

30 vrages preparatoires, et a tout ce qui eoneernait 1'erection meme du bar­ 
rage, etait faite dans le contrat; mais il etait expressement convenu que 
tout cela n'etait qu'approximatif et qu'en tout cas quelque travail qu'il 
fallut accomplir, la compagnie Bishop 1'entreprenait et devait 1'executer 
aux conditions du contrat, avec les augmentations les additions ct les chan­ 
gements.

En somme, la compagnie Bishop entreprenait de construire le bar­ 
rage du rapide des Cedres pour un prix dont le total, quoique estime d'a­ 
bord a $609,100.00, devait etre determine par addition ou deduction suivant 

40 les prix de serie fixes dans le contrat pour chaque verge cube ou chaque 
pied carre de plus ou de moins que les quantites y mentionnees.

Ceci, qui apparait a plusieur endroits, se trouvait specialement sti­ 
pule dans la clause suivante (D.c. p. 1096) :

"In consideration of the faithful performance on the part of 
the Contractor of all the covenants and agreements herein contain­ 
ed the Owner agrees to pay to the Contractor in the manner and at
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In the
Court of 

King's Bench
NoTs 

The Notes 
of Hon. Mr. 
Justice 
Eivard 

(Continued)

the times hereinafter specified the sum of Six hundred, and nine 
thousand one hundred dollars ($609,100.00) referred to elsewhere 
herein as the principal sum, and said principal sum, plus the sums 
to be paid as provided for herein for any authorized extra work 
which shall have been performed by the Contractor shall be the li­ 
mit of the liability of the Owner hereunder provided that the quan­ 
tities of the various classes of work required to construct the dam 
shall prove to be the same as those given in the schedule of quail- 10 
tities hereinbefore contained.

"If, however, the quantities of any of the various classes oi' 
work required to build the dam shall be different from the corres­ 
ponding quantities hereinbefore given due to changes of design or 
depth of foundations from those used for calculating said quanti­ 
ties, there shall be added to or deducted from said principal sum 
according to whether said quantities are increased or diminished, 
sums computed according to the following table and the net sum 
produced by these additions and deductions plus the value of any 20 
extra work performed by the Contractor and computed in the man­ 
ner hereinbefore provided, shall become the total amount to be paid 
by the Owner to the Contractor for all of the work performed by 
him under the terms of this contract;''

Suivait une serie de prix sur laquelle devaient etre calculees les aug­ 
mentations et les deductions du prix total mentionne.

En consequence, il n'y avait pas lieu pour la compagnie Bishop de 
demander I'annulation du contrat, quelque changement qu'on ait fait dans 30 
les plans au cours de I'entreprise, parce qu'il etait specialement convenu 
que ces changements pourraient en effet etre ordonnees et qu'elle serait 
tenue de les executer aux conditions stipulees.

2o—Nous venons de voir que le total de $609,100. n'etait qu'appro- 
ximatif; il pouvait varier suivant les quantites du travail qui serait execu­ 
te ; le tout devrait en tout cas etre etabli suivant les prix de serie convenus.

On avait meme prevu le cotit de tout travail additionnel (extra 
work). Rien ne devait etre compris clans cette classe de travaux de ce qui 40 
etait necessaire pour le par ache vement de 1'ouvrage; mais si la compa­ 
gnie Bishop avait a executer quelque travail qui put vraiment etre compte 
comme additionnel, elle ne pouvait reclamer de compensation que si son 
propre ingenieur avait ordonne ce travail par ecrit et si la reclamation 
etait faite avant 1'execution. Le travail additionnel fait dans ces dernieres 
conditions devait etre paye au cout reel du travail et des materiaux, plus 
37%. (D.C. p. 1091).
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"It is understood and agreed by both parties hereto that In 
nothing shall be construed as extra work which is necessary for the King^_Bench 
proper completion of the work in accordance with the manifest in- The Notes 
tent of the drawings and specifications and that no claim for addi- justice' Mr ' 
tional compensation for any work done under this contract shall be ^continued) 
considered or allowed except as hereinafter provided unless such 
claim is made before the performance of the work in question. The 

10 Engineer will issue a written order for the execution of legitimate 
extra work and no payments for extra work shall be made in the 
absence of such orders from the Engineer.

"For such extra work as the Contractor shall perform by 
virtue of the written authorizations of the Engineer, the Owner 
shall pay to the Contractor, in addition to the principal sum here­ 
inafter specified, sums of money equal to:

"(a) The actual cost of the labor directly employed for, 
20 and the materials used in performing said extra work; plus 

" (b) thirty-seven (37) per cent of said labor and mate­ 
rial costs, it being agreed by both parties that said thirty- 
seven percent thereof °hall be considered to be the cost to the 
Contractor of small tools, plans maintenance, overhead and 
superintendence insurance and other indirect costs of per­ 
forming said extra work, and that it shall include the profit 
to be received by the Contractor therefor".

3o—Le contrat (D.C. p. 185 et s.) est cense comprendre les speci- 
30 fications (D.c. p. 1101 et s.), lequelles en font partie (D.c. pp. 1086 et 

1133).

4o—Nous avons vu les pouvoirs attribues a 1'ingenieur du proprie- 
taire quant aux extras (D.C. p. 1086 et 1091). Pour tout le reste, 1'inge­ 
nieur en chef de la Commission des eaux courantes exerc.ait un controle 
souverain sur 1'entreprise. (D.C. p. 1086).

"It is further agreed that the construction of the dam shall be car­ 
ried out and completed under the Engineering Supervision and to 

40 the satisfaction of the Chief Engineer of the Quebec Streams Com­ 
mission, and a Resident Engineer to be appointed by him who shall 
be his representative on the work and have and exercise the autho­ 
rity granted the Engineer in this contract and specifications in all 
matters pertaining to and affecting the proper construction of the 
dam, and its safety and durability."

5o—II est opportun de noter aussi la clause suivante invoquee par 
la compagnie MacLaren. (D.C. p. 1106) :
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In "courtof "It is the intention of these specifications to secure thoroughly 
Kmg^Bench first-class construction in both material and labor for each of the 

The Note! classes included herein without working an undue hardship on the 
jusuce' Mr' Contractor. The omission of any clause necessary to obtain the ful- 
E(contmued) fillment of the intention and purposes of the specifications shall 

not preclude the Engineer from requiring any such omitted neces­ 
sary requirements. Any work condemned by the Engineer due to 
imperfect workmanship or materials shall be replaced by the Con- JQ 
tractor at his own expense".

Qu'est-ce qu'il faut entendre par "an undue hardship" 1? Le contexte 
et 1'ensemble du contrat donnent a cette expression sa veritable portee.

60—Le contrat prevoyait un recours a 1'arbitrage, au cas de diffi- 
cultes (B.C. p. 1096) :

"it is understood and agreed by both parties that the En­ 
gineer's decision regarding the quality of the materials or work- 20 
manship to be furnished under the terms of this contract shall be 
final and binding. Should any dispute arise as to the interpretation 
of the terms of this contract, as to cost of changes and extra work 
performed, or in regard to any other matter regarding the execution 
or final settlement of this contract, it shall be referred to a Board 
of three arbitrators; One to be selected by the Owner, one to be 
selected by the Contractor, and the third to be selected by the two 
thus chosen. A written report of its findings shall be furnished by 
this Board; one copy to the Owner, and one copy to the Contractor, 
and its decision shall be final and binding on both parties and the 30 
compensation and expenses of: said arbitrators for each case thus 
referred shall be paid for by the party against whom the decision 
shall be rendered".

Aucun arbitrage n'a eu lieu, la compagnie Bishop pretend juste- 
ment que, n'ayant aucun moyen de forcer la compagnie MacLaren a ce 
recours de 1'arbitrage, elle est en droit de demander aux tribunaux de 
prononcer sur le different surgi entre les parties.

40
Telle qu'exposee dans la declaration, la reclamation de la compagnie 

Bishop comprenait 14 chefs, numerotes consecutivement.

Quatre de ces chefs ont ete rejetes par la Cour superieure; ce sont 
les numeros 4, 6, 13 et 14. II n'en est plus question en appel.

L'item numero 9, au chiffre de $1429.60, a ete admis par la com­ 
pagnie MacLaren, comme nous 1'avons YU ci-dessus.
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II reste done a determiner les droits des parties sur 9 chefs de re- Intc0eurtof 
elamatiou, savoir: les numeros 1, 2, 3, 5, 7, 8, 10, 11 et 12. Les voici, avec 
1'indication abregee de leur objet et le montant accorde sur chacun par la -meNote 
Cour superieure. jusM°e' Mr '

Reclamation No. 1: Hardpan excavation .............................. $13,919.45
Reclamation No. 2: Handling of logs .................................... 2,995.42

10 Reclamation No. 3: Increased cost of cofferdams &'un-
	watering ...... .............................................. 17,075.22

Reclamation No. 5: Additional cost of rock excavation ...... 35,100.74
Reclamation No. 7: Excavation frozen material in river bed 2,530.32
Reclamation No. 8: Work under winter conditions ............ 81,282.62
Reclamation No. 10: Cement for apron in by-pass channel 1,879.83
Reclamation No. 11: Shortage in payment for class concrete 31,549.15
Reclamation No. 12: Plant removal .......................................... 5,823.49

Comme nous 1'avons vu, la reclamation No. 10 doit etre reduite a 
20 $1,454.03, et la reclamation No. 12 $5,247.06.

Dans sa declaration, la compagnie Bishop, avant d'alleguer chaque 
item en particulier, a dit d'une facon generale ce que representeut ces re­ 
clamations :

"... labour, material, work and services necessarily supplied, outlays 
made by said Plaintiff and expenses to which said Paintiff has been put 
in connection with the said work as well as in connection with the doing of 
work actually required for said construction and approved by Defendant 

30 but not provided for in the contract or as damage suffered by said Plain­ 
tiff for reasons attributable to the faulty, erroneous and deceptive in­ 
formation supplied and representations made by Defendant to said Plain - 
tiff".

Cette allegation parait se rapporter a trois cas distincts; travaux 
compris dans 1'execution de 1'entreprise, tels que prevus par le contrat et 
non encore payes; travaux non prevus par le contrat, mais exiges au cours 
de 1'entreprise et encore dus; dommages attribuables a la faute, a 1'er- 
reur et aux fausses representations de la compagnie MacLaren. De cette 

40 sorte, la compagnie Bishop se trouverait a reclamer, outre des dommages, 
le prix de travaux qu'elle avait entreprise d'executer et de plus du travail 
additionnel, de I'extra work. Cependant il serait difficile de classer exac- 
tement sous chacun de ces chefs les neuf reclamations qui nous sont sou- 
mises. Les contestations que font les parties portent le plus souvent sur ce 
point precis; s'agit-il de travaux prevus, d'extras, ou de dommages? Sur 
plus d'un item, la compagnie Bishop parait vouloir se reclamer de ces 
trois causes d'action a la fois, alors qu'au contraire la compagnie MacLa­ 
ren soutient plutot que tons les travaux executes etaient compris dans

Bivard 
(Continued)
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ceux que prevoyait le contrat et ont ete payes aux differents prix stipules. 
Le plus simple est d'examiner l'un apres 1'autre chaque item sauf a ren- 
voyer de l'un a 1'autre ou aux clauses du contrat citees ci-dessus, quand il 
sera besom, pour abreger le raisonnement.

RECLAMATION No 1.

Creusage de 1'argile durcie JQ 
(Hardpan excavation).

Pour construire 1'ecluse projetee, il fallait necessairement assecher 
la riviere a 1'endroit designe; cela exigeait des travaux particuliers de 
nature a f ermer la riviere en amont et en aval et a y etablir une sorte de 
barriere; il pouvait etre necessaire aussi de pratiquer un canal de deri­ 
vation pour detourner teniporairement le cours de 1'eau. Cela avait ete pre- 
vu dans le contrat: (D.c. p. 1112):

"The Contractor will be required to construct, maintain and 20 
remove all the coffer-dams which are necessary for the construc­ 
tion of the work hereinbefore described. Should it be considered 
advisable to excavate a channel as indicated on drawing no. B-2571 
to by-pass the flow of the river during the time construction works 
is in progress in the main channel of the river, thus reducing the 
amount of coffer-dam work required, the Contractor shall perform 
all such excavation and other work directly involved at his own ex­ 
pense and cost, except for that part of the excavation which would 
be required for the dam if the channel was not excavated. He shall 
also do all pumping required to perform the work on the areas 30 
within the coffer-dam. At the proper stages of the work, the Con­ 
tractor shall remove the coffer-dams and leave no part of the work in 
place which in the judgment of the Engineer will interfere with the 
operation of the dam".

II fut en effet juge opportun, outre la construction de batardeaux 
et 1'etablissement de barrieres de palplanches en travers de la riviere, de 
pratiquer sur la rive nord une tranchee devant servir a detourner les 
eaux amassees en amont. Le plan B 2571 indiquait approximativement 
1'endroit ou ce canal pouvait etre etabli et nous venons de lire dans les 40 
specifications les conditions auxquelles devait etre fait le creusement; 1'en­ 
trepreneur devait executer tous les travaux necessaires a cette fin a ses frais 
et depens, sauf seulement pour cette partie du creusement qui eiit ete re- 
quis en vue de la construction de la chaussee meme si le canal n'avait pas 
ete fait a cet endroit. En effet la chaussee devait s'etendre, non seulement 
en travers du lit naturel de la Lievre, mais encore sur la rive nord jusqu'a 
une distance qui comprenait le site du canal de derivation.
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La difficulte dout nous devons panler sous ee premier chef a sur- Intc0eurtof 
gi a propos du cout du creusement du canal de derivation. A la lecture de la KlngliBencl1 
clause ci-dessus, on voit immediatement que la question ne saurait se rap- me Notes 
porter qu'aux travaux faits a I'endroit ou devait etre assise I'ecluse en tra- jusM«' Mr' 
vers du canal. Aussi cette reclamation de la compagnie Bishop a-t-elle ete B(coltinued) 
rejetee par la Cour Superieure quant au reste c'est-a-dire quant au creuse­ 
ment de la tranchee en dehors du site du barrage.

II est done arrive qu'en creusant le canal, et specialement en creu- 
sant cette partie du canal ou le barrage devait etre construit, la compa­ 
gnie Bishop a rencontre, a une certaine profondeur, un lit qu 'on a qualifie 
de hard pan, constitue apparemment d'argile durcie, plus difficile a extraire 
que la terre meuble ou le sable mele de cnillovx roules. Sur 1'emplacement 
du l)arrage, on a du extraire de cette argile 8335 verges cubes.

Or le contrat prevoyait des prix differents pour 1'extraction de la 
terre et pour 1'extraction du roc: $1.25 pour chaque verge cube de terre et 

20 $4.35 pour chaque verge cube de roc (D.c. p. 1097).

Le hardpan devait-il etre compte comma de la terre ou du roc 1?

Une preuve assez longue a ete faite la-dessus. (Sur ce point comme 
sur les autres, je crois pouvoir m'absteiur de reproduire ici 1'analyse qu'il 
a fallu faire des temoignages ce qui alor.rdirait inutilement ces notes et ne 
constituerait qu'une nomenclature set-he et fastidieuse couvrant au-dela de 
1000 pages de preuve; j'indiquerai dans une sorte d'appendice, les prin- 
cipaux renvois au dossier conjoint qu'il y aura lieu de faire sur chacune 

30 des reclamations).

L'analyse la plus juste de tout ce que les temoins ont dit me parait 
etre d'abord que le liardpan ne doit certainement pas etre compte comme 
etant du roc. Aucun temoin ne 1'a pretendu: et la compagnie Bishop elle- 
meme ne le soutient pas, puisqu'elle ne demaiKle pour 1'extraction de cette 
matiere que les % du prix qu'elle etait en droit de demander pour rex- 
traction du roc.

L'assimilation du hardpan au roe etant done ecartee et aucune clas- 
40 sification particuliere de cette matiere qu'est le hardpan n'etant prevue 

au contrat, il ne reste, d'apres les conventions ecrites, qu'a traiter comme 
terre 1'argile durcie ou tout autre lit du sol plus ou moins difficile a ex­ 
traire et qui n'est pas du roc. Aussi bien, est-il evident qu'en creusant a une 
certaine prof ondeur, on doit s'attendre a rencontrer des lits plus ou moins 
durs; si un entrepreneur entend avoir des remunerations speciales suivant 
les difficultes qui peuvent surgir a cause de la durete des lits qu'il rencon­ 
tre, il lui appartient d'exiger une classification detaillee des differents sols 
possibles. S'il entreprend en vertu d'un contrat qui ne mentionne que deux
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especes de sols, le roc et la terre, il se trouve lie et ne pourra exiger paie- 
ment que suivant les prix stipules pour ces deux especes d'extractions. Ac- 
corder dans ces conditions un prix special pour Pextraction de 1'argile dur- 
cie ou hardpan, prix qui n'est ni celui stipule pour 1''extraction du roc, ni 
celui qui a ete prevu pour 1'extraction de la terre, ce serait introduire dans 
le contrat une classification que les parties n'y ont point mise et un taux 
de remuneration qui n'a pas ete convenu; ce serait refair-e le contrat arre- 
te entre les parties, et sur lequel la compagnie demanderesse elle-meme ^Q 
pretend baser son action.

Au surplus, qu'est-ce en realite que le hardpan rencontre dans le 
creusenient du canal 1? Les temoins ne s'entendent guere la-dessus. Tout ce 
qu'on peut surement deduire de leurs temoignages, c'est que ce n'etait 
certainement pas du roc, mais que c'etait une matiere plus dure que la 
terre meuble ou le sable et par consequent d'une extraction plus difficile. 
Et c'est precisement a cause de la difficulte qu'on eprouve a determiner 
exactement la nature des differents lits du sol que la Commission des eaux 
courantes, par exemple, prend toujours le soin, dans les contrats qu'elle 20 
controle, de ne prevoir que deux classes: le roc et la terre, tout ce qui n'est 
pas roc devant etre compte comme de la terre. C'est sans doute pour cette 
meme raison que, dans le contrat qui nous est soumis, on s'est abstenu de 
faire des distinctions qui eussent donne lieu a de multiples debats. Cela, du 
reste, parait juste; car en realite ce qu'on appelle hardpan est Men de la 
terre; c'est, comme disent les lexicographes, "the hard stratum of earth 
that lies below the soil", ou "any earth not popularly recognized as rock 
through which it is hard to dig or to make excavations of any sort".

On nous a cite sur ce point diverses decisions et autorites, comme 30 
1'arret de la Cour superieure dans la cause de Wilson vs. la Cite de Hull 
(48 S.C., p. 238) et une couple d'arrets des cours de France; mais les so­ 
lutions doivent necessairement differer suivant les circonstances particu- 
lieres de chaque cas et surtout suivant les contrats intervenus. Quand il est 
expressement represente qu'il ne se trouve aucune pierre dans le sol a creu- 
ser et qu'en consequence, le creusenient est entrepris uniquement comme 
constituant un travail de terre, il est evident que le prix peut etre augmente 
si 1'on rencontre du roc, surtout lorsque le proprietaire de 1'entreprise 
savait que tel etait le cas et ne 1'a pas revele. De meme, si un deblai dif fere 
substantiellement de celui qui avait fait 1'objet des marches, 1'entrepreneur 40 
peut avoir droit a une remuneration autre que le prix qu'il avait accepte 
par erreur. Mais, dans notre espece, le contrat est clair et precis. Si 1'on 
n'y a pas specific d'intermediaire entre le roc et la terre, c'est ce que tout 
ce qui n'etait pas 1'un devait etre 1'autre.

Comme je 1'ai dit, la compagnie Bishop a demande et obtenu de la 
Cour superieure un prix special pour 1'extraction du hardpan, soit les % 
de ce qu'elle aurait eu pour 1'extraction du roc, c'est-a-dire $2.90. Or elle
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n 'a regu que le prix stipule pour 1'extraction de la terre, $1.25. Elle re- Intc0eurtof 
clame done, par verge cube, la difference, $1.67, soit: pour 8335 verges Kin^Be 
cubes, la somme de $13,919.45. The Notes
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En vertu de quelle convention peut-elle obtenir ce prix ? Sa reclama- ^continued) 
tion ne pouvant s'appuyer sur aucune clause du contrat, il faudrait done 
que 1'extraction du hard pan fut compte comine travail additionnel on extra. 

10 Mais, nous 1'avons vu, la compagnie Bishop ne pent demander aucune re­ 
muneration pour travail extra, a moins que ce travail n'ait ete execute sur 
un ordre ecrit de son ingenieur; et jarnais aucun ordre de ce genre n'a ete 
donne.

La compagnie Bishop invoque aussi a ce propos la clause du contrat 
qui prevoit un arbitrage et que nous avons citee plus haut (D.c. p. 1096). 
Pour quelque raison que ce soit, il n'y a pas eu d'arbitrage. Sile different 
avait ete soumis a des arbitres, ceux-ci auraient dil en juger suivant le con­ 
trat; car la clause qui les concerne ne lenr permet pas d'en sortir. Us au- 

20 raient done eu a decider seulement si 1'argile durcie, la glaise on le hard pan 
etaient de la terre ou du roc. Nous avons a prononcer sur le meme point.

La compagnie Bishop voudrait ae retrancher derriere une autre 
clause du contrat, que nous avons egalement citee plus haut, et ou il est 
dit que 1'intention des parties est d'assurer que la construction du barrage 
sera tout a fait de premiere classe tant quant aux materiaux qu'a 1'ou- 
vrage, "without working an undue hardship on the contractor".

Surement cette clause ne saurait justifier une surelevation des prix 
30 de serie, pour la seule raison que, dans le creusement du canal, on a ren­ 

contre des lits plus ou moins durs. Cela ne concerne en aucune facon la 
qualite de premier ordre qu'on enteudait exiger dans 1'executioii de 1'en- 
treprise; et d'autre part ce n'est pas exercer a 1'egard de 1'entrepreneur 
une severite injuste que d'cxiger qu'il fasselcs crcusements requis au prix 
convenu.

Enfin, la compagnie Bishop, pour se raccrocher sans doute a la doe- 
trine enoncee dans certaines decisions auxquelles nous avons fait plus haut 
allusion, pretend que 1'extraction du hardpan devrait lui etre payee plus 

40 cher, parce que la compagnie MacLarau 1'aurait trompee, en ce point, par 
de fausses representations.

Apres une longue et minutieuse analyse de la preuve sur ce point, 
je dois declarer que je ne trouve rien dans le dossier qui puisse soutenir 
cette prevention. De meme, le premier juge avait trouve qu'il n'y avait pas 
eu de fausses representations et je ne puis que confirmer sa decision sur 
ce point. Dans les trous de cinq a hurt pieds qu'on avait pratiques sur le 
parcours ou le canal devait etre creuse, il n'y avait pas de hardpan; et
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c'est la tout ce qui a ete montre a la compagnie Bishop. Aucune garantie 
qu'on n'en trouverait pas ailleurs ou plus avant n'avait ete faite. La com­ 
pagnie Bishop s'est contentee de ces informations et je ne vois pas com­ 
ment elle pourrait aujourd'hui se plaindre; ni les plans prepares par la 
compagnie MacLaren, ni le contrat, ni les specifications, ni 1 'inspection des 
lieux en compagnie des ingenieurs de 1'appelante ne constituaient de fausses 
representations, et si vraiment la compagnie Bishop a souffert d'avoir 
entrepris cet ouvrage sans etre mieux reiiseignee, elle ne peut s'en prendre JQ 
qu'a elle-meme.

Je ferais done droit a 1'appel sur ce premier chef de la reclamation; 
la Cour superieure a accorde la somme de $3,919.45 pour 1'extraction du 
hardpan et je rejetterais cette partie de la demande.

RECLAMATION NO. 2

Flottage du bois de 1'appelante
(Handling of appellant's logs). 20

La compagnie MacLaren faisait, en 1929, I'abattage du bois sur les 
terres de la Couronne le long de la Lievre, et la descente de ce bois devait 
necessairement se faire par cette riviere. C'est 1'industrie regulierement 
exercee par 1'appelante.

Notons qu'eii vertu des lois concernant le flottage du bois sur les 
rivieres et les lacs (S.R.Q. 1925, chap. 46), la compagnie MacLaren, comme 
tons les autres commergants de meme genre, avait le droit de descendre son 
bois par la riviere, mais etait responsable des dommages qui pouvaient etre 30 
causes par ses operations.

II est evident que la descente du bois etait susceptible de causer des 
dommages aux ouvrages que la compagnie Bishop etablissait dans la ri­ 
viere, au rapide des Cedres, pour 1'execution de son entreprise.

D'autre part, il faut remarquer que les parties ne se trouvaient pas 
1'une vis-a-vis de 1'autre dans la meme situation qui se rencontre'gene- 
ralement, lorsque un marchand de bois, en descendant ses Miles par une 
riviere, cause un prejudice a quelque proprietaire riverain. La compagnie 40 
MacLaren, proprietaire riveraine au rapide des Cedres, avait charge la 
compagnie Bishop d'y construire un barrage et 1'avait en quelque sorte 
mise a sa place pour y accomplir un travail qui devait necessairement ob- 
struer le cours de 1'eau. Dans ces conditions, leurs relations ne se trou­ 
vaient pas regies seulement par la loi generale qui regie le flottage sur les 
rivieres, mais dependaient d'abord des conventions intervenues entre les 
parties.
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des specifications (B.C. p. 1103) : "
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"He shall so construct the coffer dams arrange and manage jus«°e' Mr ' 
the construction of the work as a whole, that logs of the owner, or 
of others, may be driven by the site of the dam during the driving 
season of 1929, and shall provide such opportunities for the passage 

jQ of logs as the construction work may render necessary".

A quoi cette clause obligeait-elle la compagnie Bishop ?

Elle devait executer 1'entreprise de telle sorte que le flottage du 
bois ne fut pas empeche par les travaux.

Or, ces travaux consistaient d'abord dans 1'etablissement d'un bar­ 
rage temporaire du cours de la riviere, en vue de 1'assecher a 1'endroit ou 
serait assise la chaussee. Le barrage temporaire une fois complete, le pas-

20 sage des billes devait se faire par le canal de derivation, et c'est en effet 
ce qui eut lieu. (II est vrai qu'une embacle se produisit alors en travers des 
piliers deja construits; mais cet embaras ne concerne pas la presente re­ 
clamation; c'est ce qui est arrive dans la riviere dont il s'agit.) Mais, aussi 
longtemps que le canal de derivation n'etait pas ouvert, et pendant qu'on 
construisait le barrage temporaire dans le lit de la riviere, la compagnie 
Bishop devait laisser a travers les batardeaux et les palplanches une ou- 
verture praticable pour le passage du bois flotte. En effet, il appert que 
la compagnie Bishop laissa dans le barrage temporaire un passage libre 
suffisant, par ou le bois pouvait descendre. Mais, pour proteger les ouvra-

30 ges en construction, il fallait de plus que les billes de bois flottees fussent 
dirigees vers cette ouverture, et qu'on ne les laissat pas descendre a vau- 
1'eau entre les deux rives. A qui incombait-il de les diriger de la sorte, de 
fournir aux billes de bois I'occasion, pourrait-on dire, the opportunity, de 
s'engager dans 1'ouverture destinee a leur passage 1?

La compagnie Bishop, outre 1'obligation de laisser une ouverture 
convenable dans le barrage, devait, dit le contrat, "provide such oppor­ 
tunities for the passage of logs as the construction work may render 
necessary". Or, il est evident et la preuve etablit que des estacades con- 

40 venablement construites et placees en amont auraient conduit le bois vers 
le passage ouvert, par quoi tout danger de dommages eut ete evite. II 
appartenait a la compagnie Bishop de prendre ces mesures necessaires, 
puisqu'elle etait tenue de faire ce qui etait opportun pour le passage du 
bois a travers les obstructions du barrage temporaire.

C'est aussi ce qu'elle-meme avait compris. Elle entreprit d'abord de 
diriger la descente du bois au moyen d'estacades; mais ces estacades, trop 
faibles et mal placees, laissaient passer les billes. De la, outre des dom-



n 'court of

The Notes 
of Hon. Mr. 
Justice 
Elvard 

(Continued)

— 112 —

mages qui font 1'objet d'autres reclamations, des depenses que la compa­ 
gnie Bishop veut recouvrer au ehiffre de $2,995.42. Elle n'y a pas droit, 
parce qu'elle etait tenue de faire elle-meme le travail pour lequel elle veut 
etre remuneree.

La compagnie Bishop reproche surtout a 1'appelante d 'avoir envoye 
son bois par grandes masses dans la riviere; mais des estacades propre- 
merit construites et placees auraient conduit le bois, meme flotte en masses, ^Q 
vers 1'ouverture pratiquee dans le barrage. La compagnie MacLarenn'est 
responsable ni des depenses faites pour diriger le bois, ni de 1'insuffisance 
des moyens employes.

Je conclus que 1'appel est bien fonde sur ce point, et que cette recla­ 
mation devrait etre rejetee.

RECLAMATION NO. 3

Cout plus eleve des batardeaux et de 1'assechement. 20 
(Increased cost of cofferdam and unwatering).

Pour asseoir les fondations de la digue, il fallait done assecher la ri­ 
viere a cet endroit; et pour I'assechement de la riviere, il etait necessaire 
de barrer le cours de 1'eau en amont. On y parvient en calant en travers 
des batardeaux, sur lesquels s'appuit une barriere de palplanches. On 
fait la meme chose en aval.

Pour la construction des batardeeaux et de tout le barrage temporal- „,, 
re, aussi bien que pour I'assechemeiit de la riviere, le contrat ne prevoyait 
aucun prix de serie. Tout ce travail devait etre fait par la compagnie Bishop 
pour la remuneration comprise dans le prix global. On avait estime que 
10.7% du prix global representait le cout de ce travail particulier (D.C. 
p. 1099) y compris le creusage du canal de derivation. Voir la clause sui- 
vante du contrat (D.C. p. 1090):

" It is further agreed that, should the quantities of excava­ 
tion, concrete and other classes of work which are listed in the above 
schedule required for the satisfactory completion of the structure be ^Q 
different from those contained in said schedule, additions or de­ 
ductions from the principal sum of money herein named shall be 
made in the manner hereinafter provided.

"But it is expressly understood and agreed, however, that: 
(a) The quantities given in the foregoing table do not include any 
additional excavation which the Contractor may choose or be re­ 
quired to do for bypassing or handling the flow of the river during
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the construction of the dam; nor any materials and labor used for In 
the construction of coffer-dams; nor any other work or materials Klngj_Bencl1 
extraneous to the permanent structure of the dam itself which are The Note* 
required for the construction of the dam. justice' Mr'

1 Eivard
(Continued)

(b) All of said additional excavation and extraneous work and 
materials are to be performed and furnished by the Contractor as a 

10 part of the work for which the said principal sum is to be the com­ 
pensation".

(Voir aussi la clause des specifications de la page 1112 du D.C., ei- 
tee ci-dessus).

La compagnie Bishop allegue que le travail de construction des ba- 
tardeaux et de I'asseehement de la riviere a etc plus eouteux qu'il ne 1'au­ 
rait du; 10.7% du prix global lui aurait donne "$49,050.20, et elle admet 
done avoir rec.u cette somme; mais elle pretend que cet ouvrage lui a coute 

20 $144,457.92, a quoi elle ajoute 37%, ce qui donne un total de $197,907.35. 
Apres deduction de ce qu'elle a reeu,elle aurait encore droit a $148,857.15. 
Ses conclusions sur ce point lui out ete accordees par la Cour superieure, 
sauf qu'il a ete ajoute 15% au lieu de 37%, de sorte que le jugement de 
premiere instance lui donne $117,075.22.

La compagnie Bishop parait bien considerer ce travail comme etant 
de Vextra work, puisqu'elle ajonte 37% au coilt reel; et, d'autre part, on 
s'explique mal pourquoi le premier juge lui accorde 15%. En tout cas, le 
travail n'a pas ete fait sur 1'ordre ecrit de 1'ingenieur de la compagnie 

30 MacLaren et ne peut par consequent donner lieu a une reclamation a titre 
d'ouvrage additionnel. Aussi est-ce plutot a titre de dommages que le pre­ 
mier juge a accorde a la compagnie Bishop la somme susdite.

Le droit a ees dommages viendrait de deux sources:

lo—La premiere cause serait qu'en lui communiquant le plan P2, la 
compagnie MacLaren aurait fourni a la compagnie Bishop des informa­ 
tion erronees touchant le lit de la riviere a 1'endroit ou le barrage tempo- 
raire a ete installe en amont. 

40
2o—Une autre cause des dommages serait la difficulte que le bois 

flotte par la compagnie MacLaren aurait opposee a 1'etablissement d'un 
barrage etanche.

lo—Sur le premier point, on remarque en effet que sur le plan P2 
(B2444) il apparait des indications qu'on avait fait certains sondages a six 
endroits differents, a 20 pds de distance 1'un de 1'autre, a travers la ri­ 
viere, et qu'aux endroits marques par ces sondages il y avait du roc. Or il
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n court of parait que sur toute la ligne de ces sondages il y avait au fond de la ri-
King'sBencli -^ i i i T • ^ -n Y j i •, jj • n

— viere du sable, du gravier, des cailloux, etc., et qu'on ne pouvait attemdre
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le roc qu'apres avoir enleve ces materiaux. La compagnie Bishop pretend 
que par la elle a ete induite en erreur et qu'elle a eprouve les plus grandes 
difficultes a faire un barrage etanche a cause du fond inegal de la riviere, 
qu'elle n'avait pas prevu.

Sa prevention sur ce point ne saurait etre soutenue. -J^Q

D'abord, il faut remarquer que les sondages indiques sur le plan 
P2 n'etaient nullement faits en vue du barrage temporaire. On avait son- 
de un peu partout pour determiner le meilleur site de la digue, mais les 
indications qu'on avait faites de ces sondages sur le plan ne pretendaient 
pas representer exactement le lit de la riviere, sa nature et son profil.

La compagnie Bishop clevait le savoir. Avec 1'ingenieur de la Com­ 
mission des eaux courantes, on peut affirmer qu'elle n'a pas du croire que 
ces quelques sondages, isoles et faits a 20 pieds de distance 1'un de 1'autre, 20 
constituaient des donnees suffisantes pour permettre la construction de 
batardeaux et de palplanches qui s'ajusteraient parfaitement au lit de fa- 
con a creer un barrage etanclie.

En fait, la compagnie Bishop, avant d'entreprendre la construction 
du barrage temporaire, a fait faire elle-meme d'autres sondages.

Si done elle a mal calcule la forme et I'ajustement de ses batar­ 
deaux et de ses palplanches, c'est du soit a son imprudence, soit a sa pro- 
pre erreur ou a quelque defectuosite de son ouvrage. D'ailleurs le cloison- 30 
nage n'a pas ete pose sur la ligne des sondages indiques sur le plan P2, 
mais a 12 ou 15 pieds plus haut. L'emplacement de la chaussee etait deter­ 
mine; mais 1'entrepreneur pouvait placer son barrage temporaire ou il 
voulait et proceder a I'assecheinent du lit de la maniere qui lui convenait.

Pourquoi cette cloison n'etait-elle pas etanche 1? II peut j avoir des 
raisons nombreuses; en tout cas, on ne saurait en attribuer la cause aux 
informations f ournies par la compagnie MacLaren. Les seules informations 
auraient consiste dans les indications du plan B2333, lesquelles n'avaient 
pas pour objet de faire connaitre les conditions du lit ou bien du barrage 40 
temporaire. La compagnie Bishop na d'ailleurs pas pris ces indications.

La-dessus, la preuve est plutot f aible. II semble bien, cependant, que 
les Miles de bois arretees par les batardeaux, accumulees meme, ont du 
etre la cause de difficultes et de depenses. Mais rien de cela ne se serait 
produit, si la descente du bois avait ete convenablement dirigee comme 
nous 1'avons vu. Or, nous 1'avons dit aussi, il incombait a la compagnie 
Bishop de prendre les mesures necessaires ou simplement opportunes pour
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assurer le passage du bois par les ouvertures destinees a les recevoir. Elle In court of
ne I'a pas fait; elle doit etre tenue responsable des consequences de son de- Klng_iBencl1
faut et par consequent des depenses occasionnees par ce defaut. The Note!^ ^ r ^ of Hon. Mr.

Justice
De plus, on pourrait se demander dans quelles proportions ce sur- (continued) 

plus de depenses devrait etre attribue a la premiere et a la deuxieme des 
causes alleguees. Pour combien la compagnie Bishop a-t-elle ete obligee 

10 de faire des depenses a raisoii du bois flotte, et pour combien a raison de 
1'erreur commise par elle touchant le lit de la riviere 1? On cherehe en vain 
dans le dossier quelque indication qui permette de le dire avec exactitude. 
Quelques temoins ont donne la-dessus leur opinion, mais sans rien pouvoir 
preciser. D'ailleurs, il n'importe pas, puisque ni 1'une ni 1'autre cause de 
dommages ne doit etre attribute a la compagnie MacLaren.

Je rejetterais done cette reclamation, parce que la compagnie Mac­ 
Laren n'est pas responsable de 1'erreur concernant le lit de la riviere, et 
que la compagnie Bishop est elle-meme responsable du dommage qu'elle 

20 pretend avoir ete cause par le passage du bois.

RECLAMATION NO. 5

Cout additionnel du creusage dans le roc. 
(Additional cost of rock excavation)

Le contrat prevoyait 1'extraction de 8060 verges cubes de roc.

En fait il a ete extrait 21,564 verges cubes. oO
C 'est un exces, dit la compagnie Bishop, qui lui donnerait droit a un 

prix plus eleve que le prix unitaire. Elle pretend que c'est de I'extra work 
et elle charge en consequence 37% de plus, par quoi elle arrive a un solde 
de $35,100.74, que la Cour superieure lui a adjuge.

II y aurait la travail extra, suivant la compagnie Bishop, pour deux 
raisons; d'abord, parce que 1'ecart serait trop grand entre la quantitc 
mentionnee au contrat et la quantite reelle; ensuite parce que 1'ingenieur a 

Ar\ exige que 1'extraction se fasse par lits et non en profondeur.

Quant aux quantites, la compagnie Bishop a ete payee de son tra­ 
vail, de tout le travail qu'elle a fait, suivant les series de prix determinees 
par le contrat. Ces prix avaient ete ainsi prevus, ainsi que le contrat 
1'explique, precisement en vue des augmentations qui seraieot trouvees 
opportunes pendant 1'execution. Le meme cas se presente dans toutes les 
entreprises de ce genre. II faut avant tout faire un ouvrage solide et il est 
impossible de prevoir d'avance jusqu'a quelle profondeur il faudra creuser
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n court of pour obtenir la base voulue. Le contrat a done ete fait pour prevoir les 
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au prix stipule, la compagnie Bishop ne pent etre admise a se plaindre 
qu'elle ait requ le cout de 1'extraction de 21,564 verges plutot que de 8060 
verges seulement.

Quant au mode de proceder, il etait sujet aux directions de 1'inge- 
nieur de la Commission des eaux courantes, et la compagnie Bishop s'e- }0 
tait engagee a s'y conformer (Contrat, B.C. p. 1114) :

"In preparing foundations for the concrete structures all 
loose ledge must be removed and the excavation carried to a suffi­ 
cient depth to provide a safe foundation and remove all open seams 
or joints which might at some time permit leakage or act as sliding 
planes.

"All this work shall be done as directed by and to the sa­ 
tisfaction of the Engineer." 20

Et les ordres donnes par 1'irigenieur de la Commission des eaux 
courantes touchant ce point sont parfaitement justifies. Je rejetterais cette 
reclamation de la demanderesse.

RECLAMATION NO. 7

Extraction de matieres gelees dans la riviere. 
(Excavating frozen material in river bed).

II a fallu eiilever 811 verges cubes de sable, de gravier, de cailloux, 
qui se trouvaient sur le roc du fond de la riviere. Pour ce travail la com­ 
pagnie Bishop a ete payee aux prix stipule pour 1'extraction de la terre, 
savoir: $1.23 la v.c. Elle voudrait recevoir le prix stipule pour 1'extrac­ 
tion du roc, parce que, dit-elle c'etait aussi difficile et que ce serait une 
undue hardship pour elle que d'etre payee moins.

Au prix de 1'extraction du roc. elle aurait droit a un surplus d? 
$2,530.32; c'est ce que la Cour superieure lui a accorde.

Parce que la matiere a extraire etait gelee, le travail a pu etre plus 
difficile; mais il etait compris dans les prix stipules au contrat. Pour les 
raisons que j'ai mentionnees plus haut, puisque ce n'etait pas du roc, ce 
devait etre compte comme de la terre.

D'ailleurs je ne vois pas comment la clause ou il est question d'un- 
due hardship pourrait ici s'appliquer.

Je rejetterais done egalement cette reclamation.

30
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La compagnie Bishop a du travailler 1'hiver et ee travail a coute
plus cher. De ce chef elle pretend reclamer et la Cour superieure lui a ac-

10 corde $70,680.62. En pretendant que c 'etait la un extra, la Compagnie Bi­
shop demandait de plus 37%, ce qui portait sa dernande a $96,832.45. La
Cour superieure lui a accorde 15% seulement, ce qui fait en tout $81,282.62.

Cette augmentation du cout 'iu travail dfi aux conditions plus dif- 
f'iciles de 1'hiver serait attribuable a deux causes; en premier lieu, 1 'aug­ 
mentation des quantites et par consequent de 1'ouvrage a accomplir; en 
deuxieme lieu, le retard apporte a I'assechement de la riviere.

Quant aux quantites, j'ai deja dit, comment il etait pourvu a leur 
^ augmentation et pourquoi la compagnie Bishop ne pouvait etre adinise a 

s'en plaindre.
Pour le retard cause par 1'assechement plus difficile de la riviere, 

1 'argument que j'ai fait plus haut concernant cet assechement doit s'ap- 
pliquer encore ici.

En consequence, je rejette cette Imitiemc reclamation de la deman- 
deresse.

RECLAMATION NO. 10

Ciment pour tahlier. 
(Cement for apron in by-pass channel).

Au cours des travaux, un changement fut fait dans les plans de 
cette partie de la digue qui traversait le canal de derivation ; les ingenieurs 
y aj outer ent un tablier.

Cette modification etait f aite en conformite des stipulations du con- 
.~ trat; la compagnie MacLaren avait done droit de faire faire ce travail et 
U la compagnie Bishop etait obligee de Pexecuter aux prix stipules. Mais 

cette derniere se plaint que, quand elle fut avertie du changement, il etait 
trop tard dans la saison pour transporter par les chemins d'hiver le ci- 
ment requis et qu'elle dut faire ce transport au printemps, ce qui lui aurait 
occasionne des depenses additionnelles pour lesquelles elle a obtenu de la 
Cour superieure $1879.83, soit; $1634.64, difference du cout de transport 
entre 1'hiver et Pete, phis $245.19 representant 15%. II y a la, nous 1'a- 
vons vu, une erreur que fait paraitre la preuve. La somme devrait etre de 
$1454.03.
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En tout cas cette reclamation est faite a titre d' extra, et da compa- 
gnie Bishop demandait un surplus de 37% conformement aux conventions, 
II importe peu cependant. Car le changement a ete fait par 1'ingenieur

* , -. j. *••! j. i i -,• ,• -, , , . ,, -, • b .,.
charge du controle et de la direction des travaux et suivant les dispositions 
du contrat, comme il apparait a la clause que nous avons citee ci-dessus 
(D.C. p. 1091) ; il n'y a rien dans les conventions qui puisse justifier une 
demande pour travail extra ou pour cout additionnel d 'un travail quelcon- 
que, a raison de la date ou les plans furent changes et ou ce travail dut 
etre fait.

10.
En consequence, je ferais droit a 1'appel sur cette reclamation No.

10

20

RECLAMATION NO. 11

Changement de classe de beton. 
(Shortage for class 1 concrete)

Sur cet item, la compagnie Bishop avait demande et elle a obtenu 
$31,549.15.

Pour comprendre comment la difficiilte a surgi, la position que 
prend chacune des parties et la solution qu'il convient d'apporter, il faut 
d'abord rappeler certaines donnees fournies par le contrat dans les series 
de prix qui suivent la clause citee ci-dessus en premier lieu (D.C. pp. 1096, 
1097).

Deux classes de beton etaient prevues; 1'une de beton pur, sans cail- ^ 
loux, sans plums, comme dit le contrat; c'etait le beton No. 1; et 1'autre, 
avec cailloux, with plums.

On avait par ailleurs, dans 1'estimation premiere des quantites pro­ 
bable table sur 10800 verges cubes de beton avec cailloux et sur 9690 v.c. 
beton No. 1.

Or il etait pourvu que pour chaque verge cube qu'il faudrait couler 
de plus que les quantites ci-dessus, on paierait les prix suivants: $77.16 par 
verge cube de beton avec cailloux et $18.92 par v.c. de beton No. 1, soit: 
une difference de $1.76. De plus il etait convenu que s'il etait coule moins 
de beton qu'il n'en etait mentionne dans 1'estimation approximative sur 
laquelle le prix global avait ete fixe, on deduirait les prix suivants; pour 
chaque v.c. de moins de beton No. 1: $9.81, et pour chaque v.c. de moins de 
beton avec cailloux: $9.31.

Or, dans une certaine partie de la digue, un changement dans la com­ 
position du beton a ete fait par les ingenieurs; une quantite qui devait
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etre coulee avec des cailloux a du etre f aite avec du beton No. 1. C 'est ainsi In c'ourt ot
que la compagnie Bishop, au lieu d'avoir a couler 9690 v.c. de beton No. King^.Bench
1, a du en f aire 23656 v.c. soit: 13,966 v.c. de plus. The Note's

L of Hon. Mr.
Justice

D 'autre part, au lieu de f aire 10800 v.c. de beton avec cailloux, elle ^'continued) 
n'en a fait que 6,781 v.c., soit: 4019 v.c. de moins.

10 Ces faits sont averes. La seule difficulte qui se presente est dans 
la fac.on dont il faut calculer le prix du travail ainsi execute.

La compaguie Bishop etablit son compte de la maniere suivaiite:
13966 v.c. de beton no 1 de plus que la quantite estime d'a- 

bord representant au prix de $18.92 stipule pour cha- 
que v.c. d 'augmentation, la somme de ................................ $264,236.72

4,019 v.c. de beton avec cailloux de moins que la quantite es- 
timee representant, au prix de $9.81 convenu pour 

20 chaque v.c. de diminution, une somme de ...................... 37,416.89

La difference est de .......................................................................... $226,819.83
Sur quoi il a etc paye ........................................................................ 195,270.68

De sorte qu'il reste du ....................... ............................................ $ 31,549.15

On le voit, la compagnie Bishop eompte d'une part qu'il y a eu di­ 
minution de travail, et d'autre part augmentation.

30 La compagnie MacLaren repond que ce n'est pas un cas d'augmen­ 
tation et de diminution du travail, mais plutot la substitution d'une classe 
de beton a une autre; et elle etablit le compte comme suit:
Au lieu de 9690 v.c. de beton no. 1, la compagnie Bishop en a 

coule 23,656 v.c. et la difference, 13,966, represente au 
prix de $18.92 ........................................................................ $264,236.72

Mais d'autre part, au lieu de 10,800 v.c. de beton avec cail­ 
loux, la compagnie Bishop n'a coule que 6,781 v.c., soit 
une difference de 4,019 v.c., pour lesquelles elle aurait 

40 ete payee au prix de $17.16, soit .......................................... 68,968.04

En consequence, la compagnie Bishop avait droit pour ce
travail a ................................................................................. $195,270.68

et c'est ce que la Compagnie MaeLaren lui a paye
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Le calcul de la defenderesse pent s'etablir aussi de la maniere sui-

Sur les 13966 v.c. de beton no 1 que la compagnie Bishop a 
coules de plus, il y en avait 3947 qui doivent lui etre 
payes a $18.92 la v.c. soit .................................................... $188,197.24

et il y en avait 4,019 v.c. pour lesquelles elle se trouvait payee 
deja au prix du beton avec cailloux, savoir: au prix de 
$17.16 la v.c. et sur lesquelles elle a droit de recevoir de 
plus la difference de $1.76, savoir .................................... 7,073.44

10

Ce qui donne exactement la somme payee a la compagnie Bi­ 
shop, soit ................................................................................ $195,270.68

En effet, il y a lieu de presumer que le prix stipule pour les quan- 
tites augmentees est le meme que celui sur lequel on a table pour etablir 
le prix global. Ceci me parait decider toute la question et j 'approuve le cal- ^ 
cnl de la compagnie MacLaren.

Je ferais droit a 1'appel sur ce point.

EECLAMATION NO. 12

30

Enlevement du materiel 
(Plant removal)

La compagnie Bishop a demande et obtenu de ce chef $5,823.59, ce 
qui comprend 15% de plus que le cout reellement etabli. Nous I'avons vu, 
il y a la une erreur admise de $576.43.

L'enlevement du materiel aurait ete plus dispendieux qu'on ne s'y 
attendait, parce qu'il a ete fait au print emps par des chemins plus dif fi­ 
les que durant la saison d 'hiver. Meme, certaines machines lourdes ont du 
passer 1'ete sur les lieux.

Les faits paraissent suffisamment etablis; mais il s'agit de savoir a 40 
quel titre la compagnie Bishop peut reclamer de ce chef.

La depense additionnelle pour 1'enlevement du materiel est attribute 
par la compagnie Bishop a un retard dont elle veut tenir la compagnie 
MacLaren responsable parce que ce retard aurait pour cause 1'augmenta­ 
tion des quantites des travaux a executer et les delais dus a de fausses 
informations.
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Notons d'abord que 1'enlevement du materiel etait compris dans le Intc0eurtof 
prix global, ou il representait une proportion de 1.56%, mais sans aueune Klng_iBenoh 
augmentation prevue. II n'y a absolument rien dans les conventions, pas The Notes 
plus dans le contrat que dans les specifications, qui fixe la date de cet en- justice' 
levement ou permette de determiner la saison durant laquelle il pourva (continued) 
se faire.

10 D'ailleurs, nous avons deja dit que la eompagnie MaeLaren ne pent 
etre tenue responsable que suivant les prix stipules pour les augmentations 
de quantites; le droit de faire des augmentations devait necessairement 
prolonger 1'execution de 1'entreprise; et pour tout ce qui 11'etait pas prevu 
ou qui n'etait pas des extras, le prix global representait une remuneration 
acceptee.

Quant au retard du a de pretendu fausses informations, nous avons 
deja vu comment il est impossible d'en tenir compte.

20 En consequence, je ferais pareillcment droit a 1'appel sur ce dernier 
chef de la reclamation.

CONCLUSION

Pour se rendre inieux compte de la position prise par les parties et 
de leurs droits respectifs, il a necessairement fallu etudier plus d'une ques­ 
tion accessoire, questions de faits et questions de droit, dont je n'ai cepen- 
daiit pas parle. Les conclusions auxquelles je me suis arrete sur chaque 
chef de reclamation rendaient inutiles de plus longues considerations.

30 II n'y a done que la reclamation No. 9, admise au chiffre de $1,429.60, 
pour laquelle il doit y avoir jugement.

Je rejetterais toutes les autres.

Je ferais droit a 1'appel avec depens, et statuant a nouveau, je con- 
damnerais la defenderesse a $1,429.60, avec interet du jour de la signifi­ 
cation de 1'action, et les frais d'une action de ce montant.

40
SUR LE CONTBE-APPEL.

Vu la decision a laquelle je suis venu sur 1'appel principal, le con- 
tre-appel doit etre rejetc. En effet ce contre-appel ne s'appliquait qu'a 
1'adjudication des interets sur les items 3, 8, 10 et 12; et ces items sont 
rejetes. Sur 1'item No. 9, admis et maintenu, le jugement accorde I'inte- 
ret a partir de 1'action.

Je rejetterais done le contre-appel avec depens.
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APPENDICE

Principaux renvois aux pages du dossier conjoint pour 1 'etude de chaeune 
des reclamations en particulier.

Sur la reclamation No. 1.

Plaidoiries: pp. 3, 4, 20, 23, 38.
Contrat: pp. 1088, 1089, 1090, 1097, 1098, 1106, 1112, 1113.
Lettres: pp. 1068 (P21) ; 1071 (P28); 1069 (P28); 1074 et 1076 (P58); 

1080 (03) ; 1081 (Dl); 1083 (P29); 1078 (P32); 1084 (P30) ; 1173 
(P12) ; 1210 (P13) ; 1211 (P14) ; 1223 (P17) ; 1233 (P18).

Depositions:

Bishop: pp. 56, 70, 171.
O'Shea: pp. 422, 400, 504, 506, 507, 509, 510.
Larocque: pp. 731, 732.
Bergeron: pp. 737, 739.
Kenny:pp. 918, 922.
Mailhot: pp. 139, 141, 143.
Lindskog: p. 223.
Keiffenstein: pp. 361, 388, 395.
Acres: pp. 425, 426, 1035.
Ferguson: pp. 368,724.
Chadwick: pp. 849, 865.
Lefebvre: p. 908.
Kayser: pp. 1020, 1026.
Clarke: p. 1031.
Mclntosh: pp. 524, 622, 624, 628, 662.
McEwen: pp. 175, 202.

10

20

30

Sur la reclamation No. 2.

Plaidoiries: pp. 4, 5, 24, 25. 
Contrat: p. 1103. 
Exhibit P116: p. 1177.
Lettres: pp. 1133 (Pr) ; 1136 (D2); 1137 (P5) ; 1139 (P31) ; 1140 (P32) ; 

1141 (P33 et P34) ; 1142 (P35); 1144 (P36).

Depositions:

Mclntosh: pp. 625 a 628. 
Jamer: p. 833.

40



— 123 —

O'Shea: p. 529. Intc0eu; 
Kenny: pp. 922, 923. King- 
Coyle: pp. 839 a 845. The£&.'. 
Griffith: pp. 477 a 479. 3£SZ Mr' 
Clarke: p. 1033. (continued) 
Lindskog: p. 305, 227, 289.

10 Sur la reclamation No. 3:

Plaidoiries: pp. 5, 7, 20, 21, 25, 27 et 39.
Contrat: pp. 1090, 1099, 1112 et 1113.
Exhibit P 116: p. 1178 a 1218.
Lettres: pp. 1139 a 1147 (P31, P32, P33, P34, P35, P36, P6, P7, P41)

1150 (P42) ; 1151 (D3) ; 1154 (P44) ; 1155 (P43) ; 1158 (P45);
1159 (P46); 1160 (P47); 1174 (P48).

Depositions: 
20

Lindskog: pp. 225, 226, 236, 246, 287, 306, 307.
Bishop: pp. 127, 128, 129, 151.
Mclntosh: pp. 625, 626, 630 a 637, 643.
Steele: pp. 323 a 328.
Ferguson: pp. 690, 691.
Stratton: pp. 587, 590, 591, 672, 673, 694 a 728.
O'Shea: pp. 514, 517, 559.
Bergeron: pp. 740 a 742.
Boyd. pp. 762 a 768. 

30 Chadwick: pp. 850 a 857.
Dubreuil: p. 893.
Beiffenstein: pp. 397, 398.
L'Heureux: pp. 978 a 1003.
Lef ebvre: pp. 909 a 911.
Coyle: p. 841.
Acres: pp. 430 a 436.

Sur la reclamation No. 5.

40 Plaidoiries: pp. 8, 9, 28, 29.
Contrat: pp. 1086, 1089, 1090, 1091, 1097, 1098, 1113, 1114. 
Lettres: pp. 1135, (P8) ; 1143 (P9).

Depositions: Bishop: pp. 113, 158.

McEwen: p. 185. 
Lindskog: p. 254. 
Ferguson. p. 716. 
Lef ebvre: pp. 910, 911.
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In 'court of Sur la reclamation No. 7. 
p^omes: pp. 10, 29, 30. 
Contrat: pp. 1085, 1097, 1098.

of Hon. Mr. ^^ ' ____________ 
Justice —————————————

E(continued) Sur la reclamation No. 8.

Plaidoiries: pp. 10, 11, 30, 31.
Exhibits: pp. 1240 (P49) ; 1193 a 1200 (P116); 1247 (P120). 10

Depositions:

Bishop: passim 
Lefebvre: p. 912.

Sur la reclamation No. 10.

Plaidoiries: pp. 12, 31, 32.
Contrat: p. 1091. 20
Exhibit P 116: p. 1204.

Depositions:

Griffith: p. 470. 
O'Shea: pp. 542, 581. 
Mclntosh: p. 644. 
Bishop: pp. 160,162.

Sur la reclamation No. 11. 30

Plaidoiries: pp. 13, 14, 32, 34. 
Contrat: pp. 1097,1098, 1110. 
Lettres: pp. 1224 (D30) ; 1225 (P10).

Sur la reclamation No. 12.

Plaidoiries: pp. 14, 22, 24.
Contrat: p. 1099.
Exhibit P 116: p. 1205. 40

Depositions:

Griffith: pp. 471 et s.
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William I. Bishop Limited a entrepris et fait pour le compte de 

1'Appelante, un barrage de la Riviere Lievre, dans le conite Labelle.

Son contrat stipulait comme prix initial une somme de $609,100.00, 
et il y etait pourvu a eertaines charges additionnelles, le cas echeant.

En fait, le travail ayant ete accompli, 1'Appelante a reconnu et pave 
a son entrepreneur un rnontant de $916,723.57.

Non content, celui-ci reclame par la presente action, une somme 
additionnelle de $412,846.75, qui representerait, d'apres lui, la valeur d'un 
surplus d'ouvrage fait ou de materiaux fournis, ou qui devrait lui etre 
accordee a titre de dommages.

20
Voici le tableau des items qui coniposent cette reclamation, avec 1'in­ 

dication de ce qui en a ete decide en premiere instance:

No.
No.
No. 

30 No. 
No. 
No.

No.

No. 
No.
No. 
No. 

40
No. 
No. 
No.

Title of claim

1 — Hardpaii Excavation ............. 
2 — Passing Logs ..............................
3 — Cofferdams & Unwatering ..... 
4 — Cofferdam Lower End By-pass ...... 
5 — Additional Cost of Rock Excavation 
6 — Handling & Trimming Excavated 

Rock ........................................................
7 — Excavating Frozen Material in river

bed ..................................................... ....
8 — Work done under Winter Conditions 
9 — Overcharge on Logs .............

10 — Cement for Apron in By-pass Channel 
11 — Shortage in payment for Class 1 

Concrete .............................
12 — Plant removal ..................... 
13 — Standby & Overhead Expenses ... 
14 — Interest on Deferred payments .....

TOTAL

Amount claimed 

by the Action

$ 21,601.45 
4,103.72

148,857.15 
.5,563.50 
35,100.74

1,990.82

2,530.32
96,832.45 
7,220.19
2,239.46 

31,549.15
5,823.49 

49,147.41 
286.90

$412.846.75

Amount allowed 

by the Judgment

$ 13,919.45 
2,995.42

117,075.22 

35,100.74

2,530.32
81,282.62 

1,429.60
1,879.83 

31,549.15
5,823.49

$293.585.84
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10

Comme on le voit, de quatorze item, quatre out ete refuses; ce sont 
jgg niimeros 4, 6, 13 et 14. Les autres out ete admis, mais avec, en certains 
cas, des reductions plus on moins considerables.' ^

La defenderesse ainsi condamnee en appelle, pretendant que la de- 
mande aurait du etre reduite a I'item 9 ci-dessus qu'elle admet, soit une 
somme de $1429.60 avec interet et les depens d'une action de ce moiitant.

La demanderesse, de sou cote, loge un contre-appel pour obtenir que 
quant a certains des items qui lui ont ete accordes, 1 'interet court non pas 
settlement a compter du jugement a quo, selon qu'il a etc dit, mais bien 
plutot a compter de 1 'assignation.

Etant donne la conclusion a laquelle j'en viens ci-apres quant a 
1'appel de la defenderesse, ce contre-appel de la demanderesse tombe de 
lui-meme necessairenrent.

Revenant done a 1'appel de la defenderesse, je dois maintenant et 20 
en toute deference examiner et peser chacim des items qui ont ete accordes 
en premiere instance.

HARDPAN EXCAVATION. — II est acquis an debat, pour ce 
qui est des excavations, que le contrat se borne a envisager la "terre" et le 
"roc"; rien n'y est stipule quant a du "hardpan". Et pourtant 1'on en 
soupQonnait bien 1 'existence a cet endroit, puisque le contrat en fait par 
ailleurs mention (p. 1115).

On ne pent done soutenir qu'il v a eu la oubli ou imprevision ; mani- 
festement les parties ont entendu dire et ont dit que pour ces excavations, 
il n'y aurait qu'une distinction a faire, qu'une seule ligne de demar­ 
cation vaudrait et serait admise ; ou du roc ou de la terre. Tout ce qui ne 
pourrait etre considere roc ne pourrait etre charge que comme terre et au 
prix de la terre.

C'est en vain que pour venir au secours de 1 'entrepreneur 1'on vou- 
drait recourir a une clause des devis incorporee au contrat et qui se lit : —

"It is the intention of these specifications to secure thoroughly 
first class construction in both material and labor for each of the 
classes included herein without working an undue hardship on the 
Contractor...".
Cette clause particuliere a trait a la nature de 1'ouvrage ou du ma­ 

teriel, mais n'a rien a faire quant aux prix arretes pour ce qui, en tout 
cas, devait etre fait.

L 'Excavation dont il s'agit devait etre faite ct 1'on a pris la peine 
de stipuler au contrat qu'il serait alloue tel prix de base ou tel autre, selon 
qu'il s'agirait de roc ou de terre.

30
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On ne peut a mon humble avis sortir de la: 1'ouvrage devait en tout In court of
cas etre execute et c'est selon que pourvu au contrat que le prix en devait KmgjLBencl1
etre etabli. Or c'est ainsi et sur cette base que 1'Intimee a ete payee. The Notes

^ ^ J of Hon. Mr.
Justice

Au surplus, j'ai peine a croire, en face de 1'ensemble de la preuve, ("continued) 
que veritablement 1'on fut en presence de hard pan. Surtout si ce qu'il faut 
entendre par ce terme n'est pas seulement un melange de terre, de gravier 

10 et de cailloux, durci au point de ne pouvoir etre laboure, selon que nous le 
dit le temoin Mailhot (p. 141) et que nous le retrouvons a une note du Cor­ 
pus Juris (Vol. 20, p. 214), mais est encore une composition si dure qu'une 
pelle mecamque de 70 tonnes ne pourrait en avoir raison sans qu'on ait au 
prealable dynamite ce melange, selon que le soutiennent les experts Kay- 
ser et Clarke, amenes par 1'Appelante en contre-preuve.

II est a noter qiie ces deux experts n'ont pas vu 1'endroit dont il 
s'agit, qu'ils supposent un hardpan lei qu'on pent I'imaginer seientifique- 
ment, Or, aucun des nombreux temoins qui ont connu 1'endroit precis 

20 dont il s'agit, ne va jusque-la; aucun n'etablit qu'une pelle mecanlque 
n'aurait pas suffi, et M. Bishop lui-nmne, questionne a ce sujet, s'efforce 
plutot d'etablir qu'il eut ete trop dispendieux d'amener la une pelle me- 
cauique. Ceci n'est-il pas admettre qu'elle eut pu suffire; meme sans avoir 
a se servir au prealable de dynamite, puisque c'est en somme pour ce cas 
seulement que M. Bishop etait examines,le"derrick orange peel" Men moins 
puissant et moins effectif qu'une pelle mecanique, que 1'on avait sur les 
lieux etant tenu pour suffisant si 1'on se donnait le trouble de dynamiter 
d'abord.

30 On a bien effectivement dymmite a certains endroits, mais d'apres 
une certaine preuve, c'etait plutot paree que la surface s'etait durcie sous 
1'effet de la gelee.

De 1'ensemble des tcmoignages dc tons ceux qui ont vu ce sol parti- 
culier, ce melange de terre, de gravier et de cailloux, il semble qu'il n'eut 
pas ete impossible d'y passer la charrue.

Cette impression ou je reste opres avoir lu la preuve me met plus 
a I'aise encore pour interpreter le contrat comme je le fais au sujet des 

40 excavations et pour conclure que 1'Intimee n'etait pas quant a cette char­ 
ge particuliere de son compte, en face de quelque chose pouvant etre re- 
garde comme du roc; qu'il s'agissait bien plutot de terre. D'autant qu'en 
lui comptant le prix de son creusage a cet endroit, 1'on a effeotivement 
traite comme rocs ceux des cailloux qui en grosseur depassaient une demi- 
verge.

Pour ce premier item, le dossier ne me paratt pas justifier le judg­ 
ment a quo.
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PASSING LOGS. — Ici encore, c'est, a mon humble avis, le con- 
trat et le contrat uniquement qui regie le cas. II y est dit : —M M e j

"He (the contractor) shall so construct the coffer dams and arrange 
and manage the construction of the works as a whole, that logs of 
the owner, or of others, may be driven by the site of the dam during 
the driving season of 1929, and shall provide such opportunities for 
the passage of logs as the construction work may render necessary".

Manifestement, la premiere partie de cette clause eut suffi s'il se 
fut simplement agi pour 1'Intimee de laisser ouvert un passage suffisarit.

Cette premiere partie de la clause pourvoit non seulement a 1'es- 
pace requis qui devait etre laisse libre, mais encore quant a I'existence de 
ce passage, a la facon clout seraient faites les constructions.

Mais il y a plus dans cette clause : —

"..... and shall provide such opportunities for the passage of logs as 
the construction work may render necessary".

Ceci ne peut avoir d'autre sen,s, dans les circonstaiices que je viens 
de souligner, que ce que vent I'Appelante, a savoir que 1 'entrepreneur de­ 
vait aussi voir a ce que ses travaux n'arretassent pas, au passage, les billots 
de I'Appelante ou de tons autres.

Et c'est ainsi que 1'a d'abord compris 1'Intimee elle-meme, puis- 
qu'en outre d 'avoir eu la des hommes avec des piques pour diriger les bil­ 
lots qui donnaient contre son batardeau, elle avait pretendu y installer 
•encore les estacades necessaires. Seulement ces estacades insuffisantes, trop 
faibles et trop minces n'ont pu retenir les billots comme on y avait compte. 
De la la cause du trouble.

J'infirmerais done egalement quant a cet item.

COFFERDAMS & UNWATERING. — C'est une augmentation 
du cout des travaux que reclame 1'Intimee sous ce titre.

Elle apporte au soutien de cette partie de sa demande deux raisons : —

Premierement : elle aurait ete induite en erreur par 1 'exhibition ou 
la remise d'un plan, quant au lit de la riviere. Au lieu du roc (ledge) 
qu'indiquait ce plan, on se serait plutot trouve en presence d'une couche 
de gravier, cailloux, etc., variant de un a neuf pieds, juxtaposee au roc du 
lit de la riviere. Ceci aurait complique 1 'installation du batardeau en amont 
et aurait nui a son efficacite.

10

20

30



_ 1OQ _
_L^Jt7

In theSecondement: la presence des billots de 1'Appelante aurait egale- n coeurtof
ment nui a cette installation du batardeau en question.

u No. 9
The Notes

Ce que i'ai dit plus haut quant a 1 'obligation de 1'Intimee de pour- Snsti™'
* " , , .-,-, , .en -I • • v -i • n -1-1 Letourneauvoir au passage des billots, suttit je crois a disposer du second de ses (continued) 

griefs, celui que les billots auraient a cet endroit pris une f ausse direction 
et donne contre le batardeau au lieu de descendre le courant dans 1'espace 

10 qui avait ete menage a cet effet.

Et il est a noter que les temoins de 1'Intimee attribuent a cette pre­ 
sence des billots, bien plus qu'a 1'erreur du plan, la cause de troubles 
que 1'on a entendu couvrir par ce present item de la demande; et si cette 
cause principale qu'a ete la presence des billots doit disparaitre, comme 
je le crois, quelle proportion de responsabilite aurait done pu etre encou- 
rue par la remise d'un plan errone? ... Nous ne le savons pas, et ceci, a 
mon humble avis, suffirait a faire dire que la preuve est sur ce point in- 
suffisante.

20
Mais il y a plus, c'est qu 'aucune relation de cause a effet n'est ici 

vraiment etablie entre cette pretendue fausse indication du plan et ce qui 
en fait s'est passe, soit au sujet de 1 'installation du batardeau, soit quant 
a son efficacite.

Car, notons-le, 1'Intimee ne pent se plaindre et ne se plaint effecti- 
vement a aucune autre egard du lit de la riviere a cet endroit.

Aucune mauvaise foi quelconque ne peut chez 1'Appelante resulter 
de ce fait que rintimee aurait eu son plan B-2444 (P-2), plutot fait pour 

^ lui permettre de situer exactement 1 'endroit ou elle voulait asseoir son 
barrage et sans aucun rapport, consequemment, avec une installation de ba­ 
tardeau qui, pour tout le monde d'apres la preuve, supposait un examen 
particulier du fond, du lit de la riviere a 1 'endroit precis ou devait reposer 
ce batardeau. L'lngenieur Olivier Lefebvre qui avait pour le Gouverne- 
ment de la Province la supreme direction de 1'entreprise, peint bien, a 
mon sens, la situation quand temoignant au sujet de 1'effet possible que le 
plan en question devait avoir pour un entrepreneur, il dit (Vol. 5, p. 
909) :—

40 "R. — Ces renseignements sont indicateurs d'une fagon generale 
de ce a quoi on peut s'attendre quant a la hauteur du lit de la ri­ 
viere, mais je ne pense pas que personne ne s'aventure a construire 
un batardeau destine a s'ajuster au lit de la riviere en se limitant 
aux renseignements f ournis sur la ligne de sondage en question.

Q. — Etes-vous en etat de nous dire quelle est la premiere operation 
que la construction de batardeau doit faire, un constructeur muni 
de ce plan-la?
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R.—Cela depend voyez-vous, des conditions auxquelles il s'attend, 
mais generalement, on pratique toute une serie de sondages a espa- 
ces tres rapproches pour avoir une idee exacte et detaillee des di- 
verses hauteurs du lit de la riviere, et on essaie autant que possible 
de construire la base du batardeau pour qu'en le callant ce batar- 
deau s'a juste aux asperites, au lit de la riviere."

Et c'est si bien le cas, que c'est precisement ce que 1'Intimee s'est 
preoccupe de faire avant 1'installation du batardeau en question, quoi 
qu'elle veuille aujourd'hui pretendre. Ses employes Reiffenstein et 1'Heu- 
reux ont vu a faire ces sondages et ces mesurages que suppose 1'ingenieur 
Lefebvre et ils en temoignent d'une t'agon iion equivoque.

On a done ainsi ete a meme de se rendre compte de la nature du lit 
de la riviere et si a ce moment, on n'y a pas attache plus d'importance, c'est 
que 1'on a consenti a descen,dre le batardeau sur ce fond tel qu'il etait. 
Ce n'est qu'apres coup qu'on a songe a s'en faire un grief.

20
Mais, je le repete, on savait ou tout au moins 1'on a ete a meme de 

savoir.

D'ailleurs, la preuve faite ne permet pas de dire que ce lit de la 
riviere a 1'eiidroit en question — a supposer qu'il fut le meme au moment 
ou 1'employe Stratton cherchait pour PAppelante les indications qui de- 
vaient permettre a celle-ci de situer son barrage—, ait ete cause des in- 
convenients dont pretend avoir souffert 1 Tntimee. On a retrouve sous 1 'un 
de ses caissons, un des enormes caitloux qu'elle admet avoir descendu et 
glisse dans le courant sous le pretexte d'y retenir plus facilement ce 30 
caisson.

Surtout, rien n'est moins etabli qu'il faille rattacher a 1'existence 
de cette couche de gravier superposee au roc du lit de la riviere, ces fuites 
d'eau dont 1'Intimee dit avoir souf f ert.

Je reste sous 1'impression, d'apres Pensemble de la preuve, qu'avec 
plus de soin, 1'Intimee eut pu eviter les ennuis qui lui sont venus de ce 
chef d'une installation de son batardeau.

40
A ce sujet encore, je prononcerais centre elle et en faveur de 1'appel.

ADDITIONAL COST OF ROCK EXCAVATION. — Ce grief 
viendrait de ce que faute d'avoir mieux connu la nature du sol, soit 1'ex­ 
acte profondeur a laquelle 1'on devait rencontrer le roc solide a 1'endroit 
precis ou devait etre le barrage, 1'on aurait impose a 1'entrepreneur un 
precede plus couteux qu'il n'etait necessaire en exigeant de lui qu'il minat 
successivement a de faibles profondeurs plutot que d'en venir d'un seul 
coup a la profondeur qu'il fallait.
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Ceci, necessairement a donne lieu a plus de travail et de defenses. Intcoeurtof
King's Bench

Intcoeu
ng'

Cependant, une preuve qui n'est pas contredite etablit que c'est me Notes 
ainsi qu'il fallait proceder dans les circonstances ou 1'on etaif; que la juSic"' 111 ' 
quantite de roc qui a ete enlevee devait 1'etre. L 'opinion de 1'ingenieur L(econttaued) 
Lefebvre qui avait, comme je I'ai deja dit, la direction supreme de 1'entre- 
prise, corroboree par celle de son assistant sur les lieux, ne laisse aucun 

10 doute a ce sujet.

Aussi, j 'incline a debouter egalement 1'Intimee de la reclamation 
qu'elle a formulee a ce sujet.

EXCAVATING FROZEN MATERIAL IN RIVER BED. — II
n'y a aucun doute que d'apres son contrat, 1'Intimee etait tenue d'enlever 
ce materiel. De fait, elle 1'a enleve. C'est comme pour de la terre qu'on 1'a 
payee, puisqu'en fait ce n 'etait pas veritablement du roc, et pour les rai- 
sons que j'ai donnees en discutant I'item "Excavation", rien de plus ne 

20 pouvait a ce sujet lui etre alloue.

Le fait que ce materiel etait gele vient de ce qu'il n'a pas ete en­ 
leve avant 1'hiver, et si comme je crois 1 'avoir deja etabli 1'Intimee est seule 
responsable des grands retards qui se sont produits dans son entreprise, 
elle ne peut encore s'en prendre qu'a elle-meme de cette consequence addi- 
tionnelle qu'ont pu avoir ces retards.

Ici non plus 1'on ne peut recourir a la clause du "undue hardship 
on the Contractor".

30
Je tiendrais cet item pour egalement mal fonde.

WORK UNDER WINTER CONDITIONS. — Si c'est a raison de 
la seule ampleur et d'une execution normale des travaux que 1'Intimee a 
du operer en hiver, elle ne peut s'en plaindre puisqu'il s'agissait encore 
de ce qu'elle avait entrepris et devait faire. Si c'est a cause du retard 
que les billots et les difficultes de I'assechement du lit de la riviere ont 
apporte, je crois avoir deja demontre qu'elle ne peut s'en prendre qu'a 
elle-meme. 

40
Cet item egalement doit etre refuse.

OVERCHARGE ON LOGS. — Cet item de $1429.60 est fonde et 
devait etre accorde, selon que le reconnait 1'Appelante en son Memoire.

CEMENT FOR APRON IN BY-PASS CHANNEL. — L'inti- 
mee demande cette somme additionnelle parce que 1 'extra en question 
commande aux premiers jours de mars de 1930 aurait eu pour consequence 
1'absorption complete de tout le ciment qu'elle avait en reserve sur les
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20

lieux a ce moment, 1'obligeant ainsi a se pourvoir autrement alors que deja 
prgtend-elle, g^g n 'avait plus le benefice des ehemins d'liiver et consequem- 
ment a tres grands frais.

L'lntimee etait incontestablement tenue par son eontrat a cet extra, 
si seulement il lui etait demande, et rien n'indique qu'on dut le lui de- 
mander en hiver.

D'ailleurs, au moment ou ceci a ete effectivement ordonne, soit le 
13 mars 1930, les ehemins d 'hiver existaient encore d'apres la preuve, et 
la encore 1'Intimee ne peut s'en prendre qu'a elle-meme de n 'avoir pas vu 
en temps a ce supplement de ciment sur lequel elle dit avoir compte.

Je lui refuserais aussi cet item.

SHORTAGE IN PAYMENT FOE CLASS 1 CONCRETE. — Les
chiffres fournis de part et d'autre me paraissent avoir ete et devoir etre 
admis comme exacts. II s'agit plutot, selon que le dit 1'Intimee dans son 
Memoire, d'une juste interpretation du eontrat. Le cas tombe-t-il sous le 
coup de cette clause (p. 1097) ou "due to changes of design or depth of 
foundations from those used for calculating said quantities, there shall be 
added to or deducted from said principal sum according to whether said 
quantities are increased or diminished, sums computed according to the 
following table, etc."

Si oui, il n'y a qu'a faire jouer les diminutions ou augmentations de quan- 
tites tel qu'elles ont ete prevues au tableau qui vient a la suite de cette 
clause et 1'Intimee aurait raison dans ses pretentious. Mais s'il s'agit au 
contraire d'une simple substitution d'un ciment No. 1 "without plums" a 
un ciment No. 1 "with plums", sans que la chose piiisse etre rattachee a 
la charge sus-mentionnee et soit due "to changes of design or depth of 
foundations from those used for calculating said quantities", il me semble 
qu'il faille plutot decider en favour de 1'Appelante quoi qu'en ait d'abord 
pense son representant O'Shea selon que nous le revele une lettre qu'il 
adressait a 1'Intimee le 9 Mars 1930 et qui est produite comme exhibit D-30.

Je ne vois rien au dossier qui me permette de conclure ici autre­ 
ment qu'a une simple substitution et consequemment la difference de prix 40 
qui effectivement a ete payee a 1'Iritimee par 1'Appelante devrait mar- 
quer la limite de responsabilite de cette derniere.

Je rejetterais egalement cet item de la demande.

PLANT REMOVAL. — II s'agit encore de 1'une des consequences 
de ce retard de trois mois environ qu'auraient cause a la demanderesse-In- 
timee certains travaux addition-nels, 1 'ennui des billots et I'etat du lit de la 
riviere.

30
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Or, i'ai deja dit que seule elle doit avoir toute responsabilite a ce Intcoeurtof
• , - A King's Benchsuiet. —
' No. 9

II s'ensuit que 1'item doit lui etre refuse. of Hon. Mr.
^ Justice

Sur le tout, je ferais droit a 1'appel avec depens; j'infirmerais le L<ec0£t?neued) 
jugement rendu quant a tons les item qui nous out ete soumis, sauf celui de 
$1429.60 pour "overcharge on logs"; et, statuant a nouveau, j'accorderais 

10 la demande mais jusqu'a concurrence settlement de cette somme de $1429.60 
avec interet et les depens d'line action de ce montant, ces depens se limi- 
tant pour 1'enquete a un dixieme de ce qui a ete encouru de ce chef.

(Signe) Severin Letourneau,
J.C.B.R.

No. 10 _ „In the
Court of 

King's Bench
20 The Notes of Hon. Mr. Justice Hall —•

The Notes 
of Hon. Mr.

The Respondent, by its action, demanded $412,000, made up partly 
of sums representing labor, material, work and services necessarily sup­ 
plied under its contract with the Company-Appellant, and partly as dam­ 
ages suffered by it as the result of erroneous and deceptive information 
supplied, and representations made, by the latter.

Although the Respondent's tender was accepted, and the work be­ 
gun before the contract was signed, it is common ground that the terms 

30 and conditions of the contract itself, which was dated the 23rd May, 1929, 
govern the obligations of both parties.

The Company-Appellant, having decided to construct a dam on the 
Lievre river, in the locality known as Cedar Rapids, which was to be under 
the control and supervision, and ultimately to revert to the ownership, of 
the Quebec Streams' Commission, retained the services of Mr. H. S. Fer- 
guson of New York, to design and supervise the building of the dam; and 
with the object of deciding the exact point at which the dam should be 
constructed, Mr. Ferguson sent his assistant, Mr. Stratton, to the Lievre 

40 river to make a preliminary survey of the bed of the stream, in order to 
secure the necessary information.

In carrying out this work, Mr. Stratton took a series of soundings 
in different parts of Cedar Rapids, and prepared a plan indicating the ele­ 
vation of the bed of the river at various points.

As will be noted in greater detail when we come to consider the 
construction of the cofferdam, Mr.Stratton marked on his plan, after 
the figures of most of the elevation, the letter 'L', indicating ledge rock, 
which he had identified by forcing the steel rod, with which he took the
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Intetcoeurtot soundings, through the loose material, technically known as "overburden 
OVerlay the riverbed.

No. 10 
The Notes

It is important to note, however, in passing, that Mr. Stratton's sur- 
o£ intended to be definitive, but solely to enable Mr. Ferguson 

to decide upon the proper location of the dam. (Ferguson p. 716).

On receipt of this information, Mr. Ferguson chose the site, pro- JQ 
ceeded to design the dam to be thereon erected, and make an approximate 
estimate of the extent of the excavation and the quantities of material 
that would be required.

As the river at that locality was only approximately 150 feet wide, 
Mr. Ferguson recognized that it would be impracticable to unwater the 
bed of the river in sections, and formed the opinion that any contractor, 
whose tender might be accepted, would consider it preferable to divert the 
flow of the river through an artif icialchannel, known as a by-pass.

20
The only practicable site for the by-pass was on the north bank of 

the river, and, in order to discover what character of material would be 
met with in the excavation, five test pits were sunk at different places to 
a depth sufficient to reach the elevation which would be necessary to pro­ 
vide for the full flow of the river.

For this purpose, it was not necessary that the engineer should carry 
the pits to ledge rock, and they were sunk to a depth of only 18 or 20 feet.

When the tenders were called for, Mr. Bishop, the President of the 30 
Company-Respondent, and his chief engineer, after having taken commu­ 
nication of the various plans, proceeded to the site in order to familiarise 
themselves with the conditions, and there had an opportunity to obtain 
from Mr. O'Shea a description of the material that had been identified 
in the test pits.

It was clearly understood, and was subsequently provided by the 
contract, that the excavation of the by-pass, and the unwatering of the 
river-bed, were to be undertaken by the contractor at his own discretion, 
and at his own risk, while the dam itself, and the excavation therefor, *0 
were to be under the final control and direction of the chief engineer of 
the Quebec Stream's Commission.

While, then, it was possible for Mr. Ferguson to make an approxi­ 
mate estimate of the extent of the excavation and material that would be 
required, it is obvious that it was impossible to tell, from the preliminary 
survey, the exact character of the ledge rock that might be met with, and 
the exact depth to which the foundations would have to be carried, under 
the direction of the Streams' Commission.
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The contractor was thus conversant with these conditions, as a re- In 'court of 
suit of which, as is said by the learned Trial Judge:

No. 10 
The Notes

' ' Neither of the parties were fully aware of the magnitude of the 
undertaking, or of the difficulties which would be encountered in its (ContJnued) 
carrying out."

10 Having thus familiarised himself with the characteristics of the lo­ 
cality, and taken communication of the plans, knowing that the work was to 
be executed to the satisfaction of the Quebec Streams ' Commission ; that 
the extent of excavation might be materially increased, and that changes 
might be made both in design and material, Mr. Bishop submitted a first 
tender which was not accepted.

It was at first proposed that the dam shoidd be completed by March,
1929, but when the delay was extended until the 31st March, 1930, and
largely because the additional time enabled the contractor to make some

20 economies (McEwen p. 190), Bishop's tender was reduced by $10,000, to
$609,000, and was accepted.

That figure was intended to cover the completed structure, but, in 
view of the probability that changes would be made, the contract specified 
the "Quantities of work on which the Contract Price is Based", and made 
provision for the unit prices of increased quantities.

The contract was, therefore, one of a hybrid character, and was of 
a highly speculative nature, as appears from the fact that, while the con- 

30 tract price was $609,000, the contractor was actually paid $916,000, and, 
by his action, demanded a still further sum of $412,000.

In this connection, it is pertinent to quote the express provisions of 
the contract: —

' ' It is further agreed that, should the quantities of excavation, con­ 
crete and other classes of work which are listed in the above sche­ 
dule required for the satisfactory completion of the structure be 
different from those contained in said schedule, additions or de- 

40 ductions from the principal sum of money herein named shall be 
made in the mariner hereinafter provided.

But it is expressly understood and agreed, however, that :

(a) The quantities given in the foregoing table do not include 
any additional excavation which the Contractor may choose 
or be required to do for bypassing or handling the flow of the 
river during the construction of the dam; nor any materials 
and labor used for the construction of cofferdams; nor any
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of Hon. Mr. 
Justice Hall(continued)

other work or materials extraneous to the permanent struc- 
^ure Q £ ^e (jam j^ggjf which are required for the construction 
of the dam.

additional excavation and extraneous work and 
materials are to be performed and furnished by the Con­ 
tractor as a part of the work for which the said principal 
sum is to be the compensation. 10

There are other clauses governing extra work ordered by the Su­ 
pervising Engineer, but as these were all duly certified, and have been paid 
for in full, they are not relevant to the issues in this appeal.

Although the contract fixed the 31st March, 1930, as the date of 
final completion, the Respondent contends that the work could have been 
completed by November or December, 1929. and, in support, submits a 
chart showing "Possible progress with same actual quantities, assuming 
correct information and proper handling of logs by owners". (Exh. D.5.) 20

That means, of course, that neither the additional excavation order­ 
ed by the Engineer of the Streams' Commission, nor the resultant increase 
of materials, nor the extra work ordered, disadvantageously affected the 
contractor's anticipations.

Attention may here be drawn to a general provision in the Specifi­ 
cations (p. 1106), to the effect that: —

"It is the intention of these specifications to secure thoroughly 30 
first-class construction in both material and labour for each of the 
classes included herein, without ivorking undue hardship on the 
contractor."

The general basis of the Respondent's action is that erroneous and 
misleading information was given with regard to the character of the ma­ 
terial that would be met with in the excavation of the by-pass; that the 
plans showing the levels of the river bottom were erroneous and mislead­ 
ing, as the result of which the Contractor met with serious and unanti­ 
cipated difficulties in placing his cofferdams, and in unwatering the site 40 
of the dam ; that the Company- Appellant was negligent in the manner of 
handling its logs while driving them past the Contractor's works, and thus 
the work was rendered much more expensive, and so delayed its completion 
that the Contractor was subjected to the further expense of pouring his 
concrete during the winter, and of removing his plant after the winter 
roads had broken up.

The details of the Respondent's claim can be examined more appro­ 
priately by discussing the different heads under which they are grouped.
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"HARDPAN". Intcoeurtof
King's Bencn

The Judgment has awarded the Company-Respondent the sum of N ~io 
$13,919.45, as damages for the increased cost of excavating that part of 
the by-pass which is crossed by the dam site, because of the fact that con- 
solidated material, technically known, as "hardpan" was encountered, 
while the contractor was led to believe that nothing but earth would be
found. 

10
The bypass was to be excavated by the contractor at his own ex­ 

pense "except for that part of the excavation which would be required for 
the dam if the channel was not excavated". (Specifications p. 1112).

There is no doubt that hardpan was found at certain places in the 
by-pass, but it is not clearly established what had actually occurred with­ 
in the lines of the dam site proper.

Prof. Mailhot examined the excavation at one place only (p. 143), 
and Mr. Mclntosh (p. 624) who was present on that occasion say that 
that place was below the dam site.

While the contractor started to excavate early in November, he 
began the lower end and continued his operations in that connection 
throughout the winter.

There are no data which fix the date when the excavation reached the 
dam site, but it would appear probable that that locality was not reached 

on until the end of December or the 1st of January, by which time, according 
to Mclntosh (p. 622) the ground was frozen.

The test pits disclose the fact that there was a great deal of seepage 
in the sub-soil, and, with the arrival of winter weather, the material would 
certainly be frozen, and as difficult to excavate as was the overburden of 
811 cubic yards found in the bed of the river after it was unwatered, for 
which the contractor has a similar claim for additional expenses.

The information disclosed by the test pits was properly and fairly 
communicated to the contractor, and by tlie testimony of Mr. O'Shea, the 

40 engineer in charge, and the laborers who actually did the work, it is esta­ 
blished that no hardpan was encountered, although they were obliged, on 
one or two occasions, to blast boulders.

It is contended by the Appellant that, even if hardpan was encoun­ 
tered, it could have been easily handled had the contractor made use of a 
steam-shovel instead of an orange-peel excavator.

This theory has been controverted by the Respondent's experts, and 
Mr. Bishop adds that the expense of bringing in a steam-shovel would 
have been prohibitive.
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Xn ciourtof I do not venture, therefore, to express an opinion on this controver-
^ view of the terms of the contract itself, it appears to me to be 

TheNotes irrelevant.
of Hon. Mr. 
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(continued) rpj^ con^rac^- foas provided for only two classes of material to be 
excavated, that is, rock and earth.

While Prof. Mailhot says that hardpan is not earth, and is not JQ 
rock (p. 139), it does, in my opinion, properly fall within the general ca­ 
tegory of earth, rather than of rock. Hardpan is boulder clay, that is, a 
consolidated earth, but not rock.

This is another indication of the highly speculative character of the 
contract, for, while it is not at all unusual to meet with hardpan in the 
course of excavating through earth, the contractor voluntarily assumed 
that risk by consenting to a classification which provided for only two 
categories of material, rock and earth.

20 
I conclude, therefore, that this part of the claim should be disallowed.

HANDLING APPELLANT'S LOGS: 
AMOUNT ALLOWED $2,995.42.

It is provided by the contract that the contractor shall so construct 
the cofferdams and arrange and manage the constructions of the works as 
a whole, that the logs of the owner (Company-Appellant) may l>e driven by 
the site of the dam during the driving season of 1929, and shall provide 30 
such opportunities for the passing of logs as the construction work may 
render necessary.

It was thus anticipated that logs would be floated down the river 
during the course of the Respondent's operations, and the question to be 
decided is whether the expense of handling them at this point should be 
borne by the Company-Appellant or by the Respondent.

It is contended by Counsel for the Respondent that the words "may 
be driven", assume that the Appellant would, with its own men, do the 40 
driving, and that the sole obligation resting on the former was to "provide 
such opportunities — as may be necessary", that is, to leave openings or 
channels in its work as would be sufficient for the passage of the floating 
logs.

I am of the opinion that it is impossible so to narrow the Respon­ 
dent's obligations. The words "to provide such opportunities" seem ne­ 
cessarily to imply the provision of booms to direct the logs to the channels, 
and to prevent them being entangled in different parts of the Respondent's 
work.
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Such was certainly the Respondent's view of its duty when the work Intcoeurtof 
was begun, for the first booms were constructed and placed by its own KingHBencl1 
workmen without the knowledge or advice of the Appellant. TheNotes

0 L A of Hon. Mr.
Justice Hall

The first crib of the cofferdam was placed next to the north abut- (Continned) 
inent on the 15th June, and the first boom was run from a point 500 feet 
upstream, on the northern bank to the outermost corner of crib 1, thus 

JQ directing the logs to the center of the river, which was still open, and 
preventing them from swinging back into an eddy which swept around 
towards the spot where the by-pass was later opened.

When crib 2 was prepared it was intended that it should be sunk 
alongside crib No. 1, but, through misfortune, or mishandling, it was car­ 
ried by the current to the center of the river, thus leaving a channel be­ 
tween crib 1 and crib 2, and another channel between crib 2 and the south 
abutment.

20 Crib 3, was subsequently prepared to fill the gap between crib 1 and 
crib 2. It would appear obvious to a layman that, to protect crib 3, the 
boom should have been carried from crib 1 to crib 2, but that was not 
done until after crib 3 was placed, and it is altogether probable that the 
great difficulty met with when the logs are said to have pushed crib 3 
down before it was loaded, was due to the fact that the booms had not been 
placed to direct them to the channel south of crib 2.

Of course, as Lindskog says (p. 289), it was impossible to keep the
boom in place while crib 3 was actually being located, but it should have

30 been placed as soon as that operation was completed, and it would thus
have successfully protected that crib from the logs, which did not come
down until some four or five hours later.

Had the boom, at that time, been moved to the southern corner of crib 
2, the logs would have been directed into the channel, subsequently blocked 
by crib 4, a channel 30 feet wide carrying at least 15 feet of water. (Lind­ 
skog p. 227).

Counsel for the Respondent Jay particular emphasis on the com- 
40 plaints about logs, contained in Lindskog's letter of June 17th, 1929, (p. 

1134), which was forwarded by Mr. Bishop to the Company-Appellant, but 
it is to be noted that, while that letter was written two days after the 
placing of crib 1, the trouble indicated was "logs piling up in the eddy, 
and I am afraid of what will happen when the river is turned into the by­ 
pass." There is not a word suggesting that the logs interfered with the 
placing of the cribs, nor is there any request that the logs should be held 
up, but merely "not to send down a whole boom of logs at one time".
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Nor is there any suggestion that the Appellant was responsible for 
p}acjng o£ pr0per booms. Indeed, when Mr. Kenny offered to assist 

The Notes0 with booms, Lindskog declined the offer. (Coyle p. 845).
of Hon. Mr. 
Justice Hall

(continued) rp^g fjrs^ anc| on]y ^-jme Lindskog requested that logs should be held 
back, was about Aug. 1st, just prior to the placing of crib 4, and the request 
was at once complied with, the logs being held up for three weeks.

10
I conclude, therefore, that this item should be disallowed.

COFFERDAMS AND UNWATERING.

The Respondent had great difficulty in completing his cofferdam, 
and in making it sufficiently watertight to permit of the unwatering of 
the river-bed for the excavation of the damsite, and the construction of 
the dam. 20

Two causes are cited as responsible for this difficulty; first, the 
trouble with the logs, which prevented the proper placing of the cribs and 
sheathing, and second, the erroneous information about the river-bottom, 
contained in Plan B-2444.

Most of the witnesses express the opinion that the logs were the big­ 
gest factor, (Lindskog p. 236) ; the whole cause of the delay. (Acres p. 436). 
Mr. Bishop himself says: "We might have contended with the bottom, but 
the logs were the most important factor." (p. 151). 30

As the handling of the logs has already been considered, it is un­ 
necessary to say more than that the trouble and delay were due to causes 
for which the Respondent itself was responsible.

With regard to the alleged erroneous information conveyed by the 
elevations of ledge-rock in the Plan B.2444, it is contended that the Res­ 
pondent was misled into the belief that the cribs of the cofferdam would 
rest on rock without overburden, and that the difficulties met with were 
due to porous overburden, the presence of which made it at first impossible 40 
to secure a watertight structure.

After the cribs were all in place, blocking, with the exception of 
narrow gaps, the entire stream, it was proposed to complete the coffer­ 
dam by installing plank sheathing on the upstream face of the cribs. But, 
as logs caught in the cribs, or between them, prevented the sheathing being 
placed close to the cribs, it had to be located some distance upstream, and 
could not be forced through the overburden.
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It is to be noted, however, that the Superintendent, Lindskog, the In 'court of 
crib-foreman L'Heureux, and the Resident-engineer, all took soundings KlngJLBencl1 
before the cribs were built and placed. TUB Notes

of Hon. Mr. 
Justice Hall

This was, no doubt, the proper course, since the soundings taken by <Conttnued) 
Stratton were 20 feet apart, and quite insufficient to supply the data re­ 
quired for the proper construction of the cribs.

10
Now Lindskog's or Reiffenstein's soundings, produced as Exhibit

P.112, show four lines across the river between the north and south abut­ 
ments, the lowest reaching only elevation 79.2. In the center of the stream 
there appears to be very little variation in the depth, the soundings vary­ 
ing only between 84.7 and 81.7.

Stratton's soundings disclose, n?ar the northern abutment, the pre­ 
sence of a deep channel, reaching elevations 72.9 to 73.7.

20 Having Stratton's soundings when lie made his own survey, Lind­ 
skog could not, or should not, have failed to observe a discrepancy of 'o 
feet. If he actually found the lowest level of the bottom at 79.2, while 
Stratton showed an elevation of 72.9, there was a clear indication that the 
latter had thrust his sounding-rod through an overburden. L'Heureux re­ 
lied on Reiffenstein's soundings, but before proceeding to construct the 
cribs, which should be made to conform generally to the bottom of the 
river, he took other, and more extensive soundings himself, to find out 
exactly how the bottom was. (p. 980).

30 Neither of these men, experienced as they were in such work, could 
have failed to observe the discrepancies between their soundings, and those 
of Stratton. Nevertheless, not one word of complaint was uttered, the 
deeper soundings on Plan B.2444 were ignored, and the cribs were con­ 
structed to conform to their own soundings. The first reference to the un­ 
disclosed overburden was made by Mr. Bishop, in a telegram to Ferguson 
on the 26th September, 1929. (p. 1145).

It is fully disclosed by the evidence that the greatest difficulty with
leaks was met with just at that locality where Stratton's soundings indi-

40 cated a deep channel, which Lindskog's soundings failed to note. It was
across that deep channel that the steel-sheeting, which ultimately stopped
the leaks, was placed.

Mr. Bishop, with frank complacency, claims the credit for the idea 
of driving steel-sheet piling at that point, which, he says " enabled us to 
meet conditions, and shows that I knew how to stop it (the leaking) ". (p. 
100).

Owing to the difficulty in placing the cribs, and the impossibility 
of overcoming the leaks, even after the wooden sheathing, toefilling and
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other devices, the work was held up from Aug. 3rd, the date when the last 
^-^ wag piace{j ? until the middle of November, when the steel-sheeting was 
driven. For upwards of three months the Respondent's workmen were 
struggling:, and resorting to manv useless devices.°

It is a striking fact that it was during this period that the Chief En­ 
gineer, Mr. McEwen was called to Newfoundland, and was continuously 
absent from Cedar Rapids from May 29th, until Oct. 22nd, 1929. (p. 206). JQ

Mr. Bishop himself was absent during the months of July and Au­ 
gust. If he knew in October that steel-sheet piling was an appropriate 
remedy, he surely might have ordered it the 1st of September instead of 
the 14th October. Had Mr. McEwen been in attendance, instead of entrust­ 
ing to subordinates the supremely important work of building the coffer­ 
dam, it is not unreasonable to assume that the difficulty would not have 
arisen, or that it would have been promptly overcome.

As has been noted, it is essential that the general character of the 20 
bottom of the river should be accurately known in order that the cribs may 
be properly shaped.

Now crib 2 was designed for a place adjoining crib 1, on the north­ 
ern side of the river, where, according; to Stratton's soundings, the bottom 
was about 72, and according to Reiffenstein 81 (approximately). Unfor­ 
tunately for the Respondent, its Superintendent arid workmen, in the ab­ 
sence of the Chief Engineer, placed crib 2 much farther south, where the 
elevations were entirely different.

30
While it is true that the greatest quantity of leaking was under Or 

around cribs 1 and 3, still the misfortunes and faulty placing of crib 2, 
contributed to the general defects of the cofferdam.

I conclude, therefore, that the difficulties met with in building the 
cofferdam, and in the unwatering whether due to the logs, or to uniden­ 
tified overburden, were occasioned by the carelessness of the Respon­ 
dent's employees, and that the item of $117,075.22, awarded by the Trial 
Judge, should be disallowed.

40

ADDITIONAL COST OF ROCK EXCAVATION — $35,100.74.

The judgment confirms, in its entirety, the Respondent's claim, 
which is to the effect that, while the contract estimate for rock excavation 
was 8060 cubic yards, the actual quantity ordered by the Supervising 
Engineers was 21,564 cubic yards ; that the method of excavation in thin 
layers, also ordered by the Engineers, was more expensive than the or­ 
dinary and usual methods, with the result that the total cost, allowing
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for overhead and profit of 37% (as provided for extras), amounted to Intcoeurtof 
$122,417.39, on account of which $87,316.65 has been paid, leaving, the bal- KinglBencl1 
ance of $35,100.74. The Notes

of Hon. Mr. 
Justice Hall

In the first place, it may be observed that this was not an extra, it (Contlnued) 
was clearly contemplated by the Contract, and the increased quantity of 
rock excavation was to be paid for at unit prices, which was done. The 

10 profit of 35% is clearly not applicable to an item of this sort.

Then, the Respondent expressly agreed to conform to the orders of 
the Supervising Engineers, who were the sole arbiters of how far, and in 
what manner, the rock should be excavated.

It is, in my opinion, fully established that it was impossible to dis­ 
cover in advance how deep the rock should be excavated, and that the 
method ordered, that is, proceeding by shallow stages, was altogether 
proper. 

20
The Specifications provide: —

"In preparing foundations for the concrete structures all 
loose ledge must be removed and the excavation carried to a suffi­ 
cient depth to provide a safe foundation and remove all open seams 
or joints which might at some time permit leakage or act as sliding 
planes.

All this work shall be done as directed by and to the satisfaction of 
30 the Engineer." (Vol. VI, p. 1114).

I conclude, therefore, that this item must also be disallowed. 

EXCAVATING FROZEN MATERIAL IN RIVER-BED — $2,530.32.

When the dam-site was unwatered, it was discovered that 811 cubic 
yards of earth, which overlay the rock, had first to be excavated, but, as 
winter already had arrived, and the earth was frozen, it was as hard to 
excavate as rock, and the rock-price is, therefore, claimed. 

40
The Trial Judge observes that: "it would obviously be imposing an 

undue hardship on the contractor to make him accept the earth price — 
consequently the plaintiff is entitled to this amount."

The so-called "hardship clause" has no application to such an in­ 
stance as this, and, in any event, the delay was, as has been already indi­ 
cated, due to the Respondent's own fault.

This item should also be disallowed.
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WORK UNDER WINTER CONDITIONS — $81,282.62. 
PLANT REMOVAL — $5,823.49.'

for these items is the assumption that the delay in 
unwatering was due to the Appellant's neglect in failing to handle the logs 
properly, and in giving erroneous information about the river-bed, ques­ 
tions that have already been fully examined. 10

As the respondent itself was responsible for the delay, it is not en­ 
titled to recover any increased costs from the Appellant.

OVERCHARGE ON LOGS : $1,429.60 

This item is admitted.
20

CEMENT FOR APRON IN BY-PASS CHANNEL — $1,879.83.

This was extra work ordered by the Engineer on or about the 13th 
March, 1930, completed on March 22nd, and for which the Respondent was 
duly paid the unit prices provided in the contract for excess quantities.

But the Respondent claims that it was obliged to bring in 55 addi­ 
tional tons of cement for this work in the Spring of the year, which cost 
more than if the work had been ordered earlier when the winter roads were 30 
in use.

There are two reasons why this claim should be disallowed.

First, had the Respondent itself not delayed the work for upwards 
of three months, during the summer of 1929, the necessity for the cement 
apron would have been observed before March 13th; and, secondly, in 
any event the winter roads were available until at least April 1st, and six 
weeks was ample delay to enable the Respondent to bring in, at ordinary 
cost, the extra cement. 40

This item should be disallowed.

SHORTAGE IN PAYMENT FOR CLASS 1 CONCRETE — $31,549.15.

The contract, after itemising the estimated quantities of work (p. 
1089), which were, of course, included in the principal sum, proceeded to 
add:—
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"If, however, the quantities of any of the various classes of work In 'courtof 
required to build the dam shall be different from the correspond- Kins_f_Bencl1 
ing quantities hereinbefore given, due to changes of design or depth The Notes 
of foundations from those used for calculating said quantities, there jL^ce^n 
shall be added to or deducted from said principal sum according to (Contimie 
whether said quantities are increased or diminished, sums computed 
according to the following table."

10
The new schedule of prices was to apply, therefore, only when the 

extra quantities were required by ' ; changes of design or depth of founda­ 
tion", and then to quantities exceeding the original estimate.

It was originally estimated that class 1 concrete, without plums, 
would be only 9690 cubic yards, and concrete -with plums 10,800.

But, by changes, not in design, but a mere redistribution of the con­ 
crete with, and the concrete without plums, the respective quantities were 

20 altered to concrete without plums 13,709 cubic yards, and concrete with 
plums 6,781 cubic yards.

The Respondent claims that all the concrete without plums, over 
the contract estimate, should be treated as new concrete called for by a 
change in design or depth of foundation.

I concur with Mr. Justice Letourneau in the opinion that the re­ 
distribution of the class 1 concrete estimated in the Contract, does not 
amount to a change in design, and that, therefore, the basis upon which 

30 the Respondent was actually paid was correct.

This item should, therefore, also be disallowed.

On the whole, I conclude that the appeal should be allowed, and that 
the judgment should be reduced to the sum of $1,429.60; with interest 
and costs.

CROSS-APPEAL.
40

It follows from the foregoing, that the Cross-Appeal should be dis­ 
missed, with costs.

November 22nd. 1935.

(Signed) A. Rives Hall,
J.C.K.B.
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The Notes of Hon. Mr. Justice St. Germain

This is an appeal from a judgment of the Superior Court, District 
of Montcalm, dated June 1st, 1934, condemning the James MacLaren Com­ 
pany Limited, Defendant-Appellant, to pay to the Bank of Montreal the 
sum of $293,585.84, for the benefit and account of William I. Bishop Li­ 
mited, Plaintiff-Respondent.

On or about November 15th, 1928, a contract was entered into be­ 
tween said Plaintiff and Defendant for the construction of a certain 
storage dam known as CEDARS RAPIDS STORAGE DAM to be con- 
sructed across the Lievre River. 20

That contract, based on unit prices, was entirely completed to the 
satisfaction of the Defendant in June 1930. The consideration to be paid 
to the contractor for his work and services was the sum of $609,100.00 re­ 
ferred to in the contract as the "Principal sum", that sum having been 
fixed upon an estimate of the quantities of excavation, concrete masonry, 
forms, reinforcing steel, and other classes of work required to completely 
construct the dam, which had been calculated from the dimensions and 
depths to the bottom of the dam according to plans and specifications.

30
Although the contract price based upon the above mentioned data 

was the said sum of $609,100.00, the Defendant has already paid for work 
to the amount of $916,723.57 and the Plaintiff-Respondent, by its present 
action, has claimed an additional sum of $412,846.75, representing, as al­ 
leged in its Declaration, labour, material, work and services necessarily 
supplied, outlays made by said Plaintiff and expenses to which said Plain­ 
tiff has been put in connection with (he said work as well as in connection 
with the doing of work actually required for said construction and ap­ 
proved of by Defendant but not provided for in the contract, or as dam­ 
ages suffered by the said Plaintiff for reasons attributable to the faulty, ^0 
erroneous and deceptive information supplied and representations made 
by Defendant to said Plaintiff.

The Respondent's claim may be divided into fourteen items, four of 
which have been rejected and the others allowed by the judgment a quo. 
These different items with the amount claimed and the amount allowed 
are described as follows in the Appellant's factum:—
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No.
No.
No.
No.

10 No.
No.

No.

No.
No.
No.

No.
20

No.
No.
No.

Title of Claim

1 — Hardpan Excavation ..........................
2 — Passing Logs ........................................
3 — Cofferdams & Unwatering ..................
4 — Cofferdam Lower End By-Pass ....
5 — Additional Cost of Rock Excavation
6 — Handling & Trimming Excavated

Rock ........................................................
7 — Excavating Frozen Material in River

bed ...........................................................
8 — Work under winter conditions
9 — Overcharge on Logs .................

10 — Cement for Apron in By-Pass
Channel ..................................................

11 — Shortage in payment for Class 1
Concrete ..................................................

12— Plant Removal ......................................
13 — Standby & Overhead Expense ..........
14 — Interest on Deferred Payments

TOTAL

Amount claimed 

by the Action

$ 21,601.45
4,103.72

148,857.15
5,563.50

35,100.74

1,990.82

2,530.32
96,832.45

7,220.19

2,239.46

31,549.15
5,823.49

49,147.41
286.90

$412,846.75

Amount allowed 

by the Judgment

$ 13,919.45
2,995.42

117,075.22

35,100.74

2,530.32
81,282.62

1,429.60

1,879.83

31,549.15
5,823.49

$293,585.84

in tne 
Court of 

King' s Bench
No. 11

The Notes 
of Hon. Mr. 
Justice
St. Germain 
(Continued)

We will now deal with each of these items separately. 

30 ITEM No. 1 — HARDPAN EXCAVATION:—

Here is an extract from the judgment a quo regarding this item:— 

The first item of Plaintiffs' claim is for excavating hardpan.

Only two classes of excavation are provided for by the con­ 
tract, earth and rock. The evidence shows that beyond doubt a 
considerable amount of hardpan had to be excavated, at a large 
additional cost over earth excavation.

The Defendants' answer to this claim is in substance:

a) There was little or none of this hardpan; that which Plaintiffs 
call hardpan was really earth which had become frozen owing to the 
lateness of the season;

b) Test pits had been opened by Defendant, and these apparently 
did not disclose hardpan, in fact O'Shea informed Plaintiff before 
tender was made that the test pits showed first five feet of sand
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In 'court of and loam, and next gravelly material with occasional boulders, con- 
King j^Bencn sequentty, no mention of hardpan is contained in the contract.

No. 11 
The Notes

jurti°c°' Mr' That the material was bardpan seems free from doubt. Mr.
(continued) Mailhot, a professor of geology, proves it, as does H. C. Ayers, a 

well known contractor, and also Plaintiffs' men who worked on it. 
It was certainly there and had to be excavated. It is not mentioned 
in the contract, consequently Defendant wants to pay for it as earth. JQ 
Plaintiff says it cost almost as much to excavate as rock. Ferguson 
at page 368 says that Plaintiff protested about it and he does not 
remember why he (Ferguson) did not attend to the matter in the 
beginning. Plaintiff and O'Shea spoke of recommending arbitra­ 
tion.

If Plaintiff has to meet this extra expense on account of 
something unforeseen, it certainly is imposing "an undue hardship 
on the contractor".

20
The amount thus excavated in that portion of the dam across the 
by-pass channel is 8335 cubic yards at $2.90 per yard, (two-thirds 
of rock price) amounts to $23,971.50 on account of which Plaintiff 
acknowledged to have received the earth price or $10,252.05, leaving 
a balance of $13,919.45 for which Plaintiff should recover.

WHAT IS HARDPAN? The Appellant in its factum quotes WEB­ 
STER, 1911 ed., p. 982, defining HARDPAN as :—

Any earth not popularly recognized as rock through which it 30 
is hard to dig or to make excavations of any sort.

The Appellant concludes from that definition that the word HARD- 
PAN, in its common acceptance, would appear to constitute earth and 
therefore, under the contract, should be paid for at the earth price.

There is one thing which is not questioned and that is: hardpan 
is "any earth through which it is hard to dig or to make excavations of 
any sort", but what is more controversial is whether, in a contract for 
the construction of a dam, wherein a certain price is fixed for the exca- 40 
vation of earth and another price for the excavation of rock, the excava­ 
tion of "hardpan" should be classified as excavation of earth, or should 
not rather be classified as excavation of rock.

I did not verify if in WEBSTER, 1911 ed., cited by the Appellant, 
the definition of the word "hardpan" is limited to the above mentioned 
quotation, but in WEBSTER'S NEW INTERNATIONAL DIREC­ 
TORY, 1924 ed., "hardpan" is defined as follows:—
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HARDPAN n. Chiefly U.S. 1. Any earth not popularly In 
recognized as rock, through which it is hard to dig or to make 
excavations of any sort. It may be: (1) semi-indurated clay, with me Notes 
or without admixture of stony matter; (2) cemented gravel; or (3) J«^'^n 
clay, with or without admixture of stony matter, which is very (continued) 
tough because of its strong cohesion.

10 HARDPAN is a material that may be regarded geologically 
as being rock in the process of formation. Any clay that has become 
so hardened by heat or pressure as to be an incipient shale, is hard- 
pan. Any sand that has been partly cemented by the deposition of 
a small amount of iron oxide of carbonate of lime in its pores, is 
also hardpan . There is no marked line dividing rock from 'earth, 
the one passing insensibly into the other The processes of solid­ 
ification, be they physical or chemical, may be found illustrated in 
nature's laboratory in all stages from the softest clay, through hard- 
pan and shale, to the hardest state.

20
(Engineering News)

That definition justifies absolutely the statement made by Mr. Oli- 
vier Lefebvre, Chief Engineer of La Commission des Eaux Courantes de 
Quebec, when examined in the case as a Defendant's witness:

Q. Etes-vous capable de donner la definition de ce qui est 
communement appele "hardpan"?

R. Tout le monde ne s'entend pas la-dessus, et c'est pour 
30 cette raison, parce qu'on ne s'entend pas que nous, a la Commission 

des Eaux Courantes, nous avons elimine de notre classification ce 
materiel a excaver, ce type, et nous n'avons que deux classes d'ex­ 
cavation : le roc et la terre.

Cross-examined upon that statement by Respondent's Counsel, Mr. 
Lefebvre adds the following:—

Q. Repondant a une question qui vous a ete posee au sujet 
du "hardpan", vous avez dit, je crois, que votre pratique mainte- 
nant etait de faire vos devis et contrats pour ne pourvoir qu'a deux 
classes de deblais: le roc et tout ce qui n'etait pas roc, dans 1'autre 
classe ?

R. Oui, monsieur.
Q. Je presume que vous le stipulez expressement dans vos 

contrats et dans vos devis?
R. Absolument.
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s avaz dit :
gg ^e "kardpan', vous vouliez dire par les termes expres de vos con- 

•me Notes1 trats et de vos devis, vous declarez a 1'entrepreneur qu'il n'y aurait
of Hon. Mr. j. n ' • £• ±- mjustice aucune telle specification?
St. Oermaln -!-»/-»• 
(Continued) R. Oui, monsieur.

Q. Que tout ee qui ne sera pas roc, et je presume que vous 
mettez une definition de ce qui doit etre considere comme roc ?

R. Oui, monsieur. ..,-, 
Q. Sera paye dans 1'autre classe ? 
R. Oui, monsieur.

By Mr. Geoff rion, C.R. :—

Q. Voulez-vous donner un exemple de eela ? 
R. Notre devis du lac Kenogami est tres clair.

By Mr. St-Laurent, C.R:—
20 

Q. Vous dites expressement a ceux qui vont vous soumettre
leur prix pour les deblais, roc defini de telle fagon, vous aurez tel 
prix, vous aurez le prix stipule pour le roc ?

R. Oui, monsieur.
Q. Et pour tout autre deblai, quelle qu'eii soit la durete. 

vous aurez 1'autre prix, que vous aurez stipule?
R. C'estcela.

It is to be noted that in the contract under discussion there is no 
definition of what must be considered "earth" or "rock", and therefore 30 
if, as quoted from the Engineering News in WEBSTER, "hardpan" is a 
material that may be regarded geologically as being rock in the process 
of formation and that there is no marked line dividing rock from earth, 
the one passing insensibly into the other, why should we classify "hard- 
pan" as earth rather than rock, when these words "earth" and "rock" 
are used in the contract in reference to price excavation, when a higher 
price is fixed for rock, owing to its difficulty of excavation, and "hard- 
pan" is almost as difficult to excavate as rock?

If I had to adopt one of the two classifications mentioned in the 40 
contract, I would classify "hardpan" as rock rather than earth because, 
as regards the difficulty of excavation, "hardpan" is much nearer rock 
than earth. The Appellant should not therefore complain if the Respon­ 
dent asks $2.90 per cubic yard for hardpan excavation, instead of $3.50 for 
rock excavation.

The Appellant says that the only reason given by the learned trial 
judge for condemning Appellant in connection with this hardpan claim is 
the "undue hardship" clause in the specifications which reads as follows:
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It is the intention of these specifications to secure thoroughly Intcoeurtof
first-class construction in both material and labour for each of the King± 
classes included herein without working an undue hardship on the The Notes
r*t , , of Hon. Mr.Contractor.... justice

St. Germain 
(Continued)

I agree with the Appellant that all the above clause says is that the 
requirement that material and workmanship be first-class shall not be 

10 enforced so as to work undue hardship on the contractor, but on the other 
hand that clause may be helpful for interpreting the fair character of the 
contract as a whole and seeing that hardpan excavation is almost as costly 
as rock excavation, would it not be also an undue hardship and unfair to 
the Respondent to classify hardpan excavation, in the present case, as 
earth excavation?

For the reasons above mentioned, I would confirm the judgment a 
quo for that first item.

20 ITEM NO. 2 — PASSING LOGS :—
Plaintiff alleges in its Declaration:—

12. HANDLING OF DEFENDANT'S LOGS.
That one of said Plaintiff's obligations under the contract was to 
adjust its works in a manner to provide opportunity for the pas­ 
sage of logs by Defendant, and said obligation was duly fulfilled by 
said Plaintiff, and said Plaintiff was not obliged by the contract to 
provide labour and facilities for the actual driving of the said logs 

30 by the site of the dam.
13. That notwithstanding the above, Defendant neglected 

and refused to carry out the driving of said logs past the site of 
the works and to place the necessary booms to accomplish the drive, 
and Defendant by said neglect rendered it necessary for said Plain­ 
tiff itself to supply booms and labour and to pass said logs in order 
to safeguard the works at an expense of four thousand one hun­ 
dred and three dollars and seventy-two cents and said Plaintiff is 
entitled to claim from Defendant said sum rendered necessary by 

40 reason of Defendant's said neglect, which sum is made up as fol­ 
lows :—
Cost of boom and expense of handling logs:—

Labour ............................ $2,858.59
Material ........................ ... ............. 136.83

$2,995.42 
37% Profit, Overhead etc. ...... 1,108.30

$4,103.72
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The Defendant says in its Plea:—

7. a) That any expense incurred by said Plaintiff in con­ 
nection with the passing of Defendant's logs was due to the failure 
of said Plaintiff to supply adequate facilities for such operations 
or suitable opportunities for the passage of such logs as said Plain­ 
tiff undertook to do by said contract, and especially because of the 
failure of said Plaintiff to provide guide booms and because the JQ 
gaps left between the cofferdam cribs were too narrow to permit the 
free passage of logs.

b) Defendant endeavoured at all times to bring down its 
logs so as to inconvenience said Plaintiff to the least possible ex­ 
tent and frequently to assist said Plaintiff held back its logs for 
considerable periods at great inconvenience and loss to Defendant. 
The judgment appealed from regarding that item reads as follows:

The next item for which Plaintiff claims is for handling De- 20 
fendant's logs. The contract provides that the contractor "shall so 
construct the cofferdams and erect and manage the construction of 
the works as a whole that logs of the owner or of others may be 
driven by the site of the dam during the driving season of 1929, and 
shall provide such opportunities for the passage of logs as the con­ 
struction work may render necessary".

The decision of this item will decide the next item in so far as the 
damage caused to the cofferdams and the delay which resulted 
therefrom is concerned. 30

Under all the circumstances of the case and the wording of 
the contract, what is the meaning of the words "may be driven"? 
Does it mean that during the driving season the Plaintiffs should 
leave sufficient space between its cofferdams as would enable the 
Defendant using its knowledge and skill as log drivers (which is 
their line of biisiness) to drive their logs through, or does it mean 
that the Plaintiffs who are not in the log driving business, to un­ 
dertake, apart from leaving the necessary space for the logs to be 
driven through either to do the driving itself, which it never agreed 40 
to do, or allow each particular log to use its own judgment as to the 
facilities which Plaintiff had provided for its passage.

Mr. Kenny's letter indicates clearly the position taken by the 
Defendant. That is to say, not only does the defendant claim that it 
is under no obligation to drive or take care of the logs in any way, 
but actually wants to hold the plaintiff responsible for any addi­ 
tional expense in driving the logs which they might be put to by
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reason of the works which Plaintiff was doing for defendant mi- In 'court of 
der the contract in question. There is no provision in the contract Ktog_LBencl1 
that Plaintiff should bear any part of this expense, and the position The Notes 
taken by defendant is in my opinion untenable. The cost of handling l"8*^'^ 
these logs is shown to be for labour and materials $2995.42 for (continued) 
which Plaintiff is entitled to judgment.

JQ As to the 37% which Plaintiff asks for, the work of handling 
Defendant's logs is not provided for by the contract, and being 
work not contemplated by the contract, this cannot be allowed.

That item rests entirely upon the interpretation of the above quoted 
clause of the specifications.

Appellant says:—

Respondent Bishop in this connection assumed two obliga- 
20 tions:—

1) To so construct the cofferdams and arrange and manage 
the construction of the works as a whole that logs of the owner, or 
of others might be driven by the site of the dam during the driving 
season of 1929, and

2) To provide such opportunities for the passing of the logs 
as the construction work might render necessary.

Regarding the first of these two obligations assumed by Respon- 
30 dent Bishop, that is: "to so construct the cofferdams that the logs of the 

owner or of others may be driven by the site of the dam during the driv­ 
ing season of 1929", I cannot see that any serious complaint has been made 
by the Appellant and the evidence is rather to the effect that the gaps left 
between the cribs were quite wide enough.

Regarding the second obligation, that is: "to provide such oppor­ 
tunities for the passing of the logs as the construction work might render 
necessary", it is submitted that said obligation can only mean that Res­ 
pondent obligated itself to provide whatever booms or other equipment 

40 were necessary to guide the logs into the opening in the dam.

With great respect, I cannot agree with that interpretation of the 
Appellant's counsel.

It is impossible for me to construe these words "to provide such 
opportunities for the passing of the logs", as meaning that Respondent 
obligated itself to provide whatever booms or other equipment were ne­ 
cessary to guide the logs into the opening in the dam. These words "to
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court of provide such opportunities for the passing of logs" cannot but mean to
Kng^Bench pj^yj^g £jmes or places favourable for executing the passing of the logs.

The Notes1 These words "to provide such opportunities" do not, according to me,
ft^'mata suggest the obligation of furnishing anything necessary for the actual

<bontinSea> execution of the work, but only favourable circumstances of time or place.

The evidence shows, (says the Appellant) that when the first 
of the cofferdam cribs was placed in the river on or about June JQ 
15th 1929, Respondent itself constructed a boom out of logs taken 
from the river and stretched it from the north shore of the river 
to the outer point of this first crib, for the purpose of preventing 
the logs from piling against the crib. This would be an indication 
that Respondent at that time expected itself to provide whatever 
protection the works required, as no request was made to Appellant 
to do so. This boom so placed bv Respondent did not properly fulfil 
the object for which it was intended. It was not heavy enough, also 
it was too short, and it was placed too much across the current. The 
result was that the logs got under it. 20

Obviously a proper boom would have kept the logs back and 
prevented them from interfering with the cofferdam work. This as­ 
sertion cannot be questioned, because the diversion of logs to the 
by-pass was carried out without difficulty by means of a boom, as 
already explained. Therefore, in view of the great stress laid by 
respondents on interference from logs, the question of who was 
reailly responsible for placing the boom becomes one of great im­ 
portance. As already stated, Appellant under the contract assumed 
no express obligation in this vespect. If any such obligation existed, 30 
it must be assumed, and it is respectfully submitted that there is 
nothing in the contract to justify any such assumption. However, 
even if the obligation did rest on Appellant to provide this boom, 
which is not admitted, surely Appellant could not have been ex­ 
pected to do this without being asked.

Again, I cannot agree with that reasoning of the Appellant's coun­ 
sel and I must come to the conclusion that it was Appellant's obligation to 
provide a proper boom for keeping the logs back and preventing them from 
interfering with the cofferdam work. It is not necessary that such obliga- 40 
tion be mentioned in the contract in question if, on the other hand, such 
obligation exists under the law.

Upon that point, the Respondent's counsel submitted in the first 
place:—

That the right of any riparian owner to drive or float his 
logs from one point on a stream to another is a right which does not 
entitle him to its use in disregard of all other persons pursuing
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their ilawf ul occasions upon or in the stream and that this right In court of 
must be exercised by the person who floats or drives the logs with Kng_L enc 
due regard to the rights of other persons lawfully using either the TheNotes 
waters or banks of the stream ; justice'7 St. Geimain

(Continued)

Secondly :
That the obligation, generally speaking, of any person legally 

}0 empowered to dam or divert the waters of a stream, towards per­ 
sons having a right to use the waters for floating of logs is that 
he shall provide suitable and proper means of passage for the logs 
and that this obligation does not extend so far as to relieve the 
party using the waters of the stream for floatage purposes from 
his duty to exercise due care in such use so as not to damage or 
injure others.

In other words, that quite apart from any modification which 
may be found in the contract the situation of the MacLaren Coin- 

20 pany and of the Bishop Company in law should be as follows : —

The MacLaren Company has undoubtedly had the right to 
drive their logs on the river, but in so doing it was always incum­ 
bent upon them to conduct their driving operations so as not to 
cause damage to others (sic utere tuo ut alieuum non laedas). The 
Bishop Company were lawfully upon the river having been put into 
possession for the purposes of the contract, of the banks of the river 
by the owners, the Defendant. They were, in damming and diverting 
the channel of the river, acting in the exercise of rights of the 

30 owner obtained from the Province of Quebec, and certainly, as re­ 
gards persons other than the owners, it was the duty of the Bishop 
Company to provide reasonable opportunities for the passage of 
logs rightfully driven in the stream.

I entirely agree with the Respondent's counsel. I would therefore, 
for these reasons, in addition to those of the trial judge, conclude that the 
Respondent is entitled to the amount allowed by the judgment a quo for 
this second item, i.e. $2,995.42.

40 ITEM No. 3 — INCREASED COST OF COFFERDAMS AND UN- 
WATERING:—

With reference to this item, which is the most important of the 
various claims submitted by Respondent, the judgment a quo reads as 
follows : —

The Plaintiff seeks to hold Defendant responsible for this 
item on two grounds :
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a) The damage caused by the logs;

b) The fact that on the plan upon which the tender was 
made, "the line established on the ground" (page 1 of contract) 
was marked L admittedly meaning ledge, while as a matter of fact 
it was not ledge at all, but had an overburden of a pervious nature, 
in some places as much as nine feet, so that it was only after much 
deflay and large extra cost, that the cofferdams could be made suffi- 10 
ciently water-tight for the work to be proceeded with.

The Defendant contends that Plaintiff should not have relied 
upon the statements on the plan, but should have verified them all, 
and cites several cases in support of the contention, principally the 
Nova Scotia Construction Co. and The Quebec Streams Commission. 
It must be noted however that the contract in the Nova Scotia case 
contains a special clause that "the agreement is made and entered 
into by the contractor ... solely on his own knowledge, information 
and judgment of the character and topography of the country, its 20 
streams, water courses and rainfall and subject to the same, and 
upon information derived from other sources than the commission, 
etc." No such clause is in the contract under consideration in this 
case.

The contract calls for the building of a dam "at a line es­ 
tablished on the ground, the location of which is indicated on a 
map attached hereto".

It is admitted by both parties that the dam was built on the 30 
line on the ground indicated on the map, and that the letters L on 
the map mean ledge. In addition to this the contract provides at 
page 9: "It is further agreed that any core drilling or grouting of 
seams in the ledge beneath the dam which may be required by the 
engineer shall be considered as extra work and be paid for as such 
in the manner provided herein for other extra work".

This clause plainly shows that both parties considered that 
the substance beneath the dam was ledge.

It is intimated by the defence in the examination of witnesses 40 
and at the argument, that Plaintiff should have verified the find­ 
ing of ledge, even to the extent of core boring. The contract as we 
have just seen provides that if core boring is considered necessary 
by the engineer (either Stream Commission's or Defendant's, page 
2-A of contract) it shall be paid for as 'extra work.

It would seem from the evidence that core boring might have 
saved much of the trouble, but there is no suggestion that the En­ 
gineer ever considered it necessary and under the contract it was up 
to him.
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The plan B-2444 was certainly not accurate, and plaintiff was n court of 
misled as to the difficulties which he would have to face in the KlngJLBencl1 
placing of cofferdams and the unwatering operations generally. The Notes
ox , ," , n n i j. • 1 j-i •<?.!_• i-i of Hon. Mr.otratton was the man who obtained the information upon which Justice 
the plan B-2444 was made, and his evidence shows that he had not (continued) 
had sufficient experience to be entrusted with such an important 
piece of work. He selected the "line on the ground", the site of the 

10 dam. Surely plaintiff had the right to suppose that when tlr? site 
of the dam had heen chosen by a well known firm of hydraulic en­ 
gineers that at that particular spot the river bottom was ledge, ;is 
marked on the plan, and that that site had been chosen because it 
was ledge.

Defendant argues that Plaintiff did not rely on Stratton'.- 
findings but checked it up themselves. The evidence shows that the 
soundings made by Reiffenstein and L'Heureux were merely for the 
purpose of getting the depth of the water and the shape of the 

20 river bottom so that L'Heureux who was the foreman carpenter 
would know how to make his cribs. Tire Defendant tries to show that 
the cribs for the cofferdams were not properly made, but the evi­ 
dence on this point is not convincing. All the delay, trouble and 
expense are due to two things;

a) The fact that instead of ledge at the line on the ground, 
where the dam was to be built, there was pervious overburden;

b) The damage caused by Defendant's logs. 
30

The amount of loss proved by Plaintiff is $144,457.92 being 
for extra crib work, sheeting and toefill, steel sheet piling, includ­ 
ing taking in heavy pile driver, pumping, removing of cofferdam, 
boats, etc.

This however cannot be considered work done under the con­ 
tract but damages. This being the case Plaintiff is not entitled to 
the 37% profit provided by the contract, but it is admitted at the 
argument that in this event an allowance of 15% for overhead would 

40 be fair. This amounts to $21,667.50, making in all $166,125.52 upon 
which Plaintiff acknowledges to have received $49,050.20 leaving 
balance of $117,075.22 for which Plaintiff is entitled to judgment.

Regarding the Appellant's logs as being one of the two causes res­ 
ponsible for the damages claimed by Respondent under this heading, the 
Appellant's counsel says in his factum: "This question has been dealt 
with fully under claim No. 2 to which Appellant now refers". Evidently, 
the Appellant's counsel here reaffirms that the Respondent, according to 
the terms of the contract, having assumed the obligation "to provide such
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to 'court of opportunities for the passing of the logs as the construction might render 
King^Bench necessary"^ ft belonged to said Respondent to provide whatever booms or 

The Notes other equipment were necessary to guide the logs into the opening in the 
' Mr' dam, so as to prevent them from interfering with the cofferdam work, and 

that therefore the Appellant cannot be responsible for any damage claim­ 
ed under the present item as caused by the Defendant's logs.

Seeing the conclusion to which I have arrived as to the interpre- JQ 
tation of the contract, with reference to the clause above referred to, I 
must therefore conclude that the Defendant's logs are responsible for 
damages claimed under the present item.

Upon that subject matter, I accept the following statement made 
by the Respondent in his factum as being conform to the evidence:—

The evidence of all the witnesses produced by Plaintiffs not 
contradicted or attempted to be contradicted by any of Defendant's 
witnesses, save the witness Coyle, is that the logs of the Defendant 20 
came downstream in large quantities, so large in fact that even the 
precautions taken by the Plaintiffs to keep them off the cofferdam 
were useless; that they jammed against the cribs of the Plaintiffs' 
cofferdam and in one instance drove a crib several feet downstream 
and necessitated the placing of the sheathing of Plaintiffs' coffer­ 
dam upstream from the face of the cribs, a distance varying from 
two to fifteen or sixteen feet, necessitating fill of heavy material be­ 
tween the sheathing and the cribs, the construction of a false-work 
of struts and walers which would, but for the presence of the logs, 
have been unnecessary. The presence of the logs further made it im- 30 
possible to drive the wooden sheathing through the overburden and 
even in some instances, prevented the sheathing from reaching the 
surface of the river bed. This necessitated the use of some 11,000 
yards of toefill, an abnormal quantity, and manifestly most expen­ 
sive to place, the result being that when the cofferdam construction 
had been completed in so far as the placing of the cribs and wooden 
sheathing and toefill was concerned, it was found impossible, not­ 
withstanding the use of three times the normally anticipated pump­ 
ing equipment on the job, to lower the water between the upstream 
and downstream cofferdams to any appreciable extent. This being 40 
the case, Mr. Ferguson, the Defendant's engineer, was called in and 
it was his opinion that the bed of the stream upstream from the 
cofferdam should be blanketed with more toefill, which suggestion 
was followed and although Mr. Ferguson expressed the opinion that 
the soundings indicated on his plan were correct, he nevertheless un­ 
dertook to have the location core drilled so that some definite assur­ 
ance might be obtained. This undertaking on Mr. Ferguson's part 
was not fulfilled because he afterwards decided that an electrical
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A. Yes, I think I recall that.
Q. And you would agree with him?
A. Yes, I would.
Q. You would agree with him that it was rather difficult to 

distinguish between a boulder and ledge when you hit it with a 
sixteen foot rod?

A. Well, it is.
Q. You sent Mr. Stratton up there, and he brought back JQ 

some information, ostensibly?
A. Yes.
Q. He put that information on a plan?
A. Yes.
Q. You used that plan to design the dam?
A. I did.
Q. When you read the plan for the design of the dam, did 

you read those elevations in the river as being the elevations of 
the surface of the river bed ?

A. I have already told you I cannot remember that. I as- 20 
sumed those were points at which be had found rock, but I do not 
remember whether he told me there was anything over the rock or 
not, as he told you in Court.

Q. But, if he did not tell you that, you would naturally read 
it as being the surface ?

A. If he did not tell me that, yes sir.
Q. Because, obviously, a topographical plan would show the 

contours of the surface?
A. Yes.
Q. In all fairness, the topography of the surface of that 30 

river bed, and the nature of the material of which the surface was 
composed, were matters of extreme importance to the contractor in 
the unwatering, were they not ?

A. They certainly were.
Q. And, if he received a topographical plan which showed 

that the surface of the river bed was ledge, when, as a matter of fact, 
the person who had investigated it, knew it was not ledge, then he 
would not be getting correct information on a point of extreme im­ 
portance to him, would he?

Witness:— You are now referring to this cofferdam con­ 
struction ?

Counsel:—I am referring to the information that was given 
by the plan.

A. On the cofferdam construction, I would judge a contrac­ 
tor who did not investigate the nature of the bottom he had to con­ 
tend with had not done all he should do.

40
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apparatus, which he admits upon cross-examination, would not be Intcourtof
accurate within three or four feet, could be used in substitution at Kln«^.Bencl1
less expense to the owners. me Notes

of Hon. Mr. 
Justice

The second cause for the damage claimed under this heading is the 
fact that:

jO The information, data and contract plans showed the river 
bottom as bare ledge rock and the said Plaintiff was justified in 
relying upon the said information and plans and did so rely upon 
them in making its tender and entering into the contract and plan­ 
ning its work and placing the cofferdams required for unwatering 
the site of the dam;

That the said information, data and contract plans proved to 
l)e entirely erroneous, inasmuch as the river bottom instead of being 
bare ledge rock was covered for a depth of many feet by broken 

20 rock, boulders, stones, gravel and other similar material, which al­ 
lowed the water to pass under the cofferdams in such volume as to 
prevent the unwatering of the site by the usual methods adopted 
for ledge rock.

With reference to that second cause of damages, I concur in the 
findings of the judgment a quo and I may say that the evidence of Mr. 
Ferguson, a Consulting Engineer who designed the Cedars dam for the 
Appellant Company and one of its engineers during the construction, sup­ 
ports the findings of the judgment that:

30
The plan B-2444 was certainly not accurate and that Plain­ 

tiff was misled as to the difficulties which he would have to face 
in the placing of cofferdams and the unwatering operations gene­ 
rally, that Stratton was the man who obtained the information upon 
which the plan B-2444 was made, and that his evidence shows that 
he had not had sufficient experience to be 'entrusted with such an 
important piece of work.

Here are extracts from Mr. Ferguson's testimony upon that sub- 
40 ject matter:—

Cross-examined by Mr. Forsyth:—

Q. The question I referred to about Mr. Stratton was this. 
At page 183 of his deposition I said '' I want you to be frank about 
this and tell me frankly that to attempt to ascertain with a sixteen 
feet rod at the end of a line, whether the bottom is ledge or not, is 
a hopelessly inaccurate way of going about it", and he said: "Yes 

sir".
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Q. I ask you whether the information as to the topography In 'court of 
of tire river bed and as to the material of which it consists are not Klng_lBencl1 
of extreme importance to the contractor, from the point of view of TUB Notes
J.T - • o of Hon. Mr.the unwatermg? justice

. -TT- T i • n St. GermainA. Yes; 1 have said so. (continued)
Q. And I ask you again whether an ordinary person read­ 

ing that plan, without any opportunity of conversation with Mr. 
10 Stratton, would not take it for granted that the elevations shown on 

the plan were the elevations of the surface of the river bed?
A. I believe he would, yes, unless told to the contrary.
Q. And, if Mr. Stratton had been plunging the rod down 

2V(> ieet m different places, and had indicated the elevation at which 
the rod stopped rather than the elevation at which it took bottom, 
then, to that extent, the plan did not convey accurate information 1?

A. It did not show the actual level of the surface of the 
river bed.

Q. And, if it showed an elevation, say "89.2L", a person 
20 without opportunity of conversation with Mr. Stratton would na­ 

turally assume that the surface of the river bed was ledge at that 
elevation, would he not *?

A. Yes, I think he would, from that plan.
Q. I do not know it, but I would suggest to you that a per­ 

son who failed to disclose the fact that there was a certain amount 
of overburden over the ledge elevations had not done what he should 
do with respect to displaying information on his plan ?

A. That is your opinion.
Q. That is my opinion. Do you agree with it *? 

30 A. No, I do not,
Q. You do not share it ?
A. No.
Q. You think it was quite all right for him to put on this 

plan
A. (interrupting) I think the contractors should have
Q. (interrupting) Do not talk about the contractor, I am 

talking to you about what the 'engineer should have done.
A. I think if he had been asked he should have furnished 

the contractor any information he had in his possession.
40 Q. And, I suggest to you if he had in his possession any in­ 

formation which contradicted the information on the plan, he should 
have given it without being asked for it. Do you not think so?

A. Yes, I think he should.
Q. Obviously, Mr. Stratton had information in his posses­ 

sion which this plan does not disclose; had he not ?
A. Yes.
A. And, the information of Mr. Stratton was the inform­ 

ation of Mr. Ferguson ?
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A. So far as I can recollect at this time.

The Appellant claims that this evidence is not of much importance 
since L'Heureux, the foreman-carpenter for Defendant Bishop and who 
was in direct charge of the building and placing of the cofferdam cribs 
and also the sheating, testified that although be was furnished with the 
results of Mr. Reiffenstein's soundings, he went ahead on his own respon­ 
sibility, and himself took careful soundings two or three feet apart over 
the whole area occupied by the cribs "to find out exactly how the bottom 
was" and states that he found ledge rock.

In addition to the answer given on that point in the judgment a quo 
above recited, it must be pointed out that had Mr. Ferguson disclosed the 
fact that Mr. Stratton had discovered, in spite of his inadequate and un­ 
reliable methods, a certain amount of overburden, it would possibly have 
suggested to the contractor the necessity for some further investigation of 
the site before Respondent made its tender.

For these reasons, I would therefore confirm the judgment a quo 
with reference to item No. 3 and allow Plaintiff the damages as fixed by 
the trial judge to the sum of $117,075.22.

ITEM NO. 4 — COFFERDAM LOWER END BY-PASS :— 
This item was disallowed.

ITEM No. 5 — ADDITIONAL COST OF ROCK EXCAVATION :—
For the reasons given by my colleagues, Messrs. Justices Rivard 30 

and Hall, I would disallow the claim referred to in that item.

ITEM No. 6 — HANDLING AND TRIMMING EXCAVATED 
ROCK :—

This item was also disallowed by the judgment a quo.

ITEM No 7 — EXCAVATED FROZEN MATERIAL IN RIVER 
BED:—

I would allow that item, first because the contract plan did not dis- 40 
close the nature of the river bottom where the dam was actually construct­ 
ed ; second, because, on account of undue delay for the unwatering, that 
excavation had to be done in winter and therefore more costly.

ITEM No. 8 — WORK UNDER WINTER CONDITIONS :—
The present claim (says the Appellant in his factum) is an 

accessory one and under no circumstances can it be allowed unless 
the Appellant should be held responsible for the delays on which it
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is based. However, even if the conclusion shonld be reached that the Ine 
delays complained of, or some of them, should be attributed to Ap- 
pellant, it does not follow that this accessory claim, which is so re- TheNotes

j. i 1 1 i • i. • J of Hon. Mr.mote, should be maintained. Justice
St. Germain 

(Continued)

For the reasons given in the judgment a quo, I would admit this 
item for the amount as fixed in said judgment.

10
Art. 1074 C.C. enacts that:

The debtor is liable only for the damages which have been 
foreseen or might have been foreseen at the time of contracting the 
obligation when his breach of it is not accompanied by fraud.

In the present instance, the connection between the winter work and 
the delay in the unwatering is clearly expressed in the report from Mr. 
Olivier Lef ebvre, Chief Engineer of La Commission des Eaux Courantes:— 

20
The unwatering of the dam site was quite difficult and the 

work was delayed a few months on that account. Pouring concrete 
will have to be made during most of the winter and the work will be 
completed early in the Spring.

ITEM No. 9 — OVERCHARGE ON LOGS :—

The judgment of the Superior Court has maintained this claim in 
part for the amount $1,429.60 and the Appellant states in its factmn that 

30 it acquiesces in the judgment as regards this item.

ITEM No. 10—CEMENT FOR APRON IN BY-PASS CHANNEL:—

For the reasons given by my colleague, Mr. Justice Rivard, I 
would reject that item.

40

ITEM No. 11 — SHORTAGE IN PAYMENT FOR CLASS I CON­ 
CRETE :—

This claim is based upon the following clause of the contract:—

If, however, the quantities of any of the various classes of 
work required to build the dam shall be different from the cor­ 
responding quantities hereinbefore given, due to changes of design 
or depth of foundations from those used for calculating said quan­ 
tities, there shall be added to or deducted from said principal sum, 
according to whether said quantities are increased or diminished, 
sums computed according to the following table and the net sum 
produced by these additions and deductions plus the value of any
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extra work performed by the contractor and computed in the man­ 
ner hereinbefore provided, shall become the total amount to be paid 
by the Owner to the Contractor for all of the work performed by 
him under the terms of this contract:

j) For each cubic yard of Class 1 concrete without plums
by which the scheduled quantities are increased, add ....
" " " " " " decreased, deduct 

k) For each cubic yard of Class 1 concrete with plums
by which the scheduled quantities are increased, add .....
" " " " " " decreased, deduct

$18.92 
9.81 10

17.16
9.31

During the course of the works, the Engineer ordered a substitu­ 
tion of concrete without plums for concrete with plums. As already men­ 
tioned, the principal sum of money to be paid to the contractor, as fixed 
in the contract, was based on an estimate that the quantities of excava­ 
tion, concrete masonry, forms, reinforcing steel, and other classes of work 
required to completely construct the dam and which would be as follows:—

Concrete masonry without plums 
Class 1 with plums

9690 cubic yards 
10800 cubic yards

20

It is admitted that Class 1 concrete without plums actually poured 
was 23656 cubic yards, i.e., 13966 cubic yards more than the quantities 
scheduled in the contract, and that the quantity of Class 1 concrete with 
plums actually poured was 6781 cubic yards, a decrease therefore of 4019 30 
cubic yards.

Both parties agree to apply the unit price of $18.92 above referred 
to for each cubic yard of Class 1 concrete without plums over the quanti­ 
ties scheduled, but where they disagree, is how to calculate for the de­ 
crease of 4019 cubic yards of Class 1 concrete with plums.

The Appellant contends that this substitution of one kind of ma­ 
terial for another does not constitute a change in the design of the dam 
and therefore the Respondent must be paid at the rate of $17.16 for the 40 
quantities of Class 1 concrete with plums actually poured, i.e., 6781 cubic 
yards, while the Respondent submits that the terms of the contract are 
clear and unequivocal and that owing to the substitution of material, in­ 
stead of being paid according to the quantities of Class 1 concrete with 
plums actually poured, there should be deducted from the principal sum 
only the amount arrived at by multiplying the number of cubic yards of 
this class of concrete with plums not poured, i.e., 4019 cubic yards, by the 
sum of $9.31, as mentioned in the schedule which would make a net dif­ 
ference in the contractor's favour of $31,549.15.
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I come to the conclusion that this substitution of one kind of con- In 'court of 
crete for another kind of concrete, or of one quality of concrete for an- Kto8_lBencl1 
other quality of concrete, does not constitute a change of design and that, iheNotes 
therefore, the contractor must be paid for each kind of concrete, according justice 
to the number of cubic yards actually poured and for the prices stipulated S(continSed) 
in the schedule. I would therefore dismiss that claim.

10 ITEM No. 12 — PLANT REMOVAL :—

This claim is also an accessory one and is based as claim No. 8 upon 
delays alleged to have been caused Respondent Bishop and attributed to 
Appellant in unwatering the site.

The Respondent submits that it was delayed approximately three 
months in the prosecution of his work with the result that he was unable to 
move out the heavy plant and equipment on the winter roads of January 
and February 1930. 

20
Though I have come to the conclusion to allow claim No. 8, I do 

not think that this particular claim should also be allowed.

According to the contract, the dam was to be substantially comple­ 
ted and ready for storage of water on or before March 31st 1930. We 
must presume therefore that the Respondent had then foreseen that the 
work might not be terminated before the 31st March 1930. Under these 
circumstances, the Respondent should have established without any doubt 
that at the end of March 1930, there were still good winter roads, while, on 

30 the contrary, in its Declaration, it claimed a certain amount from the Ap­ 
pellant for damages in connection with an -extra ordered on or about March 
13th 1930, for the placing of a Concrete Apron on the By-Pass Channel, 
because it would not have been notified in time to get the material re­ 
quired in for that work over the winter roads.

For these reasons, I would not allow this item.

ITEM No. 13 — STANDBY AND OVERHEAD EXPENSE :— 
40 This claim was disallowed by the judgment a quo.

ITEM No. 14 — INTEREST ON DEFERRED PAYMENTS :— 
This claim was disallowed by the judgment a quo.

On the whole, I therefore conclude that this appeal should be main­ 
tained, with costs, and the judgment appealed from reduced to the sum 
of $219,232.63, with interest from the service of the action, seeing that I 
am of the opinion to maintain the Respondent's Cross-Appeal.

(Signed) Paul St. Germain,
J.C.K.B.
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Formal Judgment of the Court of King's Bench Dismissing the Cross-appeal 
Kta?s0Bencii of William I. Bishop Limited et al.
Dismissing 
the

Province de Quebec COUR DU BANC DU ROI 
District de Montreal (En Appel) JQ

MONTREAL, le vingt-septieme jour de decembre, mil neuf cent 
trente-cinq.

CORAM: BERNIER, RIVARD, LETOURNEAU, HALL, ST. GER- 
MAIN, JJ.

No. 874.

WILLIAM I. BISHOP LIMITED, ET THE BANK OF MONTREAL,
deux corps politiques et incorpores ayant respectivement leur principale 20 

place d'affaires en la Cite de Montreal, district de Montreal,

APPELANTES,
— vs —

THE JAMES MACLAREN COMPANY LIMITED,
corps politique et incorpore ayant sa principale place d 'affaires 

dans la ville de Buckingham, district de Hull,

INTIMEE, 30
— & —

A. DUBREUIL,
Registrateur de la Division d'enregistrement du Comte de Labelle,

MIS EN CAUSE.

LA COUR, apres avoir entendu les parties par leurs procureurs 
respectifs sur le merite du present appel, avoir examine le dossier et sur 
le tout delibere: — 40

ATTENDU que 1'Intimee condamnee par le jugement a quo a payer 
aux Appelantes ou plus exactement a The Bank of Montreal comme ces- 
sionnaire de sa co-Appelante William I. Bishop Limited, une somme de 
$293,585.84, en a 'elle-meme appele de cette condamnation ;

ATTENDU que les demanderesses non satisfaites de n 'avoir ob- 
tenu 1 'inter et sur certains des items qui leur ont ete accordes qu'a compter 
du jugement au lieu d 'avoir obtenu que cet interet leur soit compte de 
1 'institution de 1 'action, inter jettent de leur cote appel a ce sujet;
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In theCONSIDEEANT que sur 1'appel susmentionne de 1'Intimee, de- K££fB0ef 

cide ee jour, les items pour lesquels il est ainsi demand e plus d'interet par e 
les Appelaiites, ont etc rejetes quant au capital meme;

of the

CONSIDERANT qu'il en resulte necessairement que le present ap-
pel des demanderesses doit etre rejete avec depens; cross-aPPeai

of William 
_ I Bishop

1A PAR CE MOTIF Limited etal. 10 X V ^ -U-LVyiJ-J- , 27 Dec 1935
(Continued)

REJETTE avec depens 1'appel des demanderesses. 

M. le juge St. Germain dissident.

(signe) Severin Letourneau
J.C.B.R.

20 0 '
King's Bench

Notes of Hon. Mr. Justice St. Germain on the Cross-appeal uote^of Hon
Mr. Justice 
St. Germain

The Appellants have appealed solely on the question of interest 
from the judgment of the Superior Court rendered by Mr. Justice White, 
on the first June 1934.

By that judgment, the action of the present Appellants was main­ 
tained for the sum of $293,585.84, with interest, but only from the date of 

30 judgment for the item allowed as damages, while interest from the date 
of the action for the other items.

By their appeal, Appellants relying specially upon the judgment 
of this Court in the case of MONTREAL GAS CO'Y & VASEY (8 KB. 
412), confirmed by the Privy Council (Can. Rep. 12 A.C. 301), submit 
that they should have been awarded interest from the date of action for 
the full amount of judgment.

The Respondent answers that in allowing certain items as damages, 
40 the Court expressly declares that interest is to run only from date of 

judgment and that this can only mean that the learned trial judge, in 
assessing the damages which he considered payable, had calculated the 
amount due up to the date of judgment and that therefore any interest 
that may be owing in connection with such item must be treated as being 
included in the amount awarded. Consequently, adds the Respondent, there 
is no conflict between the judgment in this case on the matter of interest 
and the case of MONTREAL GAS & VASEY upon which Appellants rely.

I may say that I do not find anything in the judgment to warrant 
that statement of the Respondent. For each of the items allowed as dam-
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ve relied o
without in any case taking into consideration the question 

Notes oV Hon. of interest.
Mr. Justice

In that case of the MONTREAL GAS COMPANY & VASEY, we 
read the following remarks in the judment of the Privy Council, delivered 
by Sir Henry Strong: —

The learned Chief Justice considered that the first judgment in 
must be taken to include interest in the damages awarded up to the 
date of the judgment; this, however, does not appear to have been 
done, and, in the absence of any evidence that it was so comprised, 
their Lordships think they must treat interest from the date of the 
action as not included in the damages. Then, as it appears from the 
respondent was entitled to recover interest from the date the ap­ 
pellants were put "en demeure" by the service of process, the judg­ 
ment of the Court of Queen's Bench in this respect must be consi­ 
dered not to have been successfully impeached.
In coming to the conclusion, in the present case, that the interest ™ 

should run from the date of action, or rather from the date of the service 
of the action, even for the items allowed as damages, I do not consider to 
conclude against the decision rendered by this Court in the case of GRT- 
MALDI & RESTALDI (54 B.R. 197).

In that latter case of GRIMALDI, the claim was for personal dam­ 
ages resulting from an accident, while in the present case, the claim is for 
real damages, which is a distinction made in the MONTREAL GAS & 
VASEY case by the Court of Appeal; (see remarks of Mr. Justice Wur- 
tele, 8 K.B. p. 431 and of Mr. Justice Langelier, p. 436). 30

For these reasons, I would maintain this appeal and would condemn 
the Respondent to pay the interest from the date of the service of the ac­ 
tion, even for the items allowed as damages.

(signed)
J.C.K.B.

No. 14
In the

Court of Af)' wCertificate of the Clerk of Appeals of Receipt of only one Judge's Notes
in the cross-appeal

of the Clerk 
of Appeals
•fo'niyo'ne CERTIFICATE AS TO RECEIPT OF JUDGE'S NOTES
Judge's Notes
So'sV-appeai I hereby certify that I have not received any notes of judgment in 
29 Apr. 1936 ^g Cross-appeal in this cause other than the notes of Honourable Mr. 

Justice St. Germain.
Montreal, April 29, 1936. Pouliot & Laporte,

Clerk of Appeals.
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In the

Court of 
King's Bench

•KT 1K No - 15 WO. 10 Notice
of Appeal 
to His

Notice of Appeal to His Majesty in His Privy Council with Motion to Fix Delay in'mfprivy
_. . . _. .. Councilto Furnish Security with Motion

to Fix Delay 
to Furnish

10 MOTION TO FIX A DELAY FOR FURNISHING SECURITY IN i^™ 1930 
APPEAL TO HIS MAJESTY IN HIS PRIVY COUNCIL.

The said Respondents and Cross-Appellants intend to inscribe in 
appeal to His Majesty in his Privy Council from the judgments rendered 
in this cause on the 27th day of December 1935 by this Honourable Court 
and pray that a delay be fixed by this Honourable Court within which the 
Respondents and Cross-Appellants shall furnish good and sufficient secu­ 
rity as required by law that they will effectively prosecute the said appeal 
and pay any costs and damages which may be ordered against them in case 

20 the said judgments be confirmed; the whole with costs to follow.

Montreal, January 17, 1936.

(signed) Phelan, Fleet, Robertsou & Abbott,
Attorneys for Respondents and 

Cross-Appellants.

NOTICE 
30

Messrs. Aylen and Aylen,
Attorneys for Appellant and Cross-respondent.

TAKE NOTICE of the foregoing motion to fix the delay to furnish 
security and that the same will be presented for allowance before the Court 
of King's Bench in appeal sitting in the Court House for the District of 
Montreal on the 22nd day of January 1936 at 10.00 o'clock in the forenoon 
or so soon thereafter as counsel may be heard and do you govern your­ 
selves accordingly.

Montreal, January 17, 1936.

(sgd.) Phelan, Fleet, Rohertson & Abbott,
Attorneys for Respondents

and Cross-appellants. 
January 18, 1936. 
Received copy 
(sgd) Aylen and Aylen 
Attys. for Appellant and Cross-respondent.
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In Co6urtof NO. 16 
King's Bench

N~16 Judgment of Hon. Mr. Justice Hall on the above Motion
Judgment
jusMce'nSi The parties having been heard; seeing the declaration of William 
MoHonabove I. Bishop, Limited, and the Bank of Montreal, that they intend to inscribe 

in appeal to His Majesty in his Privy Council from the final Judgments 
rendered in this cause, on the 27th day of September, 1935;

WHEREAS under the provisions of Article 68 of the Code of Civil 10 
Procedure of the Province of Quebec, an appeal lies from the said judg­ 
ment to His Majesty in his Privy Council;

I, the undersigned Judge of the Court of King's Bench, sitting in 
Chambers, fix at fifteen days from this date, the delay during which the 
said William I. Bishop and the Bank of Montreal, may give the security 
required by law for the said appeal, in accordance with the provisions of 
Article 1249 of the Code of Civil Procedure of the Province of Quebec, in 
the manner and for the purposes therein mentioned; the whole with costs
to follow. pp.

(Signed) A. Rives Hall, 
Justice of the Court of King's Bench.

In the JT0 17 
Court of JNO. ±f 

King's Bench
N~17 Notice of Furnishing Security

Notice
seSy""8 To: Mtres Aylen and Aylen,
10 Feb. 1936 Attorneys for App-ellants and Cross-respondents,

Ottawa, Ont. on
NOTICE OF FURNISHING OF SECURITY

Sirs,
Take notice that on the 13th day of Februray, 1936, at 11 o'clock in 

the forenoon, before a judge of the Honourable Court of King's Bench, 
Appeal Side, for the District of Montreal, sitting in Chambers in the Court 
House, Montreal, Respondents and Cross-appellants will furnish the secu­ 
rity required for the costs of Appellant and Cross-respondent in this cause 
in their appeal to His Majesty in his Privy Council, the whole in accord­ 
ance with the judgment of Honourable Mr. Justice A. Rives Hall, rendered ^Q 
January 31, 1936, the said security to be in the form of a surety bond of 
The Royal Trust Company, a body politic and corporate, duly incorporated, 
having its head office and chief place of business in the City and District 
of Montreal and duly authorized to become surety before the Courts of the 
Province of Quebec, and do you govern yourselves accordingly.

Montreal, February 10, 1936.
(signed) Phelan, Fleet, Robertson & Abbott,

Attorneys for Respondents and 
Cross-appellants.
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•uj- 1 o In the 
WO. 10 Court of

King' s Bench

Surety Bond of The Royal Trust Company
of The

WHEREAS final judgments were rendered by the Court of King's Bench, 
sitting in appeal at the City of Montreal, on the twenty-seventh day of De­ 
cember, nineteen hundred and thirty-five on the appeal and the cross-appeal 
from the judgment rendered in this cause in the Superior Court for the 

10 District of Montcalm by Mr. Justice C. D. White, June first, nineteen 
hundred and thirty-four, the said appeal and cross-appeal having been 
made respectively by The James Maclareii Company Limited, defendant 
in the said Superior Court, and William I. Bishop Limited et al., plaintiffs 
in the said Superior Court ;
WHEREAS the said William I. Bishop Limited et al., feel aggrieved by 
the said jugdments and appeal therefrom to His Majesty in his Privy 
Council sitting in London, England, thus rendering necessary the security 
required by Article 1249 of the Code of Civil Procedure;

20 THEREFORE these presents testify that on the thirteenth day of Fe­ 
bruary, 1936, at the City of Montreal before Honourable Mr. Justice Se- 
verin Letourneau, the undersigned, one of the justices of this Court of 
King's Bench, Appeal Side, came and appeared The Royal Trust Company 
a body politic and corporate, duly incorporated by Special Act of the Le­ 
gislature of the Province of Quebec, being 55-56 Vie., cap. 79 and amend­ 
ing Acts, and having its head office at 105 St. James Street West, in the- 
City of Montreal, and duly authorized to become surety before the Courts 
of the Province of Quebec under and by virtue of Order-in-Couiicil dated 
at the City of Quebec October 17, 1900 following the provisions of the Act 

U 63 Vie., cap. 44. the said authorisation having been published in the Que­ 
bec Official Gazette on the fifteenth of December, 1900, the said The Royal 
Trust Company herein represented by Wentworth Roy Dillon, assistant 
trust officer, duly authorized hereto by resolution of the Executive Com­ 
mittee of the Board of Directors, a certified copy thereof being attached 
hereto and which said Company has acknowledged and hereby acknow­ 
ledges itself to be the legal surety of William I. Bishop Limited and the 
Bank of Montreal, appellants in regard to the said appeal; and the said 
The Royal Trust Company hereby promises, binds and obliges itself that

^Q in case the said appellants do not effectually prosecute the said appeal 
and do not satisfy the condemnation and pay all costs and damages ad­ 
judged in case the judgments appealed from are confirmed by His 
Majesty's Privy Council sitting in appeal, then the said The Royal Trust 
Company, surety, will satisfy the said condemnation and pay all costs and 
damages which may be hereafter adjudged to the use and profit of the 
said Respondent, The James MacLaren Company Limited, its adminis­ 
trators, successors and assigns, the liability of The Royal Trust Company, 
however, not to exceed in any event the sum of Five hundred pounds 
Sterling (£500).
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Intcoenrtof AND the said The Royal Trust Company has signed these presents by its 
^ , authorized representative as aforesaid.

No. 18 
Surety Bond
RoJaVrrust Taken and acknowledged before me 
?3 mleb y 1936 at Montreal this thirteenth day

(Continued)
<)f
(signed) Sevcrin Letonrneau 
A Justice of the Court of 
King's Bench — Appeal Side.

The Royal Trust Company 
(signed) W. R. Dillon 

Assistant trust officer.

In the No. 19
Court of 

King'sBencH
No7i9 Consent of Parties as to the Contents of the Transcript Record for His Majesty

Consent . .... _ . ~ .,of parties in His Privy Council
as to the 
Contents

0Tfranorieptord CONSENT OF THE PARTIES AS TO THE CONTENTS OP THE
TRANSCRIPT RECORD FOR HIS MAJESTY

IN HIS PRIVY COUNCIL
We, the undersigned, attorneys for the parties herein, do hereby 

consent that the following documents shall compose the Record of printed 
proceedings for His Majesty's Privy Council:

(1) All the documents printed in the Appeal to the Court of King's 
Bench, being Volumes 1 to 8 of the Record.

(2) The inscription in Appeal before the Court of King's Bench.
(3) The inscription in the Cross-appeal before the Court of King's 

Bench.
(4) The Factum of Appellant before the Court of King's Bench.
(5) The Factums of Respondents and Cross-appellants before the Court 

of King's Bench.
(6) The Factum of Cross-respondent before the Court of King's Bench.
(7) Formal judgment of the Court of King's Bench maintaining the 

Appeal.
(8) The notes of Honourable Mr. Justice Bernier.
(9) The notes of Honourable Mr. Justice Rivard.

(10) The notes of Honourable Mr. Justice Letourneau.
(11) The notes of Honourable Mr. Justice Hall.
(12) The notes of Honourable Mr. Justice St. Germain.
(13) Formal judgment of the Court of King's Bench dismissing the 

Cross-appeal.

20

rtf\
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(14) Notes of Honourable Mr. Justice St. Germain on the Cross-appeal. In 'court of
King's Bencn 

No. 19

(15) Certificate of the Clerk of Appeals of receipt of only one judge's STartL 
notes in the Cross-appeal. contents

of the Record 
Transcript 
to His

(16) Notice of appeal with motion to fix a delay to furnish security. ^mfprivy
Council

If) 15 Apr. 1936 
-^ (Continued)

(17) Judgment of Honourable Mr. Justice Hall on the above motion.

(18) Notice of giving security.

(19) Surety bond of The Royal Trust Company.

(20) Consent of parties as to the contents of the Record Transcript to 
20 His Majesty in His Privy Council.

(21) Fiat for Transcript of Record to His Majesty in His Privy Coun­ 
cil.

Montreal, April 15th 1936.

(Signed) Aylen & Aylen, 
Attorneys for Appellant and Cross-respondent. 

30
(signed) Phelan, Fleet, Robertson &Abbott,

Attorneys for Respondents and Cross-appellants.

Record approved:

AYLEN & AYLEN,
40 Attorneys for Appellant and Cross-respondent.

PHELAN, FLEET, ROBERTSON & ABBOTT,
Attorneys for Respondents and Cross-appellants.
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NO. 20 
King's Bench

No~~20 Fiat for Transcript of Record to His Majesty in His Privy Council
Flat
o"™dscript FIAT FOR TRANSCRIPT OF RECORD
to His
ta^ifprivy We require the preparation of the Transcript Record in appeal to 
22 UApi. less His Majesty in His Privy Council, the said Transcript to consist of and 

include only:
(1) All the documents printed in the Appeal to the Court of King's 

Bench, being Volumes 1 to 8 of the Record. •*
(2) The inscription in Appeal before the Court of King's Bench.
(3) The inscription in the Cross-appeal before the Court of King's 

Bench.
(4) The Factum of Appellant before the Court of King's Bench.
(5) The Factums of Respondents and Cross-appellants before the Court 

of King's Bench.
(6) The Factum of Cross-respondent before the Court of King's Bench. 20
(7) Formal judgment of the Court of King's Bench maintaining the 

Appeal.
(8) The notes of Honourable Mr. Justice Bernier.
(9) The notes of Honourable Mr. Justice Rivard.

(10) The notes of Honourable Mr. Justice Letourn-eau.
(11) The notes of Honourable Mr. Justice Hall.
(12) The notes of Honourable Mr. Justice St. Germain. 30
(13) Formal judgment of the Court of King's Bench dismissing the 

Cross-appeal.
(14) Notes of Honourable Mr. Justice St. Germain on the Cross-appeal.
(15) Certificate of the Clerk of Appeals of receipt of only one judge's 

notes in the Cross-appeal.
(16) Notice of Appeal with motion to fix delay to furnish security.
(17) Judgment of Honourable Mr. Justice Hall on the above motion. .«
(18) Notice of giving security.
(19) Surety bond of The Royal Trust Company.
(20) Consent of parties as to the contents of the Record Transcript to 

His Majesty in His Privy Council.
(21) Fiat for Transcript of Record to His Majesty in His Privy Coun­ 

cil.
Montreal, April 22, 1936.

Phelan, Fleet, Robertson & Abbott, 
Attorneys for Respondents and Cross-appellants.
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Certificate of Clerk of Appeals. lntcoeurtof
King's Bench

We, the undersigned Alphonse Pouliot and Clovis Laporte, K.C., Sfo"l»*of 
Clerk of Appeals of His Majesty's Court of King's Bench for the Pro- Appeals 
vince of Quebec, do hereby certify that the present transcript, from page 
one to page 174 contains 

10
True and faithful copies of all the original papers, documents, pro­ 

ceedings and of judgments of His Majesty's Superior Court for the Prov­ 
ince of Quebec, sitting in the City of Montreal.

Transmitted to the Appeal Office, in the said City of Montreal, as 
the Record of the said Superior Court in the cause therein lately pending 
and determined between The James MacLaren Company Limited, Plain­ 
tiff and William I. Bishop et al., Defendant.

20 And also true copies of all the proceedings of the said Court of 
King's Bench (Appeal Side) and the final judgment therein rendered on 
the said Appeal instituted by the said Defendant.

In faith and testimony whereof, we have, to these presents, set and 
subscribed our signature and affixed the seal of the said Court of King's 
Bench, (Appeal Side).

Given at the City of Montreal, in that part of the Dominion of 
Canada, called the Province of Quebec, this day in 

30 the year of Our Lord one thousand nine hundred and thirtv six.

POULIOT & LAPORTE, 
L. S.

Clerk of Appeals.

40
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Intcoeurtof Certificate of Chief Justice.
King's Bench

ofecme?te I, the undersigned Honorable Sir Mathias Tellier, Chief Justice of 
the Province of Quebec, do hereby certify that the said Alphonse Pouliot 
and Clovis Laporte, K.C., are Clerk of the Court of King's Bench, on the 
Appeal Side thereof, and that the initials "P and L" subscribed at every ^Q 
eight pages and the signature "Pouliot & Laporte" of the certificate 
above written, is their proper signature and hand writing.

I do further certify that the said Pouliot & Laporte as such Clerk, 
are the Keeper of the Record of the said Court, and the proper Officer to 
certify the proceedings of the same, and that the seal above set is the seal 
of the said Court, and was so affixed under the sanction of the Court.

In testimony whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and seal, at the 
City of Montreal, in the Province of Quebec, this day of 20 
in the year of Our Lord one thousand nine hundred and thirty six and of 
His Majesty's Reign, the first.

SIR MATHIAS TELLIER,
30 

L.S. Chief Justice of the Province of Quebec.

40
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